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MOVING TO WORK YEAR SIX ANNUAL REPORT
PART ONE: ACCOMPLISHMENTS REPORT




MOVING TO WORK ANNUAL REPORT
YEAR SIX ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Introduction

This is the sixth Annual Accomplishments Report published by the Philadelphia
Housing Authority (PHA) under the Moving To Work (MTW) Demonstration
Program. PHA is one of twenty-four current participants nationwide in the MTW
Demonstration Program. Through designation as an MTW agency, PHA and other
participating Housing Authorities are given substantial budget flexibility and
regulatory relief. Under the terms of its MTW Agreement with the U.S. Department
of Housing and Urban Development, PHA is required to publish an Annual Plan and
Annual Report. This Annual Accomplishments Report serves as the introduction to
the Year Six MTW Annual Report. It provides a summary of the extensive
initiatives undertaken and accomplishments achieved by PHA for the one-year
period ending March 31, 2007.

Public Housing at the Crossroads

Previous MTW Annual Reports have described the extraordinary transition and
transformation undertaken by the PHA over the past eight years. Six of these years
involved participation in the MTW Program. During this time, PHA completed the
new construction or modernization of approximately 6,100 housing units for low-
income households, including implementation of one of the largest affordable
homeownership programs in the country. These efforts involve over $1.2 billion in
capital expenditures, along with hundreds of jobs and complementary economic
impacts.

PHA'’s transformation has had an enormously positive effect on both public housing
communities and the City as a whole. As discussed in last year’s MTW Report, the
“Creating Wealth” study documented the extent to which PHA development
programs have generated hundreds of millions of additional dollars in economic
benefits to the community while helping to increase adjacent property values at rates
higher than the citywide average. Where public housing was once viewed as a
blighting and negative factor, it is now seen as a significantly positive component of
Philadelphia’s neighborhoods.

As this Report is published, PHA is at the crossroads, facing funding and regulatory
challenges which, if not resolved, will undermine the future of PHA’s transformation
efforts. The initial term of the existing MTW Agreement is coming to a close.
Federal support for public housing continues its downward trend in the face of
soaring utility and other costs. In parallel, HUD’s implementation of new “asset
management” regulations will force a shift away from public housing’s historic
mission to serve our neediest citizens by imposing a private sector, profit-oriented
model. In light of these issues, the future of PHA and the national public housing
program is uncertain.

PHA'’s Executive Director, Carl R. Greene, believes that the public housing industry
as a whole is at a crossroads. “Starting in 2001, federal support for public housing
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has steadily eroded, to the point where HUD is now only providing 83% of the funds
needed to effectively operate public housing,” said Greene. “While this
unprecedented reversal of federal support for low-income housing is taking place,
HUD is planning to implement an untested and unworkable set of regulations on all
public housing authorities under the rubric of ‘asset management’. No reasonable
person can argue with the need to effectively manage our public housing assets, and
there is much that we can and have learned from the private sector. However,
HUD’s approach is to implement a ‘one size fits all’ solution developed through
computer modeling across the board, with no field testing or evaluation. I think this
is a recipe for failure.”

Greene continued, “The HUD ‘asset management’ model ignores the fact that
housing authorities were created to serve poor families who are shut out of the
private real estate market. Cities around the country are now seeing firsthand the
flaws in relying exclusively on private sector solutions to address low-income
housing needs. Wherever there is a reasonably strong real estate market, we are
seeing privately owned subsidized housing developers ‘opting out’ of their federal or
state contracts so that they can charge market rate prices to higher income
households. This is happening in spite of the billions of dollars in taxpayer
investments which created and funded these developments in the first place. In
contrast, public housing is truly a permanent housing resource. We need to protect it
and safeguard it for future generations.”

“At PHA,” said Greene, “We are implementing a form of asset management that is
responsive to local needs and conditions. PHA’s long-term strategy of investing in
technological improvements is bearing fruit now, helping to support this
implementation by generating real-time information and reducing transaction
processing costs. We are able to track income and expenses at the property level,
and we have given property managers the tools to effectively and efficiently operate
PHA properties.”

PHA’s successful redevelopment efforts provide indisputable proof that an
effectively managed public agency can generate results equal to or better than any
private sector organization, while remaining true to its core mission to serve the
public good. “The people of Philadelphia understand the impact that we have had in
changing the face of the City. Now our challenge is to convince the Congress that
investments in public housing make financial sense and good social policy.

Annual Report

The remaining sections of the MTW Annual Report provide details on PHA’s
recently completed and ongoing activities during MTW Year Six. Over the course
of this year, PHA’s public housing operating subsidy for 2007 was pro-rated at
approximately 83% of actual need. The resultant $17 million budget shortfall forced
PHA to make major shifts in its operations including a major workforce reduction.
These staff reductions are expected to have a significant impact on service delivery
in the coming year.
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While staff reductions have been extremely difficult, PHA ended the year with
another solid record of accomplishments. Highlights of Year Six include:

Portfolio transformation — PHA’s revitalization initiatives continued, raising
the total number of rehabilitated or newly constructed housing units to 6,100
over the past eight years. At Martin Luther King Plaza, ninety (90)
affordable homeownership units were completed and sold. The total
rehabilitation of Germantown House was completed, resulting in
reoccupancy of 133 senior/disabled units and the opening of 12,000 square
foot enhanced senior services facility. At Lucien E. Blackwell Homes, PHA
completed construction of fifty (50) additional rental units and 25 affordable
homes for sale. Fourteen (14) modular Energy Star homes were constructed
and occupied at Ludlow Scattered Sites.

Affordable homeownership — PHA helped 212 low and moderate-income
buyers to become first time homebuyers, increasing the overall total sales to
767 homes. In the process, PHA forged creative partnerships with major
banks, local housing counseling agencies and other key actors in order to
educate and reduce costs for the homebuyers.

Leveraging capital resources - PHA’s successful efforts to secure $1.2
billion in capital funding were further enhanced this year by the addition of
$31.5 million in new private equity and state and local grants. = PHA has
earned the confidence of private equity investors and banks as a result of its
outstanding development and financial management expertise.

Partnerships to improve residents’ lives - PHA secured over $2.6 million in
new supportive service grant funding in the past year. These funds will help
to support PHA’s innovative multi-generational programming efforts, which
are helping to focus our youth on educational attainment and healthy
lifestyles, build job skills and obtain living wage employment for adult
residents, and maximize independent living among PHA seniors and people
with disabilities.

Innovations in customer service - PHA’s successful implementation of new
agency-wide Interactive = Voice  Response/Customer  Relationship
Management systems helps streamline and simplify interactions between
PHA and the public. Residents, applicants for housing, vendors, elected
officials and the public at large cannot readily access real-time information
on their PHA transactions, PHA policies and frequently asked questions.
The related case management tracking component helps to ensure that
inquiries, problems and other issues are addressed promptly and accurately.

Safe communities — While the Philadelphia community as a whole struggled
to address a skyrocketing epidemic of violent crime, crime statistics for PHA
communities showed an overall decrease in both Part I and II crimes over the
past year.
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e Quality assurance — Improving accuracy and ensuring full regulatory
compliance of business transactions is a high priority PHA goal. Over the
past year, new internal review and auditing processes were implemented
including an enhanced CRM Quality Control system for public housing and
admissions related file and transaction reviews.

o Asset management — PHA continued its efforts to implement locally
responsive asset management strategies. Extensive training for property
managers, improved information reporting to support effective management
at the property-level, and new tools to support streamlined transaction
processing at both the property and central levels are all a part of these
efforts.

e Cost savings — Staff from every level of the organization were engaged in
intensive efforts to identify opportunities to improve productivity and reduce
expenses. Results from the past year included extensive energy conservation
measures and utility-related actions that will generate a projected $1.2 million
in annual savings.

Strategic Operating Plan

All MTW activities are incorporated into PHA’s comprehensive, agency-wide
Strategic Operating Plan, which provides a detailed “blueprint” for agency goals,
objectives and tasks in every major area of agency operations. The Strategic
Operating Plan is regularly updated to report progress and reflect new agency
initiatives including those undertaken as part of the MTW Demonstration Program.
PHA utilizes a state of the art project management system to track and report on
Strategic Operating Plan progress.

To ensure continuous progress in each goal area, PHA convenes regular inter-
departmental goal meetings for each of the nine goals. The goal meetings are
working sessions that provide an opportunity for staff to work on key objectives,
address operational challenges, and identify solutions to strategic plan tasks. In
addition to goal meetings, PHA established a Leadership Council which meets
weekly to review strategic plan progress and to identify and resolve obstacles to
achieving all identified goals. The Accomplishments Report for 2006-2007
highlights and summarizes the accomplishments achieved by PHA under each of the
nine Strategic Operating Plan goals during the fiscal year from April 1, 2006 through
March 31, 2007.
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FS’trategic Operating Plan Goal 1: Achieve Excellence In Property Management.

l

PHA currently owns and manages a total of 15,793 housing units in thirty-one (31)
conventional public housing developments, five (5) scattered site management areas,
ten (10) alternatively managed developments and fifteen (15) newly renovated or
constructed Low Income Housing Tax Credit sites. PHA’s portfolio includes units
managed by its subsidiary, Philadelphia Asset and Property Management
Corporation (PAPMC).

The dramatic reductions in federal operating subsidy over the past several years have
placed substantial strains on PHA’s ability to sustain and improve property
management operations. In response to these budget reductions, significant staff
reductions were made during the past year, as well as the reduction from ten (10) to
five (5) scattered site management offices. Nevertheless, much progress has been
made as described below. At the strategic level, PHA continues to emphasize asset
management principles as a way to ensure accountability and high productivity at the
property level.

Over the course of the year, PHA was able to maintain a high level of productivity
on key property management indicators:

e PHA collected 93.38% of billed rent. Of approximately $30.5 million in rent
billed, PHA successfully collected $28.4 million.

e Overall occupancy increased in the public housing programs (including
scattered site, conventional, PAPMC and AME sites) to 13,870.

e Work order response time for emergency service orders remained within 24
hours. Average completion time for routine service orders was 41 days.

e Over 99% of PHA occupied units were inspected using the UPCS standards
during the year.

e Over 99% of scheduled recertifications were completed.

A major achievement in the past year involved completing the reoccupancy of
Germantown House, a 133-unit senior building that underwent substantial
rehabilitation in 2006. Full occupancy of the 50-unit Phase III rentals at Lucien E.
Blackwell Homes was also achieved. Both sites are managed by PAPMC.

Within the Scattered Site area, PHA built and occupied fourteen (14) new Energy
Star modular homes, of which six (6) are adaptable to meet the needs of households
with disabled family members. This important effort helped to support the City’s
Neighborhood Transformation Initiative, which was responsible for clearing the
blighted and abandoned buildings that previously existed on these sites.

In addition to these new occupancy initiatives, vacancy reduction efforts included
rehabilitation of 474 conventional site units. Generally, the vacancy rehab activities

Section 1 Accomplishments Report Page 6
MTW Year Six Report May 2007



included installation of new kitchen cabinets and appliances, new heating systems,
and flooring along with fresh painting throughout.

PHA’s innovative “Sparkle Plus” initiative continued to enhance the “curb appeal”
and overall conditions at properties throughout the City. For example, in scattered
sites, 220 units received the “sparkle” treatment including new exterior lights, storm
doors, mailboxes, doorbells and painting. New awnings and signage was installed at
several conventional sites.

PHA expanded its efforts to use technology to improve property management
productivity, reduce the cost of operations and implement sound asset management
principles. A series of enhancements were implemented to the Customer
Relationship Management (CRM) system including: implementation of a new
maintenance service order audit process; updating of file audit and quality control
procedures to reflect all current processes; and, roll out of new “Business Object”
and other real-time reporting systems. All of these initiatives help to improve the
accuracy of property management transactions while also promoting accountability
at the property level.

PHA’s focus on improving quality and policy compliance expanded this year with
the completion of Quality Assurance Department reviews of PAPMC and selected
conventional public housing sites.

Training of field staff remained a high priority during the year. A series of trainings
was conducted to facilitate improved knowledge and use of the PeopleSoft Budget,
Service Order, File Audit, Case Management and other modules.

PHA conducted a major public housing waiting list update during this period. The
newly updated waiting list will help facilitate implementation of the planned site
based waiting list process which will be phased in over the coming months.

Other ongoing initiatives conducted during the year included implementation of Rent
Simplification and the two-year recertification cycle.

Implementation of Two Year Recertifications: PHA completed the transition from
the current annual recertification system to a two-year recertification cycle.

PHA continued its extensive efforts to maintain open communications with residents
for the purpose of encouraging program compliance, promoting community
involvement, and providing outreach for self-sufficiency and other social service
programs. This publication was prepared by PHA’s Communications Department
and distributed to public housing residents, HCV participants and employees. Four
quarterly editions were published and distributed to all residents.
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Accomplishment #1 Achieved greater than 93% rent collection rate

Accomplishment #2 Increased public housing occupancy to 13,870 units

Accomplishment #3 Completed 100% of emergency work orders within a 24-
hour time period

Accomplishment #4 Conducted HQS/UPCS inspections on greater than 99%
of housing units

Accomplishment #5 Completed rehabilitation of 474 conventional housing
units

Accomplishment #6 Reoccupied 100% of 133 units at Germantown House

Accomplishment #7 Leased up all 50 units at Lucien E. Blackwell Homes
Phase I1I

Accomplishment #8 Leased 14 new Energy Star modular homes

Accomplishment #9 Updated public housing waiting list

Accomplishment #10 Implemented new asset management reports, quality

assurance audits and procedures
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Strategic Operating Plan Goal 2: Achieve Excellence in The Management of the
Housing Choice Voucher Program and Enforce Program Compliance.

PHA operates one of the country’s largest Housing Choice Voucher (HCV)
programs, which last year served approximately 16,600 Philadelphia households. In
contrast to the PHA-owned housing programs, the HCV program allows PHA to
enter into contracts with private property owners so that rents are affordable to low-
income households. In these efforts, PHA collaborates with a broad range of
community actors, developers and government agencies to use HCV resources to
accelerate and support neighborhood revitalization.

HCV resources are also allocated to assisting low-income households to become
homeowners. Eligible households, who must have an employment history unless
they are disabled or elderly, are provided with credit and homebuyer counseling that
enables them to find and secure permanent homeownership units in the community.
PHA’s HCV homeownership initiative represents one of the most successful
programs in the country.

Despite reductions in HCV funding as a result of pro-rations, PHA continued to
operate five community site offices, which provided neighborhood residents with
convenient access to conduct business and contact with their assigned Service
Representatives. Major accomplishments in the area of HCV operations during
MTW Year Six include:

e PHA met 100% of its MTW leasing goals.
e PHA recertified 100% of scheduled recertifications.

e PHA leased a total of 883 units under the Unit Based Leasing and
Development Program.

e PHA continued its implementation of the HCV Homeownership Program,
which currently serves 158 first time homebuyers. Fifty-three (53) of these
home sales occurred during the past year, including fifteen (15) to families
with disabilities. Some of the homeowners purchased new units at PHA
redevelopment sites, while others found quality existing housing in
Philadelphia neighborhoods.

e Through extensive resident self-sufficiency efforts, 603 previous HCV
program participants have “graduated” from the program during the MTW
demonstration.  This represents the point when household income is
sufficient to pay all rental expenses without a subsidy.

e PHA completed 100% of all HCV scheduled inspections. Units are inspected
before occupancy and then regularly throughout the term of the lease.
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e PHA continued to implement the Enhanced Tenant Responsibility Training
program requirement for all HCV program participants.

e PHA has assisted a total of 177 formerly homeless families in the past year
through the City’s Blueprint to End Homelessness program.

o Efforts to improve the quality and expand the geographic distribution of
housing units available to HCV participants were implemented during the
past year. These efforts included conducting Housing Fairs, briefing sessions
and distribution of information materials to program participants. 637 HCV
participants and 243 property owners participated in the Housing Fairs, which
resulted in 300 housing placements.

e PHA continued to support the Tenant/Landlord Advisory Board that provides
input to the agency on HCV policies and procedures. PHA Investigations
also conducted 1,024 investigations in response to community and staff calls.

e PHA updates its quality control procedures to reflect current payment and
utility standards. File audits are completed on all files using PHA’s CRM
Quality Control module.

e HCV participants who are subject to the seven-year time limit continued to
work with PHA to develop a Family Economic Development Action Plan
(FEDAP). To date, 7,252 households have developed FEDAPs, and 7,668
signed MTW Agreements. The FEDAP helps establish self-sufficiency goals
for the entire family in order to assist them in improving their overall
economic status. PHA staff collaborates with local community partners to
provide employment, training and other supportive services to HCV program
participants.
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Accomplishment #1

Achieved 100% of leasing goals

Accomplishment #2

Completed 100% of scheduled recertifications

Accomplishment #3

Completed 100% of scheduled inspections.

Accomplishment #4

Assisted a total of 603 households to increase their
incomes, resulting in “graduation” from the HCV
program.

Accomplishment #5

Served 158 first time homebuyers under the HCV
Homeownership Program of which 53 were closed
during the past year.

Accomplishment #6

Provided Enhanced Tenant Responsibility Training to all
participants.

Accomplishment #7

Continued implementation of the HCV Quality Initiative
including provision of extensive staff training and
development of new automation tools.

Accomplishment #8

Assisted 177 formerly homeless households in the past
year to obtain permanent housing through the Blueprint
program.

Accomplishment #9

Continued to support the Tenant/Landlord Advisory
Board as a forum for ongoing community input to PHA
HCV program policies and procedures and hired second
community liaison.

Accomplishment #10

Assisted 7,252 households in preparing and
implementing Family Economic Development Action
Plans.
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Strategic Operating Plan Goal 3: Develop Affordable Quality Housing that
Supports Balanced Communities

This Strategic Operating Goal encompasses both the redevelopment of existing PHA
communities as well as the implementation of new development initiatives that
complement Philadelphia’s neighborhood revitalization efforts. MTW funding
flexibility has allowed PHA to leverage capital dollars in support of public housing
and neighborhood revitalization.

PHA redevelopment and neighborhood revitalization initiatives have transformed
Philadelphia’s neighborhoods. The economic value and leveraging effect generated
by these initiatives have been carefully documented in the “Creating Wealth” study
discussed in last year’s Annual Report. That study documented the extent to which
real estate values in neighborhoods adjacent to PHA redevelopment projects have
increased at levels substantially higher than in other parts of the City.

Major highlights for this goal area during MTW Year Six include:

e PHA continued to effectively administer capital budgets totaling $1.2 billion.
This includes funding for recently completed redevelopment, new
construction and modernization as well as projects scheduled in the coming
years. PHA’s track record as developer now totals 24 projects including
three new transactions: Marshall Shepherd Village, Nellie Reynolds Gardens
and Warnock Street Phase L.

e An additional $31.5 million in leveraged financing was raised during the year
including $7.8 million in state funds, $23.3 million in LIHTC equity and
$400,000 in local funds. To date, PHA has raised approximately $236
million in private equity funding through Low Income Housing Tax Credits
awarded by the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA).

e PHA closed on a total of $38.7 million in real estate transactions over the past
year, involving the creation of 368 rental and 35 affordable homeownership
units. The sites that closed included LEB III rental, LEB III homeownership,
Marshall Shepard Village, Ludlow HOPE VI and Germantown House.

e Rehabilitation and reoccupancy was completed at the 133-unit Germantown
House development, including an 11,000 sq. ft. facility for enhanced senior
services.

e Extensive progress was made at the $140 million Lucien E. Blackwell Homes
project including completion of construction for 50 Energy Star rental units
and 35 affordable homeownership units under off-site Phase III. For Phase
II, PHA reached settlement on all 25 affordable homeownership units. For
the Angela Court Phase II component of the project, PHA procured and
entered into a contract with a developer.
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e At the $83 million MLK Plaza development, PHA completed construction of
and reached settlement on 90 affordable homeownership units.

e At Greater Grays Ferry, PHA completed the sale of 122 of the 125 Phase II
homeownership units and achieved breakeven, cost certification and placed-
in-service designation for Phase I. The remaining 3 homeownership units at
Greater Grays Ferry Phase II are lease purchase units for which PHA
anticipates settlement in MTW Year Seven. Construction also began on a
32,000 sq. ft. building on the site that will serve as PHA offices.

e Liddonfield, one of PHA’s most distressed sites, received a $3.5 million
RACP state grant to support the proposed $95 million redevelopment
program. PHA has issued an RFP to select a Master Developer for the site.

e Under the Ludlow Scattered Site HOPE VI development, PHA awarded the
design-build Construction Management contract and completed designs for
75 rental and 50 affordable homeownership units. PHA also secured an
equity investor’s commitment to providing $12 million in funding.

e Construction and occupancy was also completed on fourteen prefabricated
Energy Star modular units at Ludlow Scattered Sites.

e At Abbotsford, PHA successfully completed the demolition of forty-two (42)
apartment buildings (402 units) to provide open space for the redevelopment
of this portion of the site. PHA was awarded a HOPE VI demolition grant on
July 22, 2004 in the amount of $2,766,000 towards this project. Marketing
and feasibility studies are underway to evaluate the highest and best use for
future improvements.

e As part of the $50 million Falls Ridge development, PHA completed the
design and began construction on 28 affordable homeownership units (Phase
ITA), and settled on the sale of a 16.7 acre parcel to a private developer for
development as 128 market rate homeownership units.

e PHA submitted 16 disposition applications during this past year to permit the
transfer of 170 scattered site properties. Along with other properties
assembled by PHA affiliates, and private purchasers/developers, they will be
used for the development of 246 homeownership units (of which 190 are
affordable) 209 rental units; and 3 commercial/retail projects.

e Finally, PHA undertook a wide range of master planning efforts in
neighborhoods adjacent to or near PHA developments. Plans are under
development for Brewerytown, Bucknell/Judson, Mantua, Diamond Street,
Millcreek Extension and many other areas.
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Accomplishment #1 | Secured an additional $31.5 million in leveraged funds
including private equity and state and local funding.

Accomplishment #2 | Completed substantial rehabilitation of 133 units and
12,000 sq. ft. senior service facility at Germantown
House.

Accomplishment #3 | Completed construction and sales of 90 affordable
homeownership units at MLK Plaza.

Accomplishment #4 | Completed sales of 122 affordable homeownership
units at Greater Grays Ferry.

Accomplishment #5 | Closed on $38.7 million in real estate transactions.

Accomplishment #6 | Completed construction of 14 modular Energy Star
Homes at Ludlow Scattered Sites.

Accomplishment #7 | Completed construction of 50 rental units and 25
affordable homeownership units at Lucien E. Blackwell
Homes.

Accomplishment #8 | Completed design and commenced construction of 28
affordable homeownership units at Falls Ridge.

Accomplishment #9 | Secured $3.5 million grant to support redevelopment of
Liddonfield.

Accomplishment #10 | Undertook master planning efforts in neighborhoods
throughout the City.
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Strategic Operating Plan Goal 4: Implement Public Safety Programs That
Promote the Well-Being Of Qur Neighborhoods and the Accountability of

Program Participants.

PHA’s public safety focus under Strategic Operating Plan Goal 4 encompasses
management of security for all PHA housing communities, offices and other
facilities. In addition, PHA provides a range of public safety related services
including support for resident crime prevention efforts, investigation of complaints,
coordination of lease compliance activity, criminal records checks and other critical
task. These services include management of private security contracts that provide
security at 33 PHA locations throughout the City.

PHA’s public safety tasks were made much more difficult over recent months by the
combination of a reduced workforce as a result of budget reductions and a
dramatically surging crime rate throughout the City of Philadelphia. PHA takes
great pride in reporting that, in spite of the citywide increase in crime, PHA
communities remain relatively safe. Key public safety accomplishments and
highlights from MTW Year Six include:

e While Philadelphia as a whole is undergoing an extremely serious crime rate
increase, reported crimes for PHA developments actually decreased over the
past year. The level of Part I crimes, which encompasses the most serious
and violent crime categories, at PHA developments decreased slightly by
0.4%. Part II crimes, however, plummeted by 58%. This category includes
primarily non-violent crimes such as fraud, simple assault, stolen property,
narcotics violations and disorderly conduct.

e PHA continued to work in partnership with the Philadelphia Police
Department and other federal and state law enforcement agencies including
Homeland Security. Regular meetings are held between the PHA Police
Department Chief and the Philadelphia Police Department management to
review crime statistics and identify joint strategies.

e To facilitate this process, PHA collaborated with the Philadelphia Police
Department to install Avencia software, which tracks and analyzes crimes.
Installation of this software allows PHA access to the Philadelphia Police
Department’s Crime analysis databases. PHA will now be able to map,
analyze and even anticipate emerging crime patterns in and around PHA
developments.

e Upgrades and installations of digital security equipment continued during this
period at Wilson Park Community Center, Cambridge Plaza III, Germantown
House, Greater Grays Ferry, John Street Community Center and the Bartram
Warehouse.

e PHA Police Department staff conducted over 9,100 criminal records checks
as required by federal and local policy. This process helps to strengthen the
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fabric of Philadelphia’s neighborhoods by screening out serious criminal
offenders from participation in the HCV program.

e As part of its lease compliance efforts to promote quality of life in public
housing, PHAPD continued to implement expedited complaint and
investigation processing procedures. In the past year, 290 public housing
related investigations were conducted, resulting in 115 cases referred for
follow-up action including evictions and/or criminal complaints.

e PHA Police, Asset Management and Legal staff collaborated on 1,687 court
cases with very high results favoring PHA. While 185 evictions were
enforced as a result of these court cases, a much higher number resulted in
settlements which involved payments of overdue balances to PHA totaling
over $1.3 million.

e PHA responded to reported incidents and complaints involving the HCV
program. During the past year, PHA conducted 1,024 investigations of
which 294 resulted in a request for termination. The balance were
successfully resolved, unsubstantiated or found to be related to non-HCV
tenants or property.

e PHAPD received a $150,000 grant to support its Gang Resistance Education
and Training (GREAT) program. This grant will help teach PHA youths to
overcome peer pressure regarding drug use and learn conflict resolution
skills.

e As part of its collaboration with local law enforcement, PHA continued
operation of a voucher program to assist victims and witnesses to violent
crime identified by the District Attorney’s office.

e PHA continued to provide enhanced Tenant Responsibility MTW Training.
As part of its local leased housing MTW program initiative, PHA requires all
Housing Choice Voucher Program participants to participate in Tenant
Responsibility Training at both the initial lease-up and at every recertification
period. This effort will help improve residents’ understanding of their roles
and responsibilities as good neighbors and PHA program participants.
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Accomplishment #1

Achieved a small but highly significant decrease in Part
1 crimes at PHA sites.

Accomplishment #2

Achieved a 58% reduction in Part IT crimes at PHA
sites.

Accomplishment #3

Continued partnerships with Philadelphia Police
Department, the Department of Homeland Security,
Narcotics Task Force, DEA and HUD-OIG to ensure
coordination of resources and effort.

Accomplishment #4

Installed digital security equipment at various sites.

Accomplishment #5

Conducted criminal records checks on over 9,100
households members.

Accomplishment #6

Secured $150,000 grant to support the GREAT program
for PHA youth.

Accomplishment #7

Collaborated on 1,687 court cases resulting in 185
evictions and in payments to PHA of over $1.3 million.

Accomplishment #8

Collaborated with Philadelphia Police Department to
install state-of-the-art crime tracking and analysis
software.

Accomplishment #9

Continued to operate the voucher program in
collaboration with the District Attorney’s office to assist
in the relocation of victims or witnesses to violent crime.

Accomplishment #10

Conducted over 1,000 investigations related to the HCV
program, of which 294 resulted in a request for
termination.
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Strategic Operating Plan Goal 5: [Engage Other Institutions to Leverage
Resources and Assist In Promoting Economic Enhancement and Support Services
for PHA Residents.

Strategic Operating Plan Goal 5 incorporates the numerous programs and activities
undertaken by PHA and its network of community partners to promote resident
economic self sufficiency, encourage the healthy development of children, support
seniors and people with disabilities, and maximize resident potential for independent
living.

Programs under this goal area include affordable homeownership, youth and senior
programs, employment training and job placement initiatives. Because the scope of
need among PHA residents is so great, PHA cannot do this job alone. Therefore,
central to PHA’s approach is leveraging resources, collaborating with resident
leadership, and partnering with qualified agencies and institutions to bring the best
available program services to PHA residents.

PHA’s Communication Department supported and enhanced these efforts through
community events, media spots and publications including the successful “PHA
Experience” quarterly resident newspaper. These efforts are designed to promote
resident awareness of community opportunities, to promote positive role models, to
inform residents of PHA policy issues, and to strengthen and reshape PHA’s image
in the larger community.

Through the non-profit Tenant Support Services Inc. (TSSI), PHA expanded efforts
to involve public housing and other community residents in improving PHA
communities. TSSI is an integral partner in all of PHA’s service planning and
implementation initiatives.

Major accomplishments related to this goal area through MTW Year Six include:

¢ PHA’s groundbreaking affordable homeownership program continued to
grow during the past year. To date, the Home Sales Department has sold 767
homes, of which 212 took place in Year Six.

¢ The marketplace has consistently validated the quality and affordability of
PHA homes. At Greater Grays Ferry, 122 homes are sold. At Martin Luther
King Plaza, all 90 Phase I and II homes are sold. To date, all 65 homes in
Phases I and II at Lucien E. Blackwell have sold out. In Phase III, 18 sales
have occurred.

o As part of the home sales activity, PHA expanded its HCV Homeownership
Program to 158 homes, including 53 in the past year. Thirty-nine (39) of
these sales were to families with disabilities.
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e Under the Section 5(h) Scattered Site homeownership program, eight (8) new
sales occurred during the year, raising the overall total to 118 home sales to
existing public housing residents.

e More than 1,300 low and moderate-income households participated in PHA
sponsored first-time homebuyer workshops. = PHA has also established
working partnerships with 26 certified housing counseling agencies and many
major regional banks including Wachovia, Bank of America, Citizens,
Commerce and Sovereign Banks.

e PHA implemented a Resident Mortgage Assistance Program (RMAP)
comprehensive benefit package to assist residents in achieving
Homeownership by providing closing cost assistance, writing down the cost
of the home and providing free financial counseling.

e PHA continued to operate the Pre-Apprenticeship Training Program initiative
in partnership with the building trade unions. This past year, 39 residents
graduated from the program. The program has increased its curriculum areas
to include career educational opportunities with industrial employment at:
Gamesa Windmill Plant, Aker Shipyard, PECO/Excelon and the Boeing Air
Craft Industrial Plant. General Education Diploma, Adult Basic Education,
Shop and Life Skills are maintained by our staff at our training facilities.
Residents are referred to the Community College of Philadelphia for the
General Education Diploma program for review and testing. The training
program offers two advanced and one intermediate educational class. During
the sixteen (16) program cycles, PHA has sponsored and placed
approximately 260 graduates into the Building trades.

e PHA provided an extensive array of employment and social service related
services to residents under the Community Partners program. PHA works
with and provides financial support to Community Partners who provide
employment and training opportunities for PHA residents. Training is or has
been provided in a wide range of industries including medical billing,
building trades, hospitality, pharmacy technician, day care, home
maintenance/repair, certified food handler, commercial drivers license,
administrative assistant job readiness, janitorial/housekeeping, and certified
nursing assistants. Last year, 422 PHA residents enrolled in Community
Partner programs. The average rate of pay for graduates was $10.63 per
hour.

e To date, PHA’s Community Partner programs have produced impressive
graduation figures; 104 residents graduated from the Certified Nursing
Assistant Program; 63 from the Pharmacy Technician Program; and 52 from
the Medical Billing Program.

e As a result of the above-listed initiatives, the number of zero income
households was reduced from 480 families in prior years to 198 families, a
58% reduction. Of that reduction, 305 residents have gained both part-time
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and full-time employment. The compensation for full-time residents
averaged $12.25 per hour.

e PHA continues to expand its services to its senior residents including
providing congregate meals to four (4) PHA senior sites: Wilson Park Senior
Center, Liddonfield Senior Center, Emlen Arms Satellite Center and Point
Breeze (Cassie L, Holly). PHA and the St. Agnes Continuing Care Center
are operating a state-of-the-art senior care center on the premises of one of
PHA'’s largest and newest affordable housing developments, Greater Grays
Ferry Estates. The St. Agnes facility is located on the first floor of PHA’s
brand new 72-unit Conswiller B. Pratt Apartments. It is a comprehensive,
long-term senior care program named “LIFE” (Living Independently For
Elders). LIFE enables participants to live as independently as possible
through a full spectrum of services while keeping PHA residents out of
nursing homes and hospitals. LIFE is a program of all-inclusive care for the
elderly (PACE) and is funded by Medicare and Medicaid.

e PHA expanded its efforts to promote healthy alternatives and educational
attainment for youth, serving 2,530 youth through various programs. PHA
has created partnerships with nine Family Centers, two Cultural Arts
organizations, eight Community-Based Organizations and the Explorers of
the Boy Scouts of America. The Skills for Life program has produced an
impressive 89% success rate based on students who matriculate to the next
grade level. PHA was awarded a grant from the Philadelphia Workforce
Investment Board and the Philadelphia Youth Council to serve 100 youth in
the Experiential and College and Career Exposure Program.

e Case management services focused on attainment of self-sufficiency were
provided to residents of Richard Allen, Falls Ridge, MLK Plaza, Lucien E.
Blackwell and Ludlow Scattered sites. A mentoring demonstration program
at Lucien E. Blackwell is working with 40 residents on a range of issues
including credit repair, GED enrollment, employment readiness and post-
employment support.

e PHA served over 58,000 meals to more than 9,000 low-income children at 26
PHA sites as part of its Summer Food Service Program.

o Transportation services for shopping, medical care and other needs were
provided to approximately 1,900 seniors.
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Accomplishment #1 Assisted 212 households to purchase homes in the past
year, raising the overall total to 767.

Accomplishment #2 Implemented a Resident Mortgage Assistance Program
(RMAP) comprehensive benefit package to assist
residents in achieving homeownership.

Accomplishment #3 Provided first time homebuyer workshops to over 1,300
PHA residents.

Accomplishment #4 Graduated 39 residents from the Pre-Apprenticeship
Program in the past year.

Accomplishment #5 Enrolled 422 residents in the Community Partners
program this year.

Accomplishment #6 Placed 65 residents in Section 3 jobs during the year.

Accomplishment #7 Promoted educational attainment, career exploration and
healthy lifestyles for 2,530 youth involved in the Skills
for Life and other youth programs.

Accomplishment #8 Provided health care, meals, transportation and other
services to over 4,700 seniors at PHA Senior Centers, the
LIFE Program and through other PHA senior programs
this year.

Accomplishment #9 Provided intensive case management services to residents
at HOPE VI and other redevelopment sites.

Accomplishment #10 Achieved a 58% reduction in the number of households
reporting zero income.
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Strategic Operating Plan Goal 6: Improve the Productivity and Cost Effectiveness
of PHA's Operations.

In response to continuing, serious federal budget reductions, PHA’s efforts to
improve productivity and cost efficiency were heavily emphasized over the past
year. Across all departments and levels of the operation, staff engaged in working
groups, discussions and detailed analyses designed to identify cost savings and/or
productivity enhancing opportunities. PHA anticipates that these efforts will
continue at a rapid pace in the new year, especially as they relate to capping soaring
utility costs in the scattered site portfolio and elsewhere. Accomplishments related
to Strategic Operating Plan Goal 6 in MTW Year Six included:

A wide array of energy conservation initiatives took place including
replacement of 887 inefficient commodes with low-water usage models. This
is estimated to save $182,000 per year. PHA also replaced over 4,400
incandescent light bulbs with compact fluorescent bulbs. An estimated
annual cost savings of over $32,000 per year will result from this effort.

Efforts to more tightly manage utility consumption bore fruit. PHA
commissioned an engineering analysis of gas consumption in scattered sites,
which resulted in a reduction in utility allowances or a savings in excess of
$1million annually to PHA.

Over 800 locations were identified with potential water leaks, resulting in
estimated savings of $39,000. Utilities at 216 long-term vacant units were
shut down, resulting in an estimated annual savings of over $57,000. Phone
lines were pared down as well, resulting in annual savings of $31,000.

To promote energy efficiency among residents, PHA has created pilot
programs at three conventional sites. This education-oriented initiative is
targeted to save $66,000 annually. In addition, on a system-wide basis, PHA
continues to implement a series of energy awareness workshops and to
publish related articles in the PHA Experience newsletter.

PHA implemented an agency-wide reduction in force program that has
significantly reduced overall staffing. While this was an extremely difficult
and painful process, PHA believes that the new technologies and asset
management processes implemented over the past years will help facilitate
adjustment to the reduced staffing levels.

In response to the need to increase productivity across the board, PHA
continued implementation of an agency-wide teambuilding initiative.

In the area of Fleet Maintenance, PHA took aggressive cost-savings measures
including reducing the fleet by 142 vehicles. Through more stringent
monitoring systems, fleet-related fuel usage was reduced by 9% over the
previous year.
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e PHA initiated efforts to reduce mailing cost by $0.02 per letter envelope
through a postage discount program offered by PHA’s vendor. The savings
will increase to $0.04 per letter envelope with the next USPS first class rates
increases.

e PHA implemented the first phase of an upgrade of office copier equipment.
This initiative added more functionality to each unit while reducing operating
cost by $15,000 per month. Plans have been developed for the next upgrade
phase, with planned operating cost reduction of an additional $5,000-7,000
per month.

e PHA developed and implemented a marketing plan to liquidate excess
property identified per PHA’s Excess Materials policy. The marketing
strategy includes the use of professional auctioneers. The initial auction of
excess vehicles yielded over $200,000 in revenue.

e PHA re-negotiated a lease property renewals period from five (5) years to
three (3) years to enable PHA more flexibility in utilizing owned vs. leased

property.

e PHA implemented an aggressive process to utilize existing contracts
available in the public domain under which PHA can procure products and
services to meet time critical needs. It is first verified that such public
contracts result from an open solicitation process meeting applicable
procurement regulations as allowed under PHA’s MTW waiver. Use of such
contracts shortens the acquisition and reduces resource demands.
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Accomplishment #1 Reduced utility costs in scattered sites by approximately
$1 million annually.

Accomplishment #2 Reduced water consumption by an estimated $182,000
annually through replacement of outdated bathroom
fixtures.

Accomplishment #3 Reduced electricity consumption by an estimated
$32,000 per year through replacement of incandescent
light bulbs.

Accomplishment #4 Reduced PHA fleet by 142 vehicles.

Accomplishment #5 Achieved a 9% decrease in fuel consumption of PHA
vehicles.

Accomplishment #6 Implemented a pilot energy conservation program at
three conventional sites.

Accomplishment #7 Liquidated excess property resulting in over $200,000 in
revenue.

Accomplishment #8 Expanded use of public domain contracts in order to
reduce procurement time and expense.

Accomplishment #9 Continued team-building initiative to promote
accountability, adherence to agency procedures, and
efficiency.

Accomplishment #10 Modified administrative systems including copiers and
postage usage to achieve savings.
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Strategic Operating Plan Goal 7: Improve Program Compliance, Reporting,
Performance and Accountability.

PHA continued to implement an ambitious quality assurance and compliance
program throughout the organization. All program procedures are documented,
which facilitates the review and/or audit of program transactions. PHA’s Quality
Assurance Department provided quality control reviews of program files, assisted
operating units to assess and re-engineer business practices to promote efficiency,
and provided regular monitoring of strategic goals and objectives. PHA continued to
utilize a sophisticated project management system to track and report on all program
initiatives. This system is updated monthly and reviewed by senior management.
Significant accomplishments related to this goal through MTW Year Six included:

e As evidence of PHA’s outstanding financial management, PHA received an
unqualified audit opinion for its FY 2006 financial statements, its FY 2005
Retirement Income Plan and its FY 2005 Defined Contribution Plan.

e PHA conformed to all required investor and funding source requirements
including timely submission of cost certifications for all Low Income
Housing Tax Credit sites. These actions illustrate the careful attention PHA
pays to conformance to regulatory and other funding covenants.

e Independent audits of sample executed contracts were conducted, resulting in
no findings made.

e PHA continued its commitment to working with minority and woman-owned
businesses. During the past year, PHA awarded 33% of contracts to MBE
and WBE firms (20% MBE, 13% WBE), totaling over $28 million.

e PHA Contracts Administration implemented new procurement card policies
and procedures.

e As an enhancement to its existing HCV quality control process, PHA
implemented new quality control measures for admissions and the public
housing program during the coming year. The PeopleSoft CRM system is
used to review/audit admissions and recertification files and to audit service
order delivery.

o The Quality Assurance Department created updated policies and procedures
for all PHA CRM modules including Field Service, Case Management, and
Correspondence.

e To facilitate tracking and resolution of all client, vendor and partner issues,
PHA implemented a new CRM case management system. All relevant staff
were trained on the system, and it is now in use. Management reports help to
identify trends, open issues and system bottlenecks.
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Accomplishment #1 Received unqualified opinions on PHA 2006 audited
financial statements. :

Accomplishment #2 Received unqualified opinions on the Defined
Contribution and Defined Benefit Plans for 2005.

Accomplishment #3 Met all investor and funding source requirements for
Low Income Housing Tax Credit properties.

Accomplishment #4 Implemented agency-wide CRM case management
software to facilitate tracking and resolution of customer,
vendor and partner issues.

Accomplishment #5 Conducted independent audit of sample contract files
resulting in no audit findings.

Accomplishment #6 Implemented new procurement card policies and
procedures.

Accomplishment #7 Awarded 33% of contract dollars to minority and
woman-owned businesses.

Accomplishment #8 Implemented new CRM Quality Control reviews of
public housing and admissions files.

Accomplishment #9 Implemented new CRM Service Order audit process.

Accomplishment #10 Created updated policies and procedures for all CRM
applications.
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Strategic Operating Plan Goal 8: Maximize the Use of Technology to Improve
Efficiency and Accountability of PHA Operations

As budget pressures have forced PHA to reduce staffing levels, PHA’s focus on
utilization of technology in support of agency operations remains a critical priority.
PHA has established industry-standard network equipment, upgraded or replaced
mission critical software applications, built a qualified and responsive technology
staff, and improved the capacity of all PHA computer users through extensive
training. The primary applications in use at PHA include Oracle/PeopleSoft
Financial Suite, Human Resources Suite and Customer Relationship Management
(CRM). As summarized below, use of CRM technology is an essential component
of PHA’s move towards asset management and ongoing drive to improve efficiency.
Significant accomplishments through MTW Year Six include:

e PHA implemented an agency-wide customer service initiative to improve
response to more than 4,000 calls received daily. This implementation is an
essential component of PHA’s move to asset management principles. Prior
to the PeopleSoft Enterprise Support implementation, customers had to call
numerous phone numbers, often waiting a long time, to reach housing
authority departments, and the PHA had no system for tracking or managing
customer inquires. Now, the system allows callers to reach a unified,
Interactive Voice Response (IVR) system that provides standard answers to
frequently asked questions. Additionally, customers, vendors and Housing
Choice Voucher (HCV) landlords can access specific information regarding
payments and waitlist status.

e A critical element of the IVR system is its integration with the newly
implemented CRM Case Management system. Callers who are unable to
obtain requested information from the IVR system are automatically
connected to appropriate PHA employees for further assistance. The IVR
system is integrated with the CRM system. Calls are automatically routed to
the employee’s workstation with critical customer, vendor and other partner
transaction information pre-entered into the applications. The integrated case
management system tracks calls handled by PHA employees, ensuring that
they resolve each inquiry and reduce paperwork.

e PHA provided training to more than 300 PHA employees on the Customer
Relationship Management (CRM) module including Virtual Call Center Case
Management, Executive Correspondence Case Management, Quality Control
Public Housing, Public Housing Service Order Audit, and Vacancy Tracking.

e PHA implemented the PHA Business Analyst Training Program for technical
aides with computer science, engineering and management information
system backgrounds. This 12-month program provides participants with a
strong foundation in the various PHA technologies, business analysis and
consulting skills. With these skills, participants are ready to take on the
exciting roles of business analysts, functional leads or project managers on
major IT initiatives.
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e To improve the ability to train staff and improve business process efficiency,
PHA installed the Oracle Business Process Architect, which is known as a
Business Process Management tool. The first project to utilize this tool is the
Application Wait List and Eligibility/Public Housing Project (AWE/PH).
When complete, this project will provide one universal application system for
Public Housing, Housing Choice Voucher, Limited Partners and Home
Ownership. This entails combining several business processes into one. The
new software tools provide the structure and location to facilitate this merger
smoothly.

e PHA implemented new and improved management reports designed to
provide accurate, updated or real-time information to key users and
managers. PHA currently supports over 350 reports for more than 1,500
local and remote users. The Business Objects (BO) software tool is a
primary means for the creation and distribution for PHA reports. It is now
available for access to all users through the PHA Intranet Portal. Staff can -
view, run and schedule a variety of reports. These reports include Rent and
Capital Status Reports. The former process for distributing these reports was
entirely manual and proprietary to the departments responsible for the report
data.

e PHA implemented a number of enhancements to its CRM Quality Control
review applications. Staff can access customer files in CRM to conduct file
reviews in both public housing and HCV programs. Using a checklist
functionality created in the CRM system, staff reviewers can determine the
accuracy of tenant benefits and applicability of pertinent policies. The CRM
system produces detailed reports on audit findings including opened and
closed audits, aging summaries, and other information.

e PHA worked to implement the new HUD MTW 50058 reporting system
which provides information on all public housing and HCV participants. The
new system has proven to be extremely difficult to implement as a result of
problems with the HUD PIC test environment. PHA anticipates that regular
reporting will begin in the next year subject to correction of PIC system
problems.

e PHA’s computer operations and data center moved to a new facility in
August 2006. The move was accomplished with minimal down time and
disruption of PHA business operations. In addition to being more spacious
than the old facility, the new facility contains state-of-the-art power and
cooling systems. Moving to this new facility has allowed ISM to improve
system availability and reliability by eliminating disruptions from
environmental factors.

e PHA implemented the Dunn & Bradstreet Online Vendor Locator tool to
increase participation in published solicitations and improve respondent

quality. This service is provided under an existing subscription service from
D&B at no additional cost to PHA.
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Accomplishment #1 Implemented an agency-wide Interactive Voice
Response system.

Accomplishment #2 Implemented an agency-wide case management tracking
system in conjunction with IVR.

Accomplishment #3 Trained more than 300 staff on use of new IVR and case
management modules.

Accomplishment #4 Established a new Business Analyst training program.

Accomplishment #5 Implemented new business process modeling tools.

Accomplishment #6 Upgraded management reporting capabilities through
implementation of Business Objects tools.

Accomplishment #7 Relocated ISM operations to a new facility.

Accomplishment #8 Expanded capabilities of Quality Control system to
encompass public housing operations.

Accomplishment #9 Commenced implementation of PeopleSoft Financials
upgrade project.

Accomplishment #10 Implemented new online vendor locator tools.
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Strategic Operating Plan Goal 9: Maximize Relationships and Initiatives to
Deliver Sound and Effective Services

Strategic Operating Plan Goal 9 focuses on creating and nurturing partnerships to
achieve maximum benefit for PHA residents and program participants. As federal
funding support for HCV and public housing declines relative to need, the
importance of forging partnership in support of PHA’s mission has become even
more important to the agency’s long-term success. Significant accomplishments in
this area through MTW Year Six included:

e In addition to the $1.2 billion in capital funds previously secured, PHA
secured an additional $31.5 million in leveraged financing including $7.8
million in state funds, $23.3 million in Low Income Housing Tax Credit
equity and $400,000 in local funds.

e PHA’s aggressive social service fundraising efforts resulted in receipt of over
$2.6 million in new grant funds from 12 grant programs. New grants
included: $150,000 from the Wachovia Foundation to support after school
programs at the Wilson Park Community Center; $200,000 from the
Philadelphia Youth Council and the Philadelphia Workforce Investment
Board for youth programming activities; $150,000 from the U.S. Department
of Health and Human Services Administration to implement an Amnesty
Program designed to reunite families; $150,000 from the U.S. Department of
Justice to expand services under the Gang Resistance Education and Training
Program; $109,000 for the Philadelphia Corporation for Aging to provide
congregate meals at four PHA senior developments; and, $1.78 million in

" HUD grants for Mainstream, FSS, Neighborhood Networks, Shelter Plus
Care and Congregate Housing Services.

e PHA developed and coordinated a nationwide network of MTW Housing
Authority partners to promote increased support for public housing financial
needs, expansion of MTW to additional cities, and extension of MTW
agreements. The group conducted a conference in Washington involving
MTW agencies, elected officials and HUD Washington staff. Regular group
conference calls are held to share critical information and promote shared
objectives.

e To promote affordable homeownership, PHA continued its highly effective
partnerships with major banks including Wachovia Bank, Bank of America,
Citizens Bank, Commerce Bank, Sovereign Bank and Wells Fargo. PHA
also maintains relationships with 26 certified housing counseling agencies
throughout the city of Philadelphia.

e In an effort to promote quality service and accountability among HCV private
property owners, owners have participated in a mandatory orientation
program offered by the Institute of Real Estate Management. This is a
unique and groundbreaking program that PHA believes results in better
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service to HCV participants and more responsiveness to community
concerns.

e PHA submitted 16 disposition applications to permit the transfer of 170
scattered site properties that were used or will be used, along with other
properties assembled by PHA affiliates, and private purchasers/developers,
for the development of 246 homeownership units, of which 190 are
affordable; 209 rental units; and 3 commercial/retail projects. Sixty-two of
the rental units are designated for senior adults in Philadelphia’s Mantua
community.

e PHA contributed to new construction and/or rehabilitation projects for
Community Development Corporations and continues to participate in
transferring properties to the City of Philadelphia and its affiliated entities,
agencies and authorities for the Neighborhood Transformation Initiative
(NTI) Program.

e PHA continued its collaboration with the Commissioner of Revenue to
review and ensure property owners’ compliance with vendor tax and utility
payments before an owner is accepted into the HCV program. This year,
these efforts resulted in the payment of $6,600 in back taxes to the City of
Philadelphia.

e PHAPD continued to provide support for resident-police partnerships through
the establishment of a Police Advisory Board and the development of Town
Watch programs.
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Accomplishment #1

Secured $7.8 million in new state funds to support PHA
redevelopment initiatives.

Accomplishment #2

Secured $23.2 million in new Low Income Housing Tax
Credit private investor equity contributions to support
PHA redevelopment.

Accomplishment #3

Successfully raised $200,000 for youth programs from
Philadelphia Youth Council and Workforce Investment
Board.

Accomplishment #4

Secured over $1.78 million in HUD social service-
related grants to support economic self-sufficiency,
congregate housing services and other programs.

Accomplishment #5

Obtained a $150,000 federal grant to support the family
unification Amnesty program.

Accomplishment #6

Developed plans to transfer 170 scattered site properties
to entities that will develop 246 homeownership units,
209 rental units and 3 commercial projects.

Accomplishment #7

Partnered with the Commissioner of Revenue to capture
$6,600 in back taxes due to the City from HCV owners
for the past year.

Accomplishment #8

Created partnerships in support of affordable
homeownership with local banks and housing
counseling agencies.

Accomplishment #9

Coordinated collaboration of MTW agencies in support
of shared objectives.

Accomplishment #10

Supported resident-police partnerships through the
Police Advisory Board and Town Watch programs.
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MOVING TO WORK YEAR SIX ANNUAL REPORT
PART TwO: PLANNED VS ACTUAL




SECTION 2: HOUSEHOLDS SERVED

This section provides information about the types of units and the characteristics of families served
by and on the waiting list for the Philadelphia Housing Authority (PHA) in the MTW Baseline
Year and Year Six in Public Housing (Conventional Scattered Sites, Low-Income Housing, Tax
Credit, and Alternative Management Entities Properties) and the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV)
Program.

A. Number and Characteristics of Households Served

In PHA’s Year Six Plan, PHA projected serving a total of 13,733 households in the public housing
program. The actual number of households served in the public housing program as of March 31,
2007 was 13,870. ‘

PHA projected that it would serve 14,850 households in the MTW Tenant-based HCV program.
As of March 31, 2007, the actual number of households served in this program was 14,850. An
additional 1,467 households were served in the non-MTW HCV programs including Moderate
Rehab.

With the addition of 2,579 MTW Activity Vouchers, the total households served in MTW Year
Six was 32,766, which exceeded the Year Six Plan target of 32,513.

1. Unit Size of PHA Households.

The Baseline Year unit sizes for PHA households are presented in Table 2-1, followed by Year

Six. The number of households by bedroom size increased in almost all categories over the
number provided in the Baseline Year.

Table 2-1. Baseline Year Number and Unit Size for All PHA Households.

Housing Type/ Efficiency One Two Three Four Five: Six Total
Program Bdrm | Bdrm | Bdrm | Bdrm | Bdrm | Bdrm
Conventional 499 1,580 2,756 2,335 517 89 8 7,784
Scattered Sites 0 34 531 2,327 663 602 237 4,394
HCV Housing 506 2,152 3,169 5.434 918 195 50 12,424
Program Total 1,005 3,766 6,456 10,096 2,098 886 295 24,602
Distribution % 4% 15% 26% 41% 9% 4% 1% 100%
Source: PHA CCS. October 1, 2001.
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Table 2-2. Year Six. Number and Unit Size for All PHA Households.

Typepeansam | Beney | gt | parm | parm | Birm | pam |S%Pdrm| Tol
Conventional 305 1,401 2,413 2,199 515 77 10 6,920
Scattered Sites 26 162 643 2,312 581 520 196 4,440
LIHTC' 0 493 425 395 89 2 0 1,404
AME? 0 369 267 384 77 9 0 1,106
HCV Housing 424 2,674 3,997 7,310 1,335 577 0 16,317

Program Total 755 5,099 7,745 12,600 2,597 1,185 206 30,187
Distribution %! 2.5% 17% 26% 42% 8.5% 4.0% <1% 100%

Source: PHA CCS.

March 31, 2007.

! Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) properties. PHA managed.
2 AME — Alternatively Managed Entity

2.

Composition by Family Type of PHA Households.

The number and type of households served by PHA in MTW Baseline Year and Year Six are
presented in Tables 2-3 and Table 2-4. Family households continue to represent the majority of
households served by PHA in Year Six. Elderly and disabled households represented 18% and
24% of the remaining households served respectively.

Table 2-3. Baseline Year Composition by Family Type

for All PHA Households.
Housing Percent
. Percent Percent . Percent | Program

Type/ Family Families Elderly Elderly Disabled Disabled | Totals Program
Program Totals
Conventional 4,121 53% 2,168 28% 1,495 19% 7,784 100%
Scattered Sites 2,240 51% 1,058 24% 1,096 25% 4,394 100%
HCV Housing 8,186 66% 1,430 12% 2,808 22% 12,424 100%

P"’T’{)';‘l‘; 14547 | 59% | 4,656 | 19% 5,399 22% | 24602 | 100%
Source: PHA CCS, October 1, 2001.

Table 2-4. Year Six Composition by Family Type
for All PHA Households.
Housing
. Percent Percent . Percent Program |(Percent Program

;I"g;-am Family Families Elderly Elderly isabled Disabled Totals Totals
Conventional 3,644 52% 1,649 24% 1,627 24% 6,920 100%
Scattered Sites; 2,201 50% 1,255 28% 984 22% 4,440 100%
LIHTC ' 755 54% 466 33% 183 13% 1,404 100%
AME? 942 85% 97 9% 67 6% 1,106 100%
HCV 9,926 61% 2,129 13% 4,262 26% 16,317 100%

P"’%‘:ﬁ; 17,468 58% | 5596 | 185% | 7,123 | 23.5% 30,187 100%
Source: PHA CCS. March 31, 2007
L ow-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) properties. PHA managed.
2AME — Alternatively Managed Entity
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3. Income Groups

The income groups for PHA households in the MTW Baseline Year and Year Six are presented in
Tables 2-5 and 2-6. The vast majority of PHA residents have incomes below 30% of the area
median income (“AMI”) level. PHA continued to meet the MTW Demonstration Agreement
requirement that at least 75% of the families assisted under MTW be very low-income families.
The percentage of households earning less than 30% of AMI has increased since the baseline year,
which reflects the continuing strong demand for affordable housing among Philadelphia’s poorest
residents.

Table 2-5. Baseline Year Income Levels for All PHA Households.

Housing Type/ Below 30% Between 30% Between 50% Over 80%

Pr mf P Median and 50% and 80% Median Total
o8 Income Median Income | Median Income Income
Conventional 6,488 978 255 63 7,784
Scattered Sites 3,391 668 263 72 4,394
HCV Housing 10,101 1,916 387 20 12.424
Program Totals 19,980 3,562 905 155 24,602
Percentage 81% 14% 4% <1% 100%
Source: PHA CCS. October 1, 2001.
Table 2-6. Year Six Income Levels for All PHA Households.
. Below 30% |Between 30% and [Between 50% and o
Housing Type/ Median 50% Median 80% Median O\'/er 80% Total
Program Median Income
Income Income Income

Conventional 6,177 570 140 33 6,920
Scattered Sites 3665 556 176 43 4,440
LIHTC! 1042 312 45 5 1,404
AME? 713 225 77 91 1,106
HCV Housing 13,958 2,018 325 16 16,317
Program Totals 25,555 3,681 763 188 30,187
Percentage]  84.5% 12% 2.5% <1% 100%

Source: PHA CCS. March 31, 2007.
' ow-Income Housing Tax Credit (LTIHTC) properties. PHA managed.
2AME — Alternatively Managed Entity

4. Program/Housing Types for All PHA Households

PHA housing by program types for MTW Baseline and Year Six are presented in Table 2-7.
The total number of households increased over the Baseline Year by 30% in Year Six. A
significant increase was observed in the number of PHA households funded under the Housing
Choice Voucher Program, which increased by 38% over the Baseline Year. The number of
households served under the Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) also increased.
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Table 2-7. Baseline Year and Year Six Program/Types

for All PHA Households.
Baseline Year Year Five

Housing ° o
Type/Program Total %o Total Yo
Conventional 7,784 32% 6,920 23%
Scattered Sites 4,394 18% 4,440 15%
LIHTC!® 0 0% 1,404 5%
AME? 0 0 1,106 3%
HCV Housing 12,424 50% 16,317 54%
Program Total 24,602 100% 30,187 100%

Source: PHA CCS. October 1, 2001; March 31, 2007.
1 ow-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) properties. PHA managed.
2AME — Alternatively Managed Entity

5. Races and Ethnicity

Tables 2-8 thru 2-10 present the race/ethnicity of Heads of Households of PHA residents in the
MTW Baseline and Year Six. African-Americans continue to represent the majority of households
served by PHA (89%), followed by white (6.5%). Of the approximate 30,317 heads of PHA

households, (4%) identify themselves as being of Hispanic ethnicity.

Table 2-8. Baseline Year Race/Ethnicity for All Heads of PHA Households.

African Asian/Pacific
Housing Type/Program Amel?c -n White Hispanic |Island & Native| Other Total
tea American
Conventional Housing 7,425 252 90 14 3 7,784
Scattered Sites 3,901 37 448 5 3 4,394
HCV Housing 10,765 1.129 337 115 78 12,424
Program Totals| 22,091 1,418 875 134 84 24,602
Percentage Distribution| 90% 6% 4% <1% <1% 100%
Source: PHA CCS. October 1, 2001.
Table 2-9. Year Six Race for All Heads of PHA Households.
Housing Asian/Pacific
African- . Spanish Island &
Type/Progra American White American Native Other Total
m American
Conventional| 6 595 183 124 15 3 6,920
ousing
Soaered 4,037 34 361 6 2 4,440
ites
o 13,739 1,721 578 107 172 16,317
ousing
LIHTC® 1,375 S 16 1 3 1.404
AME? 1,048 38 2 18 0 1.106
Program
Totals 26,794 1,985 1,081 147 180 30,187
Tercemtage | 89% 6.5% 3.5% <1% <1% 100%
Source: PHA CCS. March 31, 2007.
'L ow-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) properties. PHA managed
2AME — Alternatively Managed Entity
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Table 2-10. Year Six Ethnicity of Heads of Households of
Public Housing and Housing Choice Youchers

Housing . . Non-
Type/Program Hispanic Hispanic Total
Conventional 134 6,786 6,920
ousing
Scattered Sites 325 4,115 4,440
HCV Housing 778 15,539 16,317
LIHTC' 21 1,383 1.404
AME? 2 1.104 1.106
Program
Totals 1,260 28,927 30,187
Percentage
Distribution 4% %6% 100%

B. Changes in Tenant Characteristics.

While the overall number of households served by PHA has significantly increased since the
baseline year, the demographic composition of households has remained relatively constant.

C. Changes in the Waiting List Numbers and Characteristics.

This section provides information about the types of units and the characteristics of families on the
PHA Waiting List for housing units in MTW Year Six at Public Housing (both conventional and
scattered sites) and with the Housing Choice Voucher Program, formerly known as the Section 8
Program.

At the end of Year Six, the waiting lists contained 49,307 applicant households, reflecting the
strong need for affordable housing in Philadelphia. The number of applicants on the waiting list
for HCV Housing/Housing Choice Vouchers decreased significantly reflecting the fact that the
HCV waiting list has been closed to most new applicants as well as the high level of voucher
issuance and leasing activity that occurred over the past few years.

As this report was being prepared, PHA was in the final stage of a public housing waiting list
update. PHA anticipates that the total number of households on the waiting list will significantly
decline as a result of households failing to respond to the update notices. This decline will be
temporary as the demand for affordable housing remains very strong.

1. Unit Size Need by Waiting List Applicants.

Table 2-11 indicates that efficiency, two and three bedroom units are the most sought units;
furthermore Table 2-12 indicates that more applicant households are on the Waiting List for Public
Housing than HCV Housing in comparison to the numbers presented in the Baseline Year.
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Table 2-11. Baseline Year Composition by Bedroom Size Need
for All Waiting List Applicants for PHA Housing.

Housing One Two Three Four Five Six Not Total
Type/Program | Bedroom | Bedroom | Bedroom | Bedroom | Bedroom | Bedroom | Specified
Public Housing 255 3,760 662 106 12 5 2,391 7,191
HCV Housing 176 3.297 1,720 343 55 1 12.989 18.587
Program Total| 431 7,057 2,382 449 67 12 15,380 25,778
Percentage ), 27% 9% 2% <1% <1% 60% | 100%
Distribution
Source: PHA CCS. October 1, 2001.
Table 2-12. Year Six Composition by Bedroom Size Need
for All Waiting List Applicants for PHA Housing.
Housing Efficienc One Two Three Four Five Six Total
Type/Program Y| Bedroom |Bedroom| Bedroom | Bedroom | Bedroom |Bedroom
Public Housing" 8,124 4,262 18,255 11,109 2,060 218 29 44,057
HCV Housing 1,275 150 1.808 1,578 387 46 6 5,250
Program Totals'| 9,399 4,412 20,063 12687 2,447 264 35 49,307
Percentage 150, | 9o, | 40% | 26% 5% | <1% | <1% 100%
Distribution|

Source: PHA CCS. March 31, 2007.

. ! Public Housing program includes conventional, scattered and LIHTC sites.

2. Composition by Family Type of Waiting List Applicants.

Tables 2-13 and 2-14, indicate that the majority of applicants on the waiting lists are families

(78%), followed by disabled (15%), and elderly (7%).

Table 2-13. Baseline Year Composition by Family Type for All Waiting
List Applicants for PHA Housing.

Housing Famil Percent Elderl Percent Disabled Percent Total I—F Zrce:t
Type/Program Y | Families y Elderly Disabled "I.‘o%;lsm
Public Housing 4,265 59% 258 4% 2,668 37% 7,191 100%
HCV Housing 13,246 71% 1,645 9% 3.696 20% 18,587 100%
Pr?rg;;’;; 17,511 | 68% 1,93 | 7% 6,364 25% 25778 | 100%
Source: PHA CCS. October 1, 2001.
Section 2 Households Served Page 39
MTW Year Six Report May, 2007




Table 2-14. Year Six Composition by Family Type for All Waiting Lists

Applicants for PHA Housing.

Housing Family | DeTCent | piaeny | Percent | o cblea | Fereent | o li'?gc::x:l
Type/Program Families Elderly Disabled Totals
Public Housing | 35,037 | 80% 2,625 6% 6,395 14% 44,057 100%
HCV Housing | 3.631 | 69% 603 1% 1.016 20% 4,167 100%
P'?r%:t‘;‘l‘; 38,668 | 78% 3,228 7% 7,411 15% 49,307 100%

Source: PHA CCS, March 31, 2007.

! Public Housing program includes conventional, scattered and LIHTC sites.

3. Income Levels of Waiting List Applicants

In the Baseline Year, 77% of applicant households were below 30% of area median income
(“AMI™). As of March 31, 2007, the percentage of households below 30% AMI increased to

92%
Table 2-15. Baseline Year Income Levels for All Waiting List
Applicants for PHA Housing.
()
Housin Below 30% Be;:lvges“of/o 7 | Between 50% and| Over 80%

ng Median 7 80% Median Median Total

Type/Program Median

Income Income Income

Income
Public Housing 6,450 618 115 8 7,191
HCV Housing 13,514 3.483 1.244 346 18,587
Program Totals 19,964 4,101 1,359 354 25,778
Percentage 77% 16% 5% <2% 100%

Source: PHA CCS, October 1, 2001.

Table 2-16. Year Six Income Levels for All Waiting List
Applicants for PHA Housing.

Between 30% | Between 50%
[1) o,
Housing Type/ Below 3 0% and 50% and 80% Over ?0 %
Median . . Median Total
Program Median Median
Income Income
Income Income
Public Housing 40,447 3,149 421 40 44,057
HCYV Housing 4,777 438 32 3 5.250
Program Totals! 45,224 3,587 453 43 49,307
Percentage 92% 7% <1% <1% 100%

Source: PHA CCS, March 31, 2007.
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4. Program/Housing Type Requested by Waiting List Applicants.

Table 2-17. Baseline Year and Year Six Program/Types for All

Waiting List Applicants for PHA Housing.

Baseline Year Year Six
Housing Type/Program Total % Total %
Public Housing 7,191 28% 44,057 89%
HCV Housing 18,587 72% 5.250 11%
Program Total 25,778 100% 49,307 100%

Source: PHA CCS. October 1, 2001; March 31, 2007.

5. Race/Ethnicity of Waiting List Applicants

The racial/ethnic composition of household applicants remained relatively unchanged. PHA
plans to continue its outreach to Hispanic and other non African-American minorities to
increase ethnic diversity.

Table 2-18. Baseline Year Composition by Race/Ethnicity for All Waiting List
Applicants for PHA Housing.

Asian,

. . Pacific
Program Type Afnc.an- White Span.l sh Island & Other Total

American American .
Native
American

Public Housing 6,676 223 216 35 41 7,191
HCV Housing 15.425 1.961 558 72 571 18.587
Total| 22,101 2,184 774 107 612 25,778
Percentage of Total 8% 3% <1% 2% 100%

Source: PHA CCS. October 1, 2001.

Table 2-19. Year Six Composition by Race for All Waiting List

Applicants for PHA Housing.

Housing African- Spanish Asian/Pacific
Type/Progra . White pan Island & Native Other Total
American American .

m American

%“bhf’ 40,264 1,253 2,288 198 54 44,057
ousing '

ECV. 4,555 513 105 26 51 5.250
ousing

Program

Totfls 44,819 1,766 2,393 224 105 49,307

Percentage 91% 3% 5% <1% <1% 100%

Distribution

Source: PHA CCS. March 31, 2007.
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Table 2-20. Year Six Composition by Ethnicity for All Waiting List

D. Impact of MTW on Households Served.

Applicants for PHA Housing.

Public Housing and Housing Choice Vouchers

Housing

Non-

Type/Program Hispanic Hispanic Total
Public Housing 2,492 41,565 44,057
HCV Housing 168 5,082 5.520
52‘:51‘:““ 2,660 46,647 | 49,307

The total number of households served has increased significantly under MTW from 24,602
households at the MTW Demonstration Program initiation to 30,187 at the close of Year Six.
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SECTION 3: ADMISSIONS AND OCCUPANCY POLICIES

A. Changes in Concentration of Lower-Income Families by Program.

Deconcentration — Under the Year One Plan, PHA proposed efforts to raise the income of current
residents, attract a greater mix of incomes through expanded and integrated community policing
and lease enforcement efforts, improve conditions in developments and communities where PHA
housing exists, and avoid concentrations of low-income residents. This has proven difficult, as
Philadelphia has suffered a population decline for many years, with the largest losses at the middle
and higher income levels.

Under the Year Two Plan, PHA began to integrate all homeownership programs, including
homeownership in the HOPE VI mixed-finance developments, into the MTW Family Program.
An essential component of two HOPE VI housing revitalization efforts are to increase economic
diversity and expand participation in PHA initiatives. The Falls Ridge (formerly Schuylkill Falls)
and Martin Luther King HOPE VI developments seek to increase the diversity of participants in
MTW initiatives by offering market rate units.

In Year Three, PHA broke ground for the Lucien E. Blackwell development (formerly Mill
Creek), which continues the strategy of integrating homeownership and rental using tax credit
financing. Lucien E. Blackwell units will also be offered in settings that are less dense and rely on
significant off-site opportunities.

Currently, assisted homeownership programs are limited to households typically earning no more
than 80% of median income. The goal is to establish mixed-income communities in neighborhoods
where severely distressed housing developments formerly existed. In past MTW Years, PHA
proposed homeownership opportunities for households with incomes up to 150% of median
income at the Martin Luther King and Falls Ridge HOPE VI sites. In the Year 3 Plan approval
HUD declined to approve this option, therefore PHA will provide housing opportunities in
accordance with limits prescribed by the regulations and did not provide housing opportunities to
those households with incomes greater than 80% of median income.

PHA’s MTW Family Program is intended to increase incomes of families currently using PHA
housing assistance. In Year Five, PHA continued to offer the pre-apprenticeship, nursing and
health administration programs to families in public housing. These programs are designed to
provide existing residents with the skills to enter the construction and health fields. Additional
programs are daycare training, GED preparation, job placement, certified food handler, home
maintenance and repair, youth development, and hospitality industry training, offered by new and
existing Community Partners.

In MTW Year Five, significant activity was initiated in the Community Partners Program,
following the procurement process to obtain partners in the previous year. This program is
directed toward establishing service, job-training, and job opportunity partnerships for PHA
residents. Initially families served by the Community Partners Program were HCV clients. PHA
expanded the Community Partners into public housing and HOPE VI residents during Year 5.
PHA expects that the increase in training and employment options provided by Community
Partners will contribute to the deconcentration of poverty.
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In Year 5, PHA developed 40 units in Phase I and 25 Units in Phase II for Homeownership in the
Lucien E. Blackwell development. These are the highest quality homes, built by PHA, a national
leader in affordable housing. All homes at Blackwell feature a driveway for off street parking,
central air conditioning, plush carpeting, garbage disposal, dishwasher, washer-dryer hook-ups,
cable and telephone outlets in each bedroom and living room. PHA has created wealth for low and
moderate-income residents through homeownership opportunities. Sixty-five (65) units were sold
during MTW year 5.

In Year 5, PHA constructed 125 homeownership units for sale at the Greater Grays Ferry Estates.
Greater Grays Ferry Estates has all the beauty and security of a newly built development, while
connecting with the wider neighborhood. In Year 6, one hundred and twenty-two (122) units were
sold including two (2) units to former Tasker, relocated residents through PHA’s lease-to-purchase
program.

In Year 5, PHA opened its third site for homeownership at the Martin L. King Development. As
of March 31, 2007, all units were under Agreements of Sale.

PHA initiated mobility counseling activities in Year 3. PHA continued to provide relocation
assistance to families relocating as a result of HOPE VI and other revitalization programs. The
relocation process and support provided to families by PHA has also contributed to
deconcentration.

Expanded and integrated community policing and lease enforcement efforts are intended to
improve conditions in developments and communities where PHA housing exists and to attract a
greater mix of incomes.

PHA adopted and implemented a written policy to encourage participation by owners of units
located outside areas of poverty and minority concentration. Supportive services and training are
provided to certificate and voucher holders who are interested and are seeking housing
opportunities in other areas.

B. Changes in Rent Policy.

Rent Simplification -- Incentives to Promote Family Self-Sufficiency. In Year Three, PHA
adopted Rent Simplification as part of a comprehensive program in public housing and HCV to
restructure the rent computation process and change the annual and interim review processes. The
PHA Board adopted the rent simplification package in January of 2004 after a long period of
public and resident meetings. (PHA held two public hearings and approximately 50 other meetings
with resident groups.) The Rent Simplification Program for Public Housing includes the following:

e Retains the income exclusions required by other federal legislation.
e Self-certification of assets and asset income at initial occupancy and at recertification with
the first $500 of asset income excluded from the calculation of annual income.

e Elimination of the existing deductions and creation of one new deduction of
$500 for working families.
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e Changes in the calculation of Annual Income for elderly and disabled households with
Medicare/Medicaid/health insurance payments, the full amount of the health insurance
payments will be deducted from income prior to the calculation of the rent.

e Calculation of the total tenant payment with a reduced percentage of monthly adjusted
income using a tiered formula based on family size:

o Household Size 1 — 2 persons: Rent is 28% of adjusted monthly income
o Household Size 3 — 4 persons: Rent is 27% of adjusted monthly income
o Household Size 5+persons: Rent is 26% of adjusted monthly income

Maintenance of the current program for application of utility allowances

Recertification for all families once every 24 months.

Ceiling rent families may be recertified every 36 months.

Elimination of the need to report increases in income that occur between regularly

scheduled recertifications, however, if income decreases between regularly scheduled re-

certifications, residents may still request an interim recertification.

e Requirement for PHA participants reporting zero income to document zero income every
90 days.

e After a 90-day grace period, a $50 minimum rent will apply to families reporting zero
income. The minimum rent will also apply to any tax credit units assisted by PHA.

e Households headed by or consisting of seniors or persons with disabilities are exempt from
the minimum rent. Households headed by seniors or persons with disabilities that include
non-senior, non-disabled members who are able to work will still be subject to the
minimum rent.

e Establish a review board to examine any claim of hardship that results from rent
simplification.

e Establish a phase-in period for rent increases in excess of $50 that result from rent
simplification. For rent increases in excess of $50 rent will increase as follows: 50% of the
increase will be applied at the time of the first reexamination under rent simplification and
50% will be applied one year after the first reexamination under rent simplification.

e Revision of the ceiling rent schedule and pegging of ceiling rent to a percentage of the

HCYV Fair Market Rent.

A similar package of changes was also adopted for the Housing Choice Voucher Program. PHA
has completed implementation of the Rent Simplification Program.

Other Changes — PHA adopted an MTW transfer in Year 3. The transfer permits PHA to move a
limited number of families from Public Housing to the HCV program and vice versa. Moves are
limited to 50 families per year for each program (no more than 100 total moves per year). The
transfer permits a more efficient response in certain situations such as request for witness
protection and domestic violence.

At the present time, PHA is in the process of finalizing program guidelines for the previously
approved MTW transfer program, under which PHA has the ability to move up to 50 public
housing households to HCV and up to 50 HCV households to public housing. PHA is also
finalizing guidelines for the previously approved policy modification which allows referral of
public housing applicants to project-based owners.

Blueprint to End Homelessness — PHA revised its preference system to permit up to 400 families
“graduating” from transitional housing facilities to obtain public housing or a housing voucher.
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Adjusted Ceiling Rent adopted in lieu of Market-Based Flat Rent. In Year 3 PHA conducted
preliminary studies on the rental values of public housing units using the HCV rent reasonableness
model. However, the results were not consistent and PHA opted to use an adjusted ceiling rent
approach in lieu of the flat rents for public housing. New ceiling rents pegged to the FMR s were
adopted as part of the rent simplification process described above.

PHA will continue to explore models for market-based rent caps based on quality, location, type
and age of the unit as well as amenities available. PHA continues to keep this as an MTW
initiative and if a workable model is found, PHA may adopt the approach in a future plan year.
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SECTION 4: CHANGES IN HOUSING STOCK

A. Number of units in inventory by program.

Table 4-1. Number of Public Housing Units and HCV Vouchers

In Year Six.
Housing Baseline Year Six Year Six
Programs Year Projection Actual
April 1, March 31, March 31,
2001 2006 2007
MTW Tenant-
Based Vouchers 11,473 14,850 14,850
MTW Activity 0 2,147 2,579
Vouchers :
MTW Subtotal | 11,473 16,997 17,429
Non-MTW
Vouchers! 2 1,032 716
HCV Moderate
Rehabilitation 949 751 751
Public Housing 12,178 13,846 13,870
Units
TOTALPES | 24,602 32,626 32,766

Source: PHA CCS, March 31, 2006.

"Non-MTW Vouchers include special purpose vouchers for the Family Unification Program (FUP),
mainstream vouchers, designated housing Aspen Village and Fishers Crossing.

2Public Housing units include ali occupied units at conventional, scattered site, PAPMC and AME sites.

B. Narrative Explanation of the Differences.

The total actual number of public housing units (15,793) available for Year Six represent a 23%
increase over the number of public housing units (12,178) available in the Baseline Year.
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SECTION 5: SOURCES AND AMOUNTS OF FUNDING
A. Planned Versus Actual Funding Amounts.

Table 5-1 presents the budgeted and actual amounts and sources of funding received by
PHA in MTW Year Six. Sources of funds include those funds previously designated for
vouchers. Under MTW, voucher resources may be redirected to achieve the key
objectives of the MTW Program.

Table 5-1. Summary of Sources and Amounts of Funding
in Year Six.

MTW Year
Revenue Sources M.TW Year Six Actual
Six Budget .
Funding
Dwelling Rental 19,426,341 | $ 18,783,084
Income
Interest Income/Other 767,168 1,309,382
HCV MTW Block 134,864,984 | 142,608,748
Grant
Capital Subsidy
including . 75,640,828 | 69,766,811
Replacement Housing
Factor'
Operating Subsidy 111,059,689 91,794,306
Total Revenues | $341,759,010 | $324,262,331

Includes Replacement Housing Funding.
B. Narrative Discussion of Differences.

The decrease in the operating subsidy was due to public housing authorities nationwide
being funded at less than 100% or at 83% for FYE 3/31/07.

Decreased Dwelling Rental Income is the result of two factors: increases in the utility
allowances for scattered site residents resulting in a lower rent paid by the scattered site
resident and a decrease in the number of occupied units due to demolition and disposition
activities

The increase in interest income was due largely to a higher rate of return on investments
dictated by market forces.

The Capital Fund is formula driven based on standing units and needs. With fewer PHA
standing units and therefore, decreases in the accrual needs and backlog, the resulting
grant award contains fewer capital dollars for PHA. The Capital funds were also subject
to reductions in the federal appropriations.
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C. Consolidated Financial Statement for MTW Year Six.

Table 5-2. Summary of MTW Funds and
Non-MTW Funds in Year Six.

Revenue Sources MTW Year Six MTW Year
Planned Budget Six Actual

Dwelling Rental Income 19,426,341 18,783,084

Interest Income/Other 1,863,631 2,345,199

Section 8 Subsidy and

Admin Fee 149,538,627 147,467,131

Capital Subsidy including

Replacement Housing 75,640,828 69,766,811

Factor

Operating Subsidy 111,059,689 91,794,306

Other Grants 363,981 894,329
Total Revenue $ 357,893,097 331,050,860

Subject to appropriation.
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SECTION 6: USES OF FUNDS

Budgeted Versus Actual Expenditures.

Table 6-1. Planned Versus Actual Consolidated

Budgets in Year Six.

Proiect MTW Year Six MTW Year

! Budget Six Actual
Public Housing 131,253,198 111,886,772
Capital Funds 75,640,828 69,766,811
Housing Choice 150,635,090 148,502,948
Voucher Program
Other Grants 363,981 894,329

357,893,097
TOTAL 331,050,860

B. Narrative/Explanation of Uses of Funds.

PHA’s Moving To Work Agreement envisions a streamlined annual planning and reporting
process, which includes provision in each report of “budgeted vs. actual expenditures by line
item.” Throughout the term of PHA’s MTW participation, PHA has provided this information
through four line items: Public Housing, Capital Funds, HCV, and Other Grants. PHA’s annual
audit, which is submitted to HUD, includes a detailed accounting of these expenditures with a
further breakdown of the line items in the annual MTW report. Accordingly, please refer to that
audit for additional line item detail.

The flexibility of the Moving to Work Demonstration Program has allowed PHA to more
effectively address the critical need for affordable housing in Philadelphia in a variety of new
ways, and in addition to capital programs discussed in Section 7. PHA, for example, increased the
number of families supported through the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Program to a total of
17,074 households.

As part of continuing efforts to use HCV vouchers to support neighborhood revitalization and
economic mobility, PHA partnered with a range of organizations under its new Unit-Based
Subsidy RFP program. This program uses MTW flexibility and allows qualified partners to
request Housing Choice Vouchers, ACC, or other available PHA funds for the repair,
rehabilitation, or construction of new units for neighborhood revitalization efforts. To date PHA
has awarded 929 (412 new construction vouchers and 517 rehabilitation vouchers) to 37 vouchers
qualified partners to support this initiative. Over 646 families now reside in 304 units constructed
and 342 units rehabbed under this program.
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Residents actively participated in various social service, literacy and economic self-sufficiency
programs operated at Blumberg. Since opening the first Self-Sufficiency Center at Blumberg,
PHA MTW Family Service staff and partners have served 7,748 residents. In the last five years of
MTW, 603 households have increased their incomes so that they no longer need HCV subsidies.

PHA continued to operate the Pre-Apprenticeship Training Program initiative in partnership with
building trade unions. Ninety-seven PHA residents graduated in the past year. During the thirteen
cycles PHA has sponsored and placed over 41 graduates into the building trades; 22 carpenters, 3
painters, 9 electricians, 1 drywall finishers, 3 plasterers, 1 sheet metal workers, 2 operating
engineers.

Last year, 55 PHA residents graduated from Professional Healthcare Institute’s (PHI) Certified
Nursing Assistant (CNA) Program. To date, 900 residents have graduated, of which over 90%
obtained employment.

PHA continued its commitment to building the highest quality management staff through
continued technical training and implementation of new streamlined procedures including quality
control reviews. Extensive staff training efforts included training in Low-Income Housing Tax
Credit Compliance, use of PeopleSoft applications, and Niku Project Management training.

In terms of technology investments, PHA has dramatically upgraded the use of computer
technology to expedite and streamline customer service, management reporting and processing of
daily transactions. Specifically, the Information Systems Management (ISM) Department
completed integration of ECS Housing Choice Voucher Housing Assistance Payments (HAP), and
Utility Assistance Payment (UAP) payments to PeopleSoft Accounts Payable (AP) module. This
integration allows all the financial processes to reside in the Peoplesoft financial modules. ISM
staff also completed implementation of Computer-Based Training for Housing Choice Voucher’s
Eligibility Department, and implemented network upgrades including replacing existing network
cabling to improve network speed.

Technology improvements were implemented including new Customer Relations Management
knowledge database modules; integration of legacy HCV systems with PeopleSoft AP in order to
make payments and track financials; extensive work on design and testing of new MTW client
tracking and compliance system; and, a number of network server, infrastructure and desktop
upgrades.

Other applications of the PeopleSoft (CRM) Customer Relations Management module include
client, correspondence, field service, and independent customer database tracking systems such as
incident, investigations, quality of life, risk management and environmental tracking systems.
Initial implementation of these systems started in November 2003. Go live for the various
modules were initiated in 2004.

In addition, PHA conducted extensive activities related to planning and implementation of a new
Interactive Voice Response system. The IVR system implementation will be coordinated with the
implementation of CRM case management and call tracking functionality. IVR implementation
will occur in Year Six.
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C. Reserve Balance and Adequacy of Reserves.

PHA only restates reserves at the end of each fiscal year. As of the fiscal year ending March 31,
2006, PHA’s Low Rent Operating Reserve is estimated at $8,795,082. PHA’s operating reserve as
of year-end March 31, 2007 will not be available until September 2007. However, as a result of
ongoing subsidy reductions, PHA does not anticipate that it will begin the new fiscal year with a
reserve balance.
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SECTION 7: CAPITAL PLANNING

A. Budgeted Versus Actual Expenditures by Property

Table 7-1. Capital Programs: Planned vs. Actual for Year Six

Development Name Scope of Work Estimated Actual
Capital Cost|Expenditures
and
Obligations

Martin Luther King New Development $1,500,000, $1,500,000
Scattered Sites New Development/Infill/Rehab/Modular HousingJ $10,000,000 $0
Greater Grays Ferry Estates (Bond) New Development $165,000,000( $165,000,000
Neumann North Acquisition/Rehab $2,000,000 $0
PHA-Wide Security Upgrades $1,000,000 $0
Queen Lane Security System $800,000 $0
Lucien E. Blackwell Homes (formerly Mili Ck){New Development $15,000,000[ $15,000,000
West Park Elevator upgrades and balcony enclosures $16,000,000 $0
Wilson Park Non-Dwelling $8,000,000; $9,000,000
Norris Apartments Security System $500,000 $0
Germantown House ' Comprehensive Modernization $12,000,000, $12,000,000
Third Party Capital Requests New Development $5,000,000 $0
Fairhill Security System $800,000 $0
Hill Creek Modernizatiion $4,000,000 $t
Queen Lane Boiler $500,000; $2,000,000
Johnson Homes Utilities upgrade $6,000,000, $0
Croydon (Bond) New Development $48,600,000 $0)
Brewery Town ' New Development $7,700,000 $0
Milicreek Extension’ New Development $8,000,000 $0
Johnson Homes Senior Building $6,000,000 $0
Marshall Shephard Village1 New Development $5,000,000 $5,000,000
Ludlow HOPE VI Scattered Sites’ New Development $8,000,000, $8,000,000
Scattered Sites Modular New Development $2,500,000; $2,500,000
Warnock' New Development $7,700,000 $0
PHA-Wide Accessibility Improvements $500,000 $500,000
PHA-Wide Energy Conservation $5,500,000 $500,000
PHA-Wide Sparkle Plus $6,500,000 $535,540
TOTAL $354,100,000/$221,535,540

! Capital Funding needs for HOPE VI and Mixed-Finance Developments.
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MAJOR DEVELOPMENTS

This year PHA has completed construction on 125 homeownership units at LEB III and
MLK II. and completed construction/rehabilitation on 197 rental units at Cambridge III,
Greater Grays Ferry Estates II, Lucien E. Blackwell II, Neumann North, MLK IV and
ADAPT force account..

Abbottsford

PHA successfully completed the demolition of forty-two (42) apartment buildings (402)
units to provide open space for the redevelopment of this portion of the site. PHA was
awarded a HOPE VI demolition grant on July 22, 2004 in the amount of $2,766,000
towards this project. Marketing and feasibility studies are underway to evaluate the
highest and best use for future improvements.

Cambridge Plaza Phase II - $12 million

PHA achieved breakeven, completed cost certification, and received 8609. The place-in-
service process was also completed.

Cambridge Plaza Phase III- $11.4 million

PHA achieved breakeven, completed cost certification, and received 8609. The place-in-
service process was also completed.

Falls Ridge Phase I — $35 million

Negotiations are underway to lease the 12,000 square feet of retail space.

Falls Ridge Phase IIA: $11.5 million

Completed the design and began construction on 28 affordable homeownership units.

Falls Ridge Phase IIB:

Settled on the sale of approximately 16.7 acres of land to private developer, Westrum
Properties.  Construction of 128 market rate homeownership units underway by
Westrum.

GGFE I — $66 million (245 units)

Achieved breakeven, completed cost certification, and received 8609. Completed the
place-in-service process. Completed the sale of 122 Homeownership units. Started the
place-in-service process.
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GGFE PHA OFFICE BUILDING - $8.5 million

Began construction on a 3-story 32,000 square ft. office building with multi-purpose
space and (44) computer training stations.

Germantown House - $23.2 million

Completed construction of the 133 unit comprehensive modernization and a 12,000 sq. ft.
enhanced senior services center. Achieved 100% residential occupancy. Executed lease
agreement with New Courtland for use of the 12,000 sq. ft. space as an enhanced senior
services center.

Liddonfield — $95 million

Received $3,500,000 RACP award from the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. Issued a
RFP for Master Developer for the site.

Lucien E. Blackwell Homes (On-Site) - $41.3 million

Achieved breakeven, completed cost certification, and received 8609. Completed the
place-in-service process.

Lucien E. Blackwell Homes (Off -Site) - $30.6 million

Achieved breakeven, completed cost certification, and received 8609. Completed the
place-in-service process. Achieved 100% residential occupancy. Reached settlement on
all 25 homeownership units.

Lucien E. Blackwell Homes Phase ITI (Off -Site) —$23 million

Completed design and construction of 50 Energy Star Certified rental units. Completed
design and construction of 35 homeownership units.

Angela Court Phase II

Procured Developer and awarded contract. Submitted Rental Term Sheet. Prepared and
submitted evidentiaries.

LEB Street Project - $2.1 million

e Received Hometown and Elm Street grant award of $1.85 million.
e Completed design of safe street surveillance system.
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Ludlow Modular - $2.5 million

e Completed construction of 14 prefabricated modular rental units.
e Received Energy Star certificates
e Achieved 100% residential lease-up.

Ludlow Scattered Sites HOPE VI

o Awarded the design-build Construction Management contract and completed the
designs for the 75 rental and 50 homeownership units.

e Procured MMA to be the equity investor with an private equity commitment of
$12 million
Secured properties and obtained building permits
Completed Mixed finance settlement with HUD and MMA
Issued NTP for 10% Spend down

MLK Phase IT — $34 million
¢ Completed construction of 90 homeownership units.
e Reached settlement on all 90 homeownership units.

MLK Phase I'V - $12 million
e Submitted place-in-service package
e Achieved breakeven and received 8609

Mt. Olivet - $17 million
¢ Achieved breakeven and received 86009.

PASSYUNK HOMES
e Completed design of 80,000 square foot office space and parking for the PHA
e Received disposition approval from HUD.

Richard Allen ITI - $42 million — 178 units
o Submitted placed-in-service package.
e Achieved breakeven and received 8609.

Spring Garden Apartments
e Entered an MOU with Spring Garden CDC to serve as Developer Partner for the
rehab/redevelopment of the present site located between 7% and 8% Streets at
Green Street.

Wilson Park — $8 million
e Completed (6) new through streets with new curbside parking spaces in front of
their homes, enhance lighting and landscaping.
Completed the comprehensive rehabilitation maintenance /management offices.
e Completed design and construction of new ISM server room and offices.
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e Completed Audio Visual multi media upgrade.

e Completed RFP for new pavilion.
7B. Capital Programs PHA-Wide (Partial)

ADAPT

o Successfully completed 504 Compliance audit

Sparkle Plus Program:

e Procurement and installation was coordinated for new awnings at one CBMO and
three Conventional Sites for the 2006 Sparkle Program. These awnings
incorporated the new PHA colors and graphics.

e Procurement and installation was coordinated for two new wall signs and three
post and panel signs under the 2006 Sparkle Program. These signs matched the
new prototype signs installed under the 2005 Sparkle program.

e As-Built Master Site Plans were prepared for all conventional sites. These
incorporated all work under the previous Sparkle Programs up to 2005.

e Site plans of all the conventional sites and the AME sites were provided to
indicate the anticipated work under the 2007 Sparkle Program.

7C. Demolition and Disposition Activities

DISPOSITIONS

Closings/Settlements:

1. Lucien E. Blackwell (LEB) III

2. Habitat For Humanity

3. Philadelphia Housing Development
Corporation (PHDC)

4. Clifford Smith
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MTW Year Six Report

4 PHA properties - Closed: 04/06 - Part
of the development of 35 affordable
homeownership units and 50 rental units
- Sales Price: Nominal Value

4226 Stiles Street — Closed 10/06 — Part
of the development of seven (7)

affordable homeownership units — Sales
Price: $1,000

2041 and 2107 South Cecil Street -
Closed: 11/06 - Part of the construction
or redevelopment of eight (8) single
family homeownership units — Sales
Price: Nominal Value

2160 N. Marston Streets — Closed: 11/06
- Private party handicap accessible ramp
— Sales Price: $500.00
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5. Marshall Shepard Village
LEB IV

6. PHDC

7. Ludlow Hope VI

8. West Philadelphia Financial
Services (Inc.)

9. Redevelopment Authority of
Philadelphia for Chaes Foods, LLC
t/d/b/a C & C Poultry

Submissions (Not Yet Closed):
1. Vernon Lucas
2. New Urban Ventures, LLC

3. Ludlow HOPE VI

4. Ludlow HOPE VI
5.Homeownership Developers LLP
6. Marshall Shepard (LEB IV)

7. West Philadelphia Financial Services
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50 properties — Closed: 01/07 — Part
of the development of 80 rental units —
Sales Price: Nominal Value

Six (6) properties on 16 Street —
Closed: 02/07 — Part of the development
of 20 affordable homeownership units —
Sales Price: Nominal Value

70 PHA properties — Closed: 02/07 —
Part of the development of 75 rental
units and 50 affordable homeownership
units - Sales Price: Nominal Value

1579 Jefferson Street — Closed: 02/07 —
Part of the development of a 308,000
square foot commercial/retail center to
include Lowes Home Center and Shop
Rite grocery chain - Sales Price:
$40,000

15 properties on Diamond and N. 3™
Streets — Closed: 03/07 — Part of the
development of a 50,000 square foot

poultry distribution center — Sales Price:
$40,710

526 N. 31% Street
613 N. 10® Street

4 Properties: 633 W. Oxford, 1407,
1409 & 1411 N. Perth Streets

68 Properties
16 Properties
43 Properties

1579 Jefferson Street
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8. PHDC 6 Properties: 2000, 2004, 2006, 2016,
2020 & 2028 N. 16™ Street

9. PresbyHomes & Services 3212 Mt. Vemon Street

10. CAVA International 1932 Kimball Street

DEMOLITIONS:

1. 2101 N. Woodstock Street — Imminently Dangerous

2. Abbotsford — 3207 Defense Terrace

7E. Utility / Energy Management

The Development Department has a commitment to explore methods and means
to reduce PHA’s utility cost.

Capital Improvements

PHA has targeted replacing 1,035 inefficient toilets (3.8 to 5 gallon per flush)
with newer water saving toilets (1.6 gallon per flush) for a capital cost of $683
K with an annual anticipated savings of $215K. Since the program started,
PHA has replaced a total of 887 toilets for an estimated cost of $585,420, with
an estimated savings of $182K per year. PHA plans to replace the remaining
148 toilets by FY 08.
To reduce our electric consumption PHA has replaced a total of 4,437
incandescent light bulbs (100 Watts) with compact fluorescent lights bulbs at
20 conventional sites for a cost of $38,216; a total estimated savings of
$32,970 per year.
o PHA expanded our program to include replacing the incandescent light
bulbs in our units at our senior sites. This projected is projected to
cost $85K, and save $91K per year. In FY 07, PHA has completed 9
out of 16 sites.
Installed of 22 Solar Panels at Greater Grays Ferry (18) and Lucien E.
Blackwell (4) for a cost to PHA of $134k, a total estimated savings for all 22
Solar Panels for our residents is $ 4,900 per year.

Utility Management

Reviewing the PGW bill in detail each month from April 2006 to February
2007, PHA has saved a total of $16,543.

PHA continues to monitor all homeownership dwellings to ensure that after
settlement all utility bills are transferred into the new owners name.

Started to create benchmark for water usage for 6,000 accounts to monitor
usage, savings, and regular readings from the Philadelphia Water Authority.
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o In FY 07 using the Water Department bill PHA identified over 800
addresses that had potential leaks. After addressing each location
PHA saved approximately $39k.
e Removing excess phone lines and reduce utility cost to PHA:
o By working with the utility companies (electric, gas, and water) PHA
has shut off the 216 long-term vacant units (V9) to eliminate customer
charges. This task was completed in February of 2007, with a
projected savings to PHA of $57,490 per year.
o PHA has approximately 1,400 phone lines that have no usage, shutting
off those phone lines will save an approximate $116,280 per year.
PHA has removed 503 lines in FYO07 for a savings of $$31K per year.
o Energy conservation committee has a contract with ECA to create a program
pilot at three of PHA’s conventional sites to educate residents on methods of
saving energy; this pilot is estimated to save $66k per year.
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SECTION 8: MANAGEMENT INFORMATION FOR OWNED/MANAGED UNITS

A. Vacancy Rates

1. Target: At the time of the submission of the MTW Year Six Plan, PHA reported an
actual vacancy rate of 13.38%. PHA projected that the Adjusted Vacancy Rate would
be 4.53% by the end of MTW Year Six.

2. Actual: As of the end of MTW Year Six (March 31, 2007), the actual vacancy rate is
12.17% and the adjusted vacancy rate is 6.98% (Table 8-1). This is based on a total
unit count of 15,793 (compared to a total unit count of 15,678 at the beginning of Year

Six).
Table 8-1. Vacancy Rates for Year Six.
VACANCIES Baseline Year (4/01/01) | Year Six (3/31/07) -
SITE NUMBER / NAME Actual Adjusted | Actual | Adjusted
Rate % Rate % Rate % Rate %
North Central
001 Johnson Homes 6.58 6.58 2.26 2.26
010 Raymond Rosen Manor - 52.39 0.00 1.38 1.38
117 Raymond Rosen Manor - - - 2.17 0.00
119 Raymond Rosen Manor - New - -
042 Champlost - mod 0.98 0.96 1.96 1.96
049 Morton Homes 1.61 1.21 2.42 2.42
050 Norman Blumberg Apts - mod 59.80 15.20 6.99 6.59
077 Bentley 18.18 18.18 13.13 13.13
North Area
003 Richard Allen Homes - reconfig. 8.67 1.33 1.33 1.33
014 Norris Homes - FA 16.67 16.36 3.40 2.78
015 Harrison Plaza 5.35 5.35 1.67 1.67
020 Spring Garden 3.96 3.47 3.96 3.96
055B Fairhill Apts - mod 17.42 17.42 2.65 2.65
114 Gladys B. Jacobs 1.25 1.25 2.50 2.50
Northeast
023 Liddonfield 23.64 22.34 39.26 38.18
029 Hill Creek - FA 27.16 4.78 3.29 2.99
032 Oxford Village 10.00 5.50 2.50 2.50
034 Whitehall Apts - FA 44.22 0.40 1.21 1.21
066 Holmecrest 3.57 3.57 0.00 0.00
079 Plymouth Hall 26.09 26.09 100 0.00
South Area
002 Tasker Homes - demolished 18.15 16.98 - -
013 Wilson Park - Elderly 39.94 18.45 5.38 5.38
113 Wilson Park - Multi-family (Mod.) - - 4.02 3.57
031 Bartram Village 5.88 5.88 3.25 325
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VACANCIES Baseline Year (4/01/01)} Year Six (3/31/07)
SITE NUMBER / NAME Actual Adjusted Actual | Adjusted
Rate % Rate % Rate % Rate %
061 Paschall Apts 16.29 14.93 6.79 6.79
062 Point Breeze Court 5.63 5.63 141 1.41
West Area
018 Arch Homes 5.48 5.48 0.00 0.00
024 Queen Lane 7.25 7.19 3.62 3.62
035 Haddington Homes 10.14 10.14 2.70 2.70
039 Westpark Apts 25.69 25.69 3.67 3.67
045 Mantua Hall 19.74 19.74 395 3.95
046 Haverford 4.17 4.17 0.00 0.00
063 Katie B. Jackson(9 Units to S.S.) 18.64 18.64 11.86 11.86
076 Emlen Arms 7.05 7.05 1.92 1.92
093 Westpark Plaza 6.15 6.15 1.54 1.54
TOTAL CONVENTIONAL| 22.14 13.84 6.55 5.42
Scattered Sites
901 Haddington/Overbrook 8.16 0.84 9.64 5.66
063 Katie B. Jackson (9 Units from Conv.) 0.00 0.00 22.22 22.22
902 Mantua 22.00 11.09 25.84 13.03
903 Kingsessing 8.70 3.34 6.38 4.08
904 Germantown/Hunting Park 16.56 7.57 19.48 11.69
905 Fairhill Square 24.34 13.32 19.70 8.74
030 Abbottsford Homes - mod 49.92 2.18 8.66 1.57
906 Francisville 37.48 14.46 30.61 17.35
907 Ludlow 29.69 9.95 22.14 6.57
908 Susquehanna 26.47 11.25 33.44 19.58
909 Strawberry Mansion 41.12 16.94 42.28 20.06
910 Oxford/Jefferson 34.63 7.60 38.42 13.94
055A Parkview Apt 5.00 5.00 0.00 0.00
065 Collegeview 7.41 7.41 0.00 0.00
100 C.B. Moore Homes 3.33 3.33 6.67 6.67
104 Arlene Homes 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL SCATTERED SITES| 25.59 9.99 24.30 11.75
TOTAL PHA| 23.57 12.25 14.39 8.21
Tax Credit Properties
PHA Managed (PAPMC)
083 Germantown House (now site #152) 15.98 15.98 - -
129 Cambridge Plaza - Phase II 2.50 2.50
132 Suffolk Manor na na 0.00 0.00
133 Richard Allen Homes - Phase III na na 2.82 2.82
134 Richard Allen Homes - Phase III na na 2.80 2.80
137 Cambridge Plaza - 202 na na 227 2.27
138 Mt. Olivet na na 0.62 0.62
139 Greater Greys Ferry Estates 0.00 0.00
143 Greater Greys Ferry Estates II-A na na 0.00 0.00
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VACANCIES Baseline Year (4/01/01) Year Six (3/31/07)
SITE NUMBER / NAME Actual Adjusted Actual Adjusted
Rate % Rate % Rate % Rate %
144 Greater Greys Ferry Estates II-B na na 0.00 0.00
145 Lucien E Blackwell na na 2.50 2.50
147 Cambridge Plaza - Phase 111 na na 0.00 0.00
149 Martin Luther King — Phase IV na na 0.00 0.00
150 Lucien E Blackwell IT na na 0.00 0.00
152 Germantown House na na 0.00 0.00
153 Lucien E. Blackwell HI na na 0.00 0.00
TOTAL PHA MANAGED na na 0.71 0.71
Privately Managed Entity’s (AMEs
121 Courtyard Apts at Riverview 5.32 5.32 0.21 0.21
126 8 Diamonds na na 0.81 0.81
141 8 Diamonds na na 0.00 0.00
127 Spring Garden Scattered Sites No data No data 0.00 0.00
128 Martin Luther King-Phase I na na 0.00 0.00
130 Falls Ridge na na 0.00 0.00
131 St. Anthony's Senior Residence No data No data 2.63 2.63
136 Martin Luther King — Phase ITI na na 0.00 0.00
146 St. Ignatious na na 0.00 0.00
148 Neuman North na na 0.00 0.00
TOTAL PRIVATELY MANAGED na na 0.27 0.27
COMBINED AME TOTAL na na 0.52 0.52
GRAND TOTAL PHA & AME SITES 24.09% 11.64% 12.17 6.98
B. Rent Collection — Finance
Table 8-2. Uncollected Rent for Year Six.
Baseline Year Year Six
Billed Rents $12,490,979.00 | $30,552,197.52
Collected Rents 11,727,499.17 | 28,420,874.35
Uncollected Rents 763,479.83 2,131,323.17
Percent Uncollected Rents 6.11% 6.98%

Source: Finance Department

1. Target: Atthe end of MTW Year Six, PHA projected a 5.5% rate for uncollected rent.

2. Actual: The total amount of collected rent for MTW Year Six was $28.42 million,
which is an increase of approximately $587,000 over the prior year. At year’s end, the
percent of uncollected rents was 6.98%.
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C. Work Orders

1. Target: PHA projected it would continue to meet its current response rate of 100% for
emergency work orders within 24 hours. For routine work orders, PHA projected it
would respond with an average rate of 20 days.

2. Actual: PHA responded to 100% of all emergency work orders within 24 hours. For
routine work orders, PHA responded within an average time period of 41 days. Note
that the reported completion time for routine work orders is unusually high as a result
of: a) reductions in maintenance staffing due to federal budget cuts; and, b) computer
system conversion issues.

D. Inspections

1. Tafget: PHA planned to complete inspections of 100% of units during MTW Year
Six.

2. Actual: PHA completed 97.7% of inspections for conventional units, scattered sites,
PAPMC and AME sites as of the end of MTW Year Six.

Results of Independent PHAS Inspections: PHA does not have an official final score for the
year ending March 31, 2007.

E. Security

A major accomplishment for the past year was achievement of a substantial reduction in Part II
crimes at PHA properties and of a slight reduction in Part I crimes. These reductions occurred
against a backdrop of dramatic citywide increases in violent crimes.

Improved Coordination with the Philadelphia Police Department. Data links are in the
process of being installed to allow electronic - transfer of information among the
Philadelphia Housing Authority Police, Philadelphia Police, Alcohol Tobacco and Firearms
and the US Attorney’s office. PHA Police Department (PHAPD) attends weekly crime
strategy sessions with the Philadelphia Police Department enabling enhanced enforcement
activities at PHA sites by use of computer mapping and intelligence sharing.

Lease Enforcement and Compliance Unit. PHA has entered into negotiations to establish
an electronic link with the Philadelphia courts in order to expedite evictions when
necessary.

Quality of Life Program. Management and maintenance teams have instituted one-day
initiatives at two housing developments to provide referrals for social services and to
address lease violations, maintenance issues, delinquent rent, and late recertifications.
Each one-day initiative includes follow-up activities such as police patrols, establishment
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of town watch, assessments for social services, initiation of eviction process for delinquent
rent or lease violations, and completion of repairs.

Community-Based Policing. The PHAPD continues to operate its community-based
policing initiative at many conventional developments. Also, a patrol schedule has been
established which provides more focused police coverage. The PHA Police and the City
Philadelphia Police Department continue to expand opportunities to enhance public safety
through collaborative efforts. The Philadelphia Housing Authority continued to provide
Drug Resistance Education and Training (DARE) at several grade schools where grade
school aged children of PHA residents attend. Additionally, PHAPD continued to provide
Gang Resistance Training (GREAT) to middle-school children. The Philadelphia Housing
Authority Police Department also continues to be a member of the Philadelphia Weed and
Seed program and the District Attorney's Youth Violence Reduction Program at PHA sites
through out the city.

Neighborhood Town Watch Groups. The Managing Director's Office of the City of
Philadelphia continues to work with Tenant Support Services Inc. (T'SSI) to establish watch
groups throughout the city. Two Town Watch programs are operating at PHA, one at
Fairhill and a second at Queen Lane. Two more Town Watch programs are in development.

Police Advisory Board. The advisory board continues to work with the community to
identify crime and quality of life issues. The advisory board met four times during the
course of the past year.
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SECTION 9: MANAGEMENT INFORMATION FOR LEASED HOUSING

A. Leasing Information
1. Target versus Actual Lease Ups.

Target: PHA expected to achieve a 100% voucher lease-up rate for MTW vouchers
in MTW Year Six. The projected utilization for the period April 1, 2006 through
March 31, 2007 for MTW allocations was 14,850 families leased.

Actual: For fiscal year ending March 31, 2007 PHA achieved a 100% voucher
lease-up rate with 14,850 families leased.

2. Information and Certification of Data on Leased Housing Management.

Ensuring Rent Reasonableness: PHA determines rent reasonableness for all HCV
units prior to initial leasing and upon the owner’s request for a rent increase. PHA
has implemented a citywide rent database that assesses and compares rents by
Philadelphia neighborhoods. PHA utilizes the services of Applied Real Estate
Analysis, Inc. (AREA) to conduct rental analysis on unassisted units of various
bedroom sizes in 32 rental sub-markets in Philadelphia.

Expanding Housing Opportunities: PHA places an emphasis on increasing the
supply and range of affordable housing opportunities. PHA supports housing
rehabilitation and neighborhood revitalization initiatives to increase the range of
housing choices available to low-income participants and promote improved
utilization of housing vouchers in stable neighborhood. The agency also continues
to promote homeownership opportunities through an extensive counseling, escrow,
and sales program. PHA continues to increase homeownership opportunities
through use of Tenant Based Vouchers, 5(h) Homeownership Demonstration
Program (single-family scattered site units) and Turnkey III units (public housing
sites). A total of 481 homes have been sold under these programs.

Homeownership Sales by Program:

Housing Choice Voucher (tenant based): 158
5(h)Homeownership: 118
Turnkey III (Whitman Park and Brown Street): 205

Deconcentration of Low-Income Families: PHA’s MTW family program strives to
effect upward mobility by assisting public housing residents to increase their
income. At HOPE VI developments, mixed-income communities are promoted by
targeting different tiers of income. Applicants and/or participants receiving tenant-
based vouchers are required to attend a briefing session during which voucher
recipients are encouraged to broaden their housing search beyond “traditional
neighborhoods” and exercise housing choice.

PHA’s deconcentration strategy targets PHA’s resources and development activities
in impacted areas in order to improve neighborhoods from within. Its HCV
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families are dispersed and deconcentrated throughout the City. PHA’s residents use
HCVs in a variety of non-impacted communities outside Philadelphia.

3. Narrative/Explanation of Differences.

PHA met its target performance goals specified in the MTW Annual Plan for Year
Six.

B. Inspection Strategy

1. Results of Inspection Strategy.

Planned Versus Actual Inspections Completed by Category:

Annual Housing Quality Standards (HQS) Inspections- PHA met its goal of
completing 100% of planned annual HQS Inspections. PHA has scheduled
100% annual HQS inspections of occupied households.

Pre-Contract HQS Inspections-PHA completed 100% of planned pre-contract
HQS inspections. Pre-inspections are conducted on 100% of all units prior to
any unit being placed in the HCV program.

HQS Quality Control Inspections-PHA completed 100% of planned HQS
quality control inspections. PHA conducts HQS quality control inspections on
10% of the total number of initial and annual HQS inspections performed
annually. '

PHA has not yet implemented its revised inspection procedure for High
Performing Landlords. PHA is in the process of developing the parameters for
the definition of high performing landlords, and expects to implement the
program during MTW Year Seven.

HQS Enforcement:

PHA continues to enforce 72 hour and/or 30 day corrective action in the event
of failed inspections. Re-inspection of units with safety or health violations are
scheduled within 72 hours for emergency deficiencies and withing 30 days for
routine deficiencies. Units that fail inspection for serious conditions have up to
72 hours to repair or the Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) is abated. Units
that fail the re-inspection for routine or emergency repairs are terminated from
the program.

2. Narrative/Discussion of Differences.

PHA met or exceeded the target performance goals specified in the MTW Annual
Plan for Year Six.
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SECTION 10: RESIDENT PROGRAMS
Description of Resident Programs

Resident Programs at PHA are designed to improve the quality of life for residents of
both Public Housing and the Housing Choice Voucher programs through a
comprehensive array of economic, educational, social, and health initiatives for youth,
adults, and seniors which promote self-sufficiency and well being. Under the MTW
Demonstration Program, PHA has the opportunity to maximize the delivery of services
that are offered by PHA, partners, agencies and neighborhood organizations to residents.

CSS uses a regional model for supportive social service delivery to all residents of a wide
array of educational, training, placement, entrepreneurial, homeownership and supportive
services through its Economic Self Sufficiency (ESS) Center North at Blumberg
Apartments. Five ESS teams in five regional offices have been established at: 1172-
1174 South Broad Street, 5207 Walnut Street, 5538-A Wayne Avenue, 642 N. Broad
Street, 1516 Judson Way, 2nd Floor (23rd and Jefferson) and 4346 Frankford Avenue.

These service centers outreach to and serve resident of Scattered Sites, Conventional
Sites and Housing Choice Vouchers units. Economic Self Sufficiency (ESS)
Coordinators link public housing residents to PHA’s Family Programs.

TSSI’s assistance is invaluable to PHA in developing, managing and implementing
programs. TSSI contracts with PHA to perform resident empowerment services,
leadership development and evaluation services. TSSI sponsors an annual Resident
Empowerment Conference that has hosted residents from 48 of the 50 states and Healthy
Homes Asthma Intervention and Reduction program; and the Resident Council election
processes.

These programs are funded through a variety of grants and partnerships. PHA
aggressively pursues funding for services to ensure that a variety of needed services are
available. PHA will continue to seek out resources for existing and new programs and
supportive services

Family Program

The goal of PHA’s Family Program is self-sufficiency, with the following elements
central to this Program:

= Increase the number of households participating in educational, employment and
entrepreneurial training programs.

» Increase the average household income of residents.

» Increase savings among resident households.

» Increase opportunities for seniors to continue to live independently.

= Increase access to health care resources.

» Increase services to youth.
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In order to effectively deliver these services, PHA has developed the following 5-tiered
approach based on household income:

1. Zero Income Households. Assign a case manager to each head of household to
develop a self-sufficiency plan that will provide referrals for education and job
training programs, improve job readiness, and initiate a job search and placement.

2. TANF Recipients. Through the case manager assigned by Philadelphia County
Assistance Office to TANF Recipients, PHA will supplement existing services to
provide additional referrals for education and job training programs, improve job
readiness, and initiate a job search and placement.

3. Part-Time or Seasonally Employed Heads of Households. PHA will assist these
individuals to obtain full-time employment with benefits through training programs to
improve career skills and job referrals.

4. Full-Time Employed Heads of Households. PHA will assist these individuals to
obtain a living wage with benefits and to achieve homeownership through Career
Awareness workshops and job referrals.

5. Elderly and Disabled Households. PHA will assist these individuals to fully access
available services and opportunities, including the development of an Assisted Living
Program for eligible participants.

The comprehensive MTW Family Program will work both with residents of public
housing and Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Program participants to provide the
coordination of services necessary to address families’ needs. PHAs Moving to
Employment (MTE) Economic Self-Sufficiency Program for public housing residents are
similar to the HCV Family Self-Sufficiency Program, but do not include an escrow
account. Services under the Family Self-Sufficiency Program and Economic Self
Sufficiency Programs include specialized skills training, supportive services such as
substance abuse counseling, youth and elderly programs, job search and housing search
assistance, and homeownership counseling.

The Community Partners program continues to fund a range of supportive services
including the nationally recognized Pre-Apprenticeship Program and the Skills for Life
youth program. The Community Partners program will continue to recruit new partners,
expand the range of training programs, and provide incentives to encourage successful
participation by residents. These programs are designed to provide residents with the
skills to enter the construction, transportation and health fields. Residents securing
employment through these programs are earning a median hourly rate of $13.66.
Additional programs include day-care training, certified food handler, home maintenance
and repair, and hospitality industry training. In Year 7 PHA’s new community partners
will expand training opportunities for eligible residents to obtain a commercial driver’s
license, develop resident owned businesses, and provide training for Administrative
Assistants, Financial Services, Customer Service, and cable installation.

PHA will use its MTW single fund budget flexibility, in combination with other funds, to
provide or coordinate the provision of all services required to promote family economic

Section 10 Resident Programs Page 69
MTW Year Six Report May 2007



self-sufficiency. PHA will use related non-profits to implement and operate various
components of our comprehensive program. Tenant Support Services, Inc. (TSSI), which
is operated by public housing residents, is keenly aware of the needs, interests, and
preferences of the target populations, and as an independent non-profit, they have access
to private and public funding sources unavailable to PHA. TSSI anticipates being able to
increase its effectiveness through grants and the use of an alternate procurement plan that
will be developed under the MTW program.

Supportive Services

A broad range of supportive services is currently available to residents. PHA intends to
build on these existing programs to increase resident opportunities to achieve self-
sufficiency. Resident programs currently offered that address a variety of the needs of
PHA residents include the following:

1. Pre-Apprenticeship Program. As of September 30, 2005, a total of four hundred
thirteen (413) residents graduated from the Pre-Apprenticeship Building,
Maintenance and Construction Training Program. Two hundred twenty-four (224)
of these graduates entered the construction trades. These jobs are positions at union
scale wages with benefits, resulting from certified apprenticeships in the building and
construction trades program.

PHA will also evaluate the feasibility of targeting specific units for rehab and sale by
pre-apprenticeship students. This will not only provide real world experience in
applying their newly acquired skills, but will also provide exposure to
homeownership issues, values and financing.

Under this program, PHA also plans to develop an exchange program that will allow
students to experience and acquire a broader range of construction skills.

2. Section 3 Compliance Program. This program, which requires PHA contractors to
hire qualified PHA residents for new positions, produced 399 jobs. PHA contractors
continue to fill their workforce needs with qualified PHA residents, who are often
graduates of the Pre-Apprenticeship program.

3. Certified Nursing Assistant Program. Nine hundred and four (904) residents have
entered the Certified Nursing Assistant (CNA) program, graduated and become
employed as State certified CNAs.

4. Pharmacy Technician Program. A total of one hundred and two (102) residents have
graduated and secured employment as Pharmacy Technicians.

5. Medical Billing. A total of fifty-seven (57) residents have graduated and secured
employment as Medical Billing Clerks.
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6. Job Skill Training and Entrepreneurial Development Programs. PHA has expanded
the number and variety of programs available to residents by incorporating
Educational Data Systems Inc, (EDSI) Supported Work, Job Search, Job Placement,
Community Service and Job Retention services; Management Environmental
Technologies, Inc (MET) offers Job Training, Youth Development, Cultural
Awareness, Small Business Development and Neighborhood Improvement programs;
Creative Urban Educational Systems Medical Billing students receive training in
technical ICD-9CM coding, CPT data processing and reimbursement procedures.
They generate reports for patient day sheets, procedure ledgers, patient billing cycles
and patient statements using standard Medisoft software. Through the office
management component of the same software, billing students learn to schedule
appointments, breaks and office meetings; The Enterprise Center Self Employment
Program offers classes, individualized coaching, and a professional and nurturing
environment, so students gain valuable, marketable skills and the resources to start a
business. By the end of the program, students will be prepared to begin their own
business venture; Community College of Philadelphia’s Administrative Assistant Job
Readiness Program of (132 hours) prepares students to serve as administrative
assistants by providing training in the areas of life skills, customer service, computer
use, workplace etiquette, filing, job searching and interviewing; Community College
of Philadelphia’s financial Services Job Readiness program (120 hours) is designed to
prepare students for jobs in the financial services industry with at focus on customer
service and clerical skills development. This program includes life skills, math skills,
accounting skills, customer service, computer skills, workplace etiquette, and job
search and interviewing skills; New Wave Resources Inc Customer Service 16-week
course provides training for careers in hotels, restaurants, and food service at schools,
financial services, airlines, personal care facilities, and retail; New Wave Resources
Inc Commercial Drivers License 16-week course (130 hours) trains you to drive
commercial vehicles such as trucks, buses, and ambulances. Upon successful
completion, students can obtain one of two (2) types of commercial drivers licenses,
Class A (Tractor Trainer) or Class B (small trucks and buses); New Wave Resources
Inc Environmental Service 16-week program provides janitorial/housekeeping
training with an emphasis on handling hazardous materials. Students pursue jobs as
janitors, building maintenance personnel, hotel housekeepers, environmental services,
custodial work, health care facilities maintenance, floor care specialists, and carpet
cleaners.

7. Youth Programs. PHA has built the John F Street Community Center and expanded
the Wilson Park Community Center to provide a space to engage youth in quality of
life expanding activities. The Wachovia Foundation has received PHA’s proposal to
fund a coordinator to manage youth after school programs in the Wilson Park
Community Center. The City’s Department of Human Services is also interested in
providing funds for a Coordinator to allow the programs and services to commence.

PHA has created partnerships with nine Family Centers, two Cultural Arts
organizations, eight Community Based Organizations, and the Explorers of the Boy
Scouts of America. These organizations provide youth services for full participation
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in the economic and social fabric of the City of Philadelphia. Our goal is to provide
youth with the academic and social skills necessary to not only succeed and graduate
from high school, but to develop a long-term career path. To support these goals,
PHA is creating resident youth councils, a youth mentoring program, and a
comprehensive PHA-wide youth services network to ensure PHA youths throughout
the city have equal access to all youth services available.

8. Skills for Life Program. Eighty-nine percent (89%) of the Skills for Life students
matriculated to the next grade level, which exceeds the Philadelphia School District
rate by as much as 29%. Youth receive stipends and transit passes to attend academic
enrichment and career exploration programs. Adult training participants gain work
experience that leads to employment in the building and construction trades.

9. Senior Programs. PHA has a number of senior developments along with programs
specifically designed to provide services for semior.residents. PHA is presently
developing a comprehensive program to provide enhanced supportive living services
and options for seniors under programs administered by the Pennsylvania Department
of Public Welfare and the Pennsylvania Department of Aging.

An adult day center opened at the Greater Grays Ferry Estates senior building to
provide assistance to frail elderly citizens while allowing these seniors to remain in
their homes. The adult day center is run by the St Agnes LIFE Program, which
provides comprehensive health care services to those who are nursing home eligible.
A second adult center is planned for the Germantown House, which is currently under
renovation. In addition, a One-Stop Center for youth and seniors will be opened at
Wilson Park. This center will provide computer technology services for seniors as
well as youth and also foster inter-generational opportunities for participants at this
center. PHA has also established a Senior Advisory Board that provides a forum for
senior issues and concerns.

10. Home Sales Department The Home Sales Department is creating wealth for low and
moderate-income residents through homeownership opportunities. To date, the
Homeownership Division has sold 767 homes. During the current fiscal year April 1,
2006 thru March 31, 2007, the Homeownership Division exceeded last year’s record
of selling 166 homes to 212 homes. PHA is one of the leading housing authorities in
the nation in HCV homeownership sales.

In Year Six the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Program closed a total of 53 homes
of which Fifteen were disabled families for a total of 158 homes sold under the HCV
Program including 39 families with disabilities. Under the Turnkey III Program, to
date PHA has sold 204 homes. PHA developed two Tumkey III sites - Brown Street
Village is closed out and only three homes remain to be sold at Whitman Park. The
Turnkey III program is designed to give families the opportunity to own their own
home after a two-year occupancy agreement. Each resident has an individual escrow
reserve account, which is intended to assist the households to accumulate savings
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during the lease term, and apply the funds toward a down payment and/or closing
costs.

Under the Section (SH) Scattered Sites Program, a total of eight (8) homes were sold
during the fiscal year; to date 118 homes closed. The Homeownership division sold
out Lucien E. Blackwell Homes Phase I, forty homes, and Phase II, twenty-five
homes for a total of 65 homes. PHA sold 18 homes at Lucien Blackwell Phase III
PHA sold 122 affordable homes at Greater Grays Ferry Estates. In South
Philadelphia, at the new Martin Luther King Plaza, selling near Center City’s
“Avenue of the Arts”, PHA sold out Phase 1 for a total of seventy-six (76) homes and
Phase II, fourteen (14) homes for a total of 90 Homes. PHA provided first-time
homebuyer workshops to over 1,300 PHA residents. The Homeownership division
along with the Communications Department received an overwhelming response
from widespread and targeted marketing efforts, having received approximately
5,000.00 applications from prospective homebuyers for our new developments.

PHA has made a special commitment in fulfilling its objective of providing
homeownership opportunities to public housing residents. PHA created a Resident
Mortgage Assistance Program (RMAP), this is a comprehensive benefit package to
assist residents in achieving Homeownership. It provided residents with closing cost
assistance, wrote down the sales price for our clients who purchase homes at our New
Development and provided free financial counseling in planning their budget.

The Homeownership Division has provided homeownership seminars to various
community organizations and events throughout the City of Philadelphia, including
the annual Tribune Homebuyer’s Workshop, one of the premier homebuyer events
held in the city. PHA also established partnerships with major banks including
Wachovia Bank, Bank of America, Citizens Bank, Commerce Bank, Sovereign Bank
and Wells Fargo. The services include free credit reports, budgeting/money
management, and credit repair.  The Division maintains relationships with 26
certified housing counseling agencies throughout the city of Philadelphia and the
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA).

11. Clean Sweep and Community Days. PHA residents will again be required to
participate in a program of Community Service. PHA developed two programs for
residents to fulfill this commitment by participating in site/neighborhood clean up
activities known as “Clean Sweep and Community Days.” These programs continue
to foster neighborhood pride and good neighbors.

12. Summer Food Services. PHA operates a summer food program, serving breakfast
and lunch to children up to the age of 18 living in and around public housing.
Residents are hired to operate this summer program.

13. Healthy Homes. PHA operates a demonstration healthy homes program to reduce
asthma hazards in housing choice voucher properties. Focus is on households with
children between 0 to 6 years old.
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14. DARE and GREAT Programs PHA’s Police Department provides Drug Abuse
Resistance Education (DARE) and Gang Resistance Education and Training
(GREAT) programs to encourage young people to stay off drugs. PHAPD has
relationships with 18 elementary and middle schools in the areas surrounding PHA’s
housing developments.

15. Conflict Resolution: Domestic Violence Prevention and Assistance. Residents
needing assistance to resolve a dispute in their family or neighborhood can get such
assistance from PHA Police Department staff trained in conflict resolution.

16. Computer Labs: Mobile and On Site Neighborhood Networks Labs. PHA is
establishing a network of computer laboratories that provide formal instruction in
basic computer literacy, standard software and Internet use. The site-based
laboratories are supplemented by two (2) Mobile Computer Labs operated and staffed
by the PHA Police Department PHA has outfitted two vans with computers. These
vehicles are loaded with educational software and scheduled for site visits at
developments that do not yet have labs.

17. Health Clinics. With Drexel University/MCP Hahnemann, Resources for Human
Development and Temple University, PHA operates clinics that offer medical, dental
and community behavioral health care and health education; primary care for all ages
including family planning, pre-natal care, well child care, EPSDT exams, nutrition,
chronic illness care such as asthma, diabetes, heart disease, high blood pressure, acute
illness. Behavioral health care includes mental health, drug and alcohol treatment.
The centers employ a psychiatrist, licensed psychologist and social workers. The
centers generally provide counseling and medication for depression, anxiety, bipolar
disorder, schizophrenia, post traumatic stress disorder, substance abuse, family and
child therapy, grief and loss counseling. Some centers provide van service.

18. HOPE VI Community and Supportive Services. PHA contracts for case management
services with HOPE VI Providers in North, South and West Philadelphia, namely,
Asociacion de Puertorriquenos en Marcha (APM), Ramsey Educational Development
Institute, Inc (REDI), The Enterprise Center (TEC) and Universal Community Homes
have been providing community and social services to residents of Richard Allen,
Falls Ridge, Martin Luther King, Lucien E. Blackwell and Ludlow Scattered Sites.
Services help residents end their reliance on categorical assistance. HOPE VI links
residents to available community services and provides specific training, example, the
Enterprise Center provides its array of business development and incubation services.
APM provides human service placements using a case management model.

19. HOPE VI Mentoring Demonstration Program. PHA operates a mentoring
demonstration program whose focus is to increase FICO credit rating and to increase
the adjusted family income. This program serves 40 residents in Lucien E. Blackwell
(formerly Mill Creek). The other goals are to assist residents to: train for gaining and
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sustaining employment; enroll in GED and/or college and gain access 1o
homeownership programs.

20. Grants and Resource Development. The Program Compliance/HOPE VI (PCH6)
Department is responsible to research grant opportunities and to identify prospective
partners that have the capacity to provide programs and services that are needed by
public housing and housing choice voucher residents to become economically self
sufficient and to improve their quality of life.

PCH6 identifies opportunities for education, job skills training, job preparation,
placement and retention, resident owned business development, homeownership,
credit repair and financial literacy and supportive social services including healthy
lifestyles, children, youth and senior programs.
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MOVING TO WORK YEAR SIX ANNUAL REPORT
B. RESULTS OF 2007 RESIDENT SURVEY




Philadelphia Housing Authority
Customer Service and Satisfaction Survey 2007

ALL DEVELOPMENTS*
602 respondents

OVERALL SATISFACTION

1. How satisfied are you with the following:

Your unit/home?
117 392 56 4 32 1
Your development/building? 15% 57% 26% 2% 27% 2%
65 242 111 9 164 11
Your neighborhood? 9% 54% 33% 4% 0% 2%
54 322 194 21 0 11

MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR

2. Over the last year, how many times have you called for maintenance or repairs?

33% 52% 11% 4% 3% 0%
191 305 62 25 18 1

3. If you called for NON-EMERGENCY maintenance or repairs (for example, leaky faucet, broken
light, etc.), the work was usually completed in:

252 158 146 32 2

4. If you called for EMERGENCY maintenance or repairs (for example, toilet plugged up, gas leak,
etc.), the work was usually completed in:

56% 22% 26% 49% 4% 0%
338 57 67 128 10 2
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5. Based on your experience, how satisfied are you with:

row easy it was to request 11% 68% 20% 1% 29% 0%
repairs? 47 289 84 6 175 1
How well the repairs were 12% T7% 10% 2% 30% 0%
done? 49 323 41 9 178 2
How well you were treated

by the person you contacted 10% 82% 7% 1% 30% 0%
for repairs? 43 348 29 3 178 1
How well you were treated by 11% 87% 1% 1% 30% 0%
the person doing the repairs? 44 366 4 5 182 1

COMMUNICATION

6. Do you think management provides you information about:

Maintenance and repair (for

example, water shut-off, boiler 9% 72% 17% 2% 14% 0%
shut-down, modernization activities? 48 370 89 8 85 2
The rules of your lease? 7% 87% 5% 1% 1% 0%
41 513 32 5 8 3
‘Aeetings and events? 6% 73% 20% 1% 13% 0%
32 382 104 5 76 3

7. Do you think management is:

Responsive to your questions

1%

68%

and concerns? 63 400 119 9 10 1
Courteous and professional with 11% 76% 12% 1% 1% 3%
you? 65 440 67 5 7 18
Supportive of your resident/ 8% 66% 24% 2% 37% 0%
tenant organization? 30 248 92 6 225 1
8. Are you involved in a resident/tenant organization in your housing development?
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SAFETY

9. How safe do you feel:

In your unit/home? 21% 69% o 2%
123 408 44 13 12 2
In your building? 18% 55% 22% 5% 45% 3%
58 176 69 15 268 16
in your parking area? 8% 56% 31% 5% 27% 2%
34 237 134 22 161 14

10. Do you think any of the following contribute to crime in your development?
(Mark all that apply.)

Bad Lighting 194 32%
Broken Locks 30 5%
Location of Housing Development 151 25%
Police Do Not Respond 97 16%
Residents Don't Care 278 46%
Resident Screening 126 21%
Vacant Units 54 9%
Open Air Drug Activities 322 53%

11. If residents in your development break the rules in the lease, does management take action?

12. Are you aware of any crime prevention programs available to residents (for example,
Neighborhood Watch, Block Watch, Community Policing, Tenant Patrol, or Street Patrol)?

SERVICES

13. Over the last year, how many problems, if any, have you had with electricity or heat?

395 | 165 18 9 14 1
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13a. If you had a problem with electricity or heat, how long did it take to fix?

14. Over the last year, how many problems, if any, have you had with kitchen appliances
(for example, stove, refrigerator, etc.)?

15. Over the last year, how many problems, if any, have you had with water or plumbing
(for example, toilets, hot water, etc.)?

16. Over the last year, how many problems, if any, have you had with smoke detectors?
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HOUSING DEVELOPMENT APPEARANCE

17. How satisfied are you with the upkeep of the following areas in your development:

LEE L < 1= 1% R
Common areas (for example, 12% 23% 0%
stairways, walkways, hallways, 52 261 94 2
etc)?
Exterior of buildings? 9% 65% 23% 2% 19% 0%
46 318 112 10 113 3
Parking areas? 6% 58% 32% 3% 27% 1%
28 250 140 14 164 6
Recreation areas (e.g., playgrounds 4% 41% 45% 10% 36% 0%
and other outside facilities)? 15 159 174 37 215 2

18. How often, if at all, are any of the following a problem in your development:

Abandoned cars?

272 170 21 9 127 3

Broken glass? 44% 46% 6% 4% 16% 1%
222 229 31 18 96 6

Graffiti? 53% 37% 7% 3% 18% 1%
257 183 32 17 106 7

Noise? 19% 58% 17% 6% 12% 1%
99 305 91 30 72 5

Rodents and insects (indoors)? 23% 55% 15% 8% 14% 1%
117 282 77 39 83 4

Trash/litter? 27% 53% 14% 7% 16% 0%
135 266 69 34 95 3

Vacant units? 62% 31% 5% 2% 23% 2%

278 138 23 10 141 12

PHA Customer Service and Satisfaction Survey (Total) - May 2007 Page 81




CONCLUSION

19. If there is a person with a permanent disability in your household who has difficulty moving
around, did your management make necessary changes to your unit if you requested them
(for example, grab bars, lowered light switches, wheelchair access)?

157 67 204 167 7

20. Since moving into your current residence, have you been told by a doctor, nurse, or other
local health department that any of your children (who live with you) have lead poisoning
or a high level of lead in their blood?

21. Would you recommend your housing development to a friend or family member seeking
public housing?

GENERAL INFORMATION

22. What is your gender?

23. How old are you?

1% 19% 38% 42% 1%
6 113 | 207 249 7
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26. How much do you pay in rent each month (including utilities)?

“The percentages assigned to all categories are based on the total number of responses to each question or sub-
question less the responses for "Missing Answer”, "Does Not Apply" and "Don't Know". The percentages assigned to the
responses for "Missing Answer", "Does Not Apply" and "Don't Know" are based on the total number of respondents in the
sample. In addition, in calculating the percentages in questions 3, 4, 13a., 14a., 15a., and 16a. the responses for "Have

Never Called" or "Never Had a Problem" were not included. Percentages have been rounded, and therefore may not
total 100%.
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SECTION 11: OTHER INFORMATION REQUIRED BY HUD

This section provides documentation to HUD that the Philadelphia Housing Authority
has complied with specific MTW requirements or with other HUD requirements that are
mandated by other HUD regulations.

A. Board Resolution approving the MTW Year Six Report.

B. Results of latest completed 133 Audit.

C. Required Certifications and other submissions from which PHA is not exempted
by the MTW Agreement (All required forms submitted with Year Six Plan
Document).

e PHA Certifications of Compliance with MTW Plan Requirements.

e Form HUD-50070. Certification for a Drug-Free Workplace.

e Form HUD-50071. Certification of Payments to Influence Federal
Transactions.

e Form SF-LLL. Disclosure of Lobbying Activities.

D. Submissions required for the receipt of funds (All required forms submitted

with Year Six Plan Document).

e Form HUD-52723. Calculation of PFS Operating Subsidy.

e Form HUD-52722-A. Calculation of Allowable Utilities Expense Level.

e Form HUD-52721. Direct Disbursement Payment Schedule Data.

e Form HUD-52837. Capital Fund Annual Statement, Parts I, II, III (Formula
Allocation).

e Form HUD-52837. Capital Fund Annual Statement, Parts I, II, III
(Replacement Housing).

e Form HUD-52673. Estimate of Total Required Annual Contributions.

e Form HUD-52663. Requisition for Partial Payment of Annual Contributions.

Section 11 Other Information Page 84
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RESOLUTION NO/ 1) 72,-

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO SUBMIT THE MOVING TO WORK
(“MTW”) ANNUAL REPORT FOR MTW YEAR 6 (FISCAL YEAR ENDING MARCH 31, 2007) TO THE
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT (“HUD”)

WHEREAS, PHA entered into a Moving To Work Demonstration (MTW) Agreement with the Department
of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”) on April 1, 2001 and such Agreement provides that PHA
prepare an Annual MTW Report, including a Consolidated Financial Report; and

WHEREAS, the MTW Agreement calls for suspension of current evaluation and reporting requirement
due to the authority granted to PHA to depart form the standard program requirements; and

WHEREAS, as an alternate assessment protocol, HUD will assess PHA’s performance on an annual
basis by comparing at the end of PHA's fiscal year, it goals, as stated in its approved MTW Plan, to its
actual performance, as stated in its Annual MTW Report.

WHEREAS, PHA will include in the‘ Annual MTW Report all formats and elements as described in
Attachment B of the MTW Agreement; and

WHEREAS, PHA has prepared Annual MTW Reports for MTW Year 6 (Fiscal Year ending March 31,
2007); and

WHEREAS, PHA is required to submit each Annual Report for Board approval within sixty days following
the end of each fiscal year.

THEREFORE, BE IT NOW RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of the Philadelphia Housing
Authority does hereby authorize the Executive Director to submit to HUD the PHA Annual MTW Reports |
for MTW Year 6 (Fiscal Year ending March 31, 2007). '

I hereby certify that this was & 7]
APPRO){S%BY THE BOI D

ENEY FOR PHA
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Philadelphia Housing Authority

Building Beyond Expectations

Carl R. Greene

PHILADELPHIA HOUSING AUTHORITY
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

TRANSMITTAL LETTER

November 1, 2006

To the Board of Commissioners, Citizens and Clients of the Philadelphia Housing
Authority:

Pennsylvania State law requires that all general-purpose local governments and
component units publish within six months of the close of each fiscal year a complete set
of financial statements presented in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) and audited in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants.
Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the comprehensive annual financial report
of the Philadelphia Housing Authority (PHA) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of PHA.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
reliability of all information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for
making these representations, management of PHA has established a comprehensive
internal control framework that is designed both to protect the government’s assets from
loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of
PHA'’s financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal
controls should not outweigh their benefits, PHA’s comprehensive framework of internal
controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the
financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert
that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable
in all material respects.

PHA'’s financial statements have been audited by Isdaner & Company, LLC, a firm of
licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial statements of PHA for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2006, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The
independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis

2012 Chestnut Street, Philadelphia, PA 19103
www.pha.phila.gov



for rendering an unqualified opinion that PHA’s financial statements for the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2006, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent
auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of PHA was part of a broader, federally
mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies.
The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to
report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited
authority’s internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special
emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of
federal awards. These reports are available in the Single Audit Section of PHA’s
Financial Report.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis
to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and
should be read in conjunction with it. PHA’s MD&A can be found 1mmed1ately
following this transmittal letter.

Profile and Background of the Philadelphia Housing Authority

The federal government exerts a major influence on the nation’s housing and
development activity, a role that has its roots in the 1930s. Over the past seventy years,
Washington has developed a variety of programs and policies to support housing
production, revitalize cities, and expand housing opportunities for low- and moderate-
income homebuyers and renters.

The following major federal housing laws constitute the backbone of the present federal
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) housing programs:

. The National Housing Act, passed in 1934, was the first landmark housing
law of the New Deal era. It created the Federal Housing Administration
(FHA), whose mission was to stimulate housing activity by insuring
mortgages made by private lenders.

. The United States Housing Act of 1937 created the public housing program.
Like the National Housing Act, the U.S. Housing Act has been amended many
times, including a comprehensive revision in 1974.

. In the Housing Act of 1949, Congress established a national housing policy
with three objectives: (1) eliminating housing shortages through housing
production and related community development, (2) clearing slums and
blighted areas, and (3) achieving the goal of ““ a decent home and a suitable
living environment for every American family.”
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In 1965, Congress passed a law to create the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development. In addition, closely related legislation was passed in
1965, which created the rent supplement program to subsidize the rents of
low-income households in private housing.

One of the landmark housing laws of the post-World War II era, the Housing
and Urban Development Act of 1968 created two major subsidy programs, the
Section 235 home purchase program and the Section 236 rent subsidy
program.

The Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 rewrote the U.S.
Housing Act of 1937, revising the public housing program and creating the
Section 8 rent subsidy program. Under Section 8, low-income tenants pay a
fixed portion of their income for rent in privately owned housing and HUD
covers the difference between the tenant payment and the fair market rent for
the unit.

The Housing and Community Development Act of 1987 made a number of
changes to the public housing program. These included converting
development funding from loans supported by annual contract payments to
up-front grants, requiring public housing authorities to submit comprehensive
plans to get modernization funds, and adding provisions for resident
management and ownership. For Section 8, the 1987 act made vouchers a
permanent program, rather than a demonstration; provided portability for
certificates and vouchers, allowing families to take their subsidies with them if
they moved within the same or a contiguous metropolitan area; and authorized
PHAs to tie up to fifteen (15%) percent of their certificate funding to specific
projects.

The National Affordable Housing Act of 1990 created the Homeownership
and Opportunity for People Everywhere (HOPE) program, which was
designed to encourage the use of government-owned or government-financed
housing for low-income home ownership.

For public housing, the Housing and Community Development Act of 1992
included provisions to reduce vacancies and improve severely depressed
projects. The Section 8 provisions included authorization to use vouchers or
certificates for home ownership, and a Moving to Opportunity demonstration
program to help families living in subsidized projects to move out of areas
with high concentrations of poverty.

Public housing reform is represented through the Quality Housing and Work
Responsibility Act of 1998 (QHWRA). QHWRA was signed by President
Clinton on October 21, 1998 and is found in Title V of HUD’s FY1999
appropriations act (P.L. 105-276).
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. QHWRA is landmark legislation that makes public housing reform a reality
by:

Reducing the concentration of poverty in public housing

Protecting access to housing assistance for the poorest families

Supporting families making the transition from welfare to work

Raising performance standards for public housing agencies, and rewarding

high performance

Transforming the public housing stock through new policies and

procedures for demolition and replacement and mixed-finance projects,

and through authorizing the HOPE VI revitalization program

o Merging and reforming the Section 8 certificate and voucher programs,
and allowing public housing agencies to implement a Section 8
homeownership program

o Supporting HUD management reform efficiencies through deregulation

and streamlining and program consolidation

O O 0 O

O

Under QHWRA, PHA has established a system of site-based waiting lists, consistent with
all applicable civil rights and fair housing laws. PHA has set a minimum rent of $50 for
residents in public housing, the Section8 Voucher Program and moderate rehabilitation
projects. Exceptions to payment of minimum rent may be made by the PHA for families
in hardship circumstances.

QWHRA also allows PHA to terminate the leases of Residents of public housing and
tenant-based Section 8 assistance and be subject to expedited eviction (after an expedited
grievance process) for violent or drug-related criminal activity and felony convictions.
Families evicted for drug-related criminal activity from public housing or tenant-based
Section 8 are prohibited from being readmitted for 3 years.

. Congress has dealt with substantive housing issues in other legislation,
including a number of significant housing and development programs created
through tax legislation, such as: (1) the mortgage revenue bond and mortgage
credit certificate programs, to provide subsidized financing for first-time home
buyers; (2) the low-income housing tax credit program, which has become the
nation’s major low-income housing production program; and (3) the
empowerment zone and enterprise community program, which provides tax
incentives to encourage development in distressed urban and rural areas.

Moving To Work

Moving To Work (MTW) is the operating plan for the Philadelphia Housing Authority.
MTW is a special, contractual agreement between PHA and the government under which
the authority has substantial budget flexibility and regulatory relief. This allows PHA to

make program changes that increase efficiency and help residents become self-sufficient.
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PHA became one of twenty-seven public housing agencies nationwide designated for this
seven-year program, effective April 1, 2001. The agency began its fifth year of MTW on
April 1, 2005, and has published a plan detailing goals and objectives for the current
fiscal year.

PHA was organized under the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania to provide
low-rent housing for qualified individuals in accordance with the rules and regulations
prescribed by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and other
federal agencies. PHA is the fourth largest housing authority in the country and has the
largest scattered site inventory of over 5,900 available units, including: 4,470 occupied
units, vacant buildings and lots. For the past several years, PHA has embarked upon a
strategic planning process that encompasses the following mission statement:

The mission of the PHA is to provide quality housing for the low and very low-
income families of Philadelphia well into the 21% century by improving the
management systems and buildings, using the best property management
principles, and by forming partnerships with the wider community to increase
available resources.

Strateglc Goals related to the aforementioned mission include:

J Increase the availability of decent, safe, and affordable housing;
. Improve community quality of life and economic vitality;
. Promote individual and family self-sufficiency and asset development.

PHA'’s current strategic operating plan is based on a comprehensive critical appraisal of
its operating, capital and support services. The strategic operating plan development
process is one that carefully considers the immediate and long-term needs and programs
for residents in public housing and the Housing Choice Voucher program.

Nine goals were identified as a result of this process and have been incorporated into
PHA’s Annual MTW Plan. Subsequently, each of the nine goals were placed under five
Moving to Work Principals



MTW Objective 1:

Goal 1:
Goal 2:

MTW Objective 2:

Goal 3:

MTW Objective 3:

Goal 5:

Goal 9:

MTW Objective 4:

Goal 4:

MTW Objective 5:

Goal 6:
Goal 7:

Goal 8:

Reform the existing Housing Choice Voucher program and
public housing programs.

Achieve excellence in property management.

Achieve excellence in the management of the Housing Choice
Voucher program and enforce program compliance.

Revitalize neighborhoods where MTW and MTW-eligible
residents reside.

Develop affordable quality housing that supports balanced
communities.

Develop an MTW family program to furnish comprehensive
economic self-sufficiency services to eligible MTW families.
Engage other institutions to leverage resources and assist in
promoting economic enhancement and supportive services for
PHA residents.

Maximize relationships and initiatives to deliver sound and
effective services.

Establish a quality of life program to promote a living
environment that fosters community values, encourages
resident participation and positive peer group pressure, and
reinforces the responsibilities of public housing residents,
voucher and landlord participants and PHA, to one another
and the broader community.

Implement public safety programs that promote the well-being
of our neighborhoods and the accountability of program
participants.

Establish efficient operating procedures and implement cost-
saving strategies.

Improve the productivity and cost effectiveness of PHA
operations.

Improve program compliance, reporting, performance and
accountability.

Maximize the use of technology to improve the efficiency and
accountability of PHA operations.

Each of the nine goals is supported by objectives that aggressively and affirmatively
promote improvements in the Philadelphia Housing Authority’s operation and service
delivery. Descriptions of each of the main programs reflected in the accompanying
financial statements are as follows:
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Low-Rent Housing Program
This program provides low-rent housing to qualified residents of the City of Philadelphia.
All units are owned and operated by PHA and were purchased with financing arranged or

provided through HUD. The operations of the program are subsidized by HUD through
Annual Contribution Contract W-55.

Housing Choice Voucher Program

Housing Choice Programs now come under the umbrella of Moving To Work, providing
the framework for assisting residents toward self-sufficiency. Housing Choice Voucher
Programs include New Construction, Moderate Rehabilitation, Rental Vouchers, and
Single Room Occupancy Programs. These programs were authorized by Section 8 of the
National Housing Act and provide housing assistance payments to private, not-for-profit
or public landlords to subsidize rentals for low-income persons.

New Construction and Substantial Rehabilitation Programs

The Housing Choice New Construction and Substantial Rehabilitation programs allow
for construction of low-income housing units to be subsidized for a contracted period of
time. Both for-profit and not-for-profit developers may provide low-income housing
under this program. Developers must obtain their own financing and HUD subsidizes
rents once the units are occupied.

Moderate Rehabilitation Program

This program provides for the rehabilitation of housing units, which then must be rented
to low-income individuals for a contracted period of time. Both for-profit and not-for-
profit developers may participate in this program. Under this program, developers must
obtain their own rehabilitation financing. Once the units are occupied, HUD subsidizes
rents in such amounts sufficient to cover the developer’s debt service payments orn the
financing.

Project Based Program

This program allows for existing privately owned housing units to be used for low-
income housing. This program assists low-income families and persons to find and lease
a house or apartment. After inspecting the unit, PHA assists the resident in negotiating a
lease under HUD rules and regulations for the program. After the lease is signed, the
resident pays a share of the rent according to HUD guidelines, and the remainder is
subsidized by PHA through HUD funding.

PHA earns a fee for administering the annual contributions from HUD. This fund
accounts for the revenues and expenses associated with providing administrative services.

Senior Program

PHA has established a pilot program for seniors, Living Independently For Elders (LIFE)
in conjunction with St. Agnes Hospital and the Pennsylvania Secretary of Public Welfare.
The program includes senior assisted living and enhanced supportive services, with the
goal of enabling nursing-home eligible residents to remain in their homes.
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Separately, the Congregate Housing Services Program provides two (2) meals a day (7)
seven days a week throughout the year, homemaker services and case management for
approximately twenty residents on a daily basis. Its goal is to prevent premature
institutionalization of the elderly at Bentley Hall.

Further, PHA provided services to over 4,762 seniors at PHA Senior Centers in FY
2004/2005.

Summer Food Program

The Summer Food Program provides nutritious breakfasts and lunches, sponsored by the
Department of Education, at 28 public housing sites throughout the City of Philadelphia.
Approximately 60 staff members, primarily PHA residents, are hired for this seasonal
employment. Over 22,600 children received breakfast while more than 32,800 children
received lunch.

Adult Literacy Program

PHA offers adult literacy through its Community Partners, including the pre-
Apprenticeship Program in the Building Trades. The literacy program is designed to offer
PHA residents enhancement of basic educational skills in the areas of language
development, writing, mathematics, reading, problem-solving, etc. This program is
designed to assist participants in passing the General Educational Development (GED)
examination, entering a training program and securing employment, working with
children on homework, and increasing personal confidence and self-esteem.

-New Initiatives

PHA’s Moving to Work (MTW) Demonstration Program is focused on helping families
achieve self-sufficiency and improving and increasing the stock of quality affordable
housing throughout the city. It will furnish convenient and comprehensive services to
families to assist them in reaching their full potential, with an emphasis on education, job
training and placement, self-sufficiency, and preparation for homeownership. In
addition, MTW will promote the revitalization of neighborhoods where MTW and MTW-
eligible families live.

The flexibility of the MTW Demonstration Program affords PHA an opportunity to more
effectively carry out these strategic goals. For the seven (7) year term, beginning in
FY2001, of the MTW Demonstration Program, PHA will focus on the following core
objectives:

e Reform the existing Housing Choice Voucher and Public Housing Programs
to improve and increase the supply of quality affordable housing throughout
the City of Philadelphia.
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Revitalize neighborhoods where MTW and MTW-eligible residents reside.

Develop a MTW Family Program to furnish comprehensive family self-
sufficiency services to eligible MTW families.

Establish a Quality of Life Program to promote a living environment that
fosters community values, encourages resident participation and positive peer
group pressure, and reinforces the responsibilities of public housing residents,
voucher participants, voucher landlords, and the PHA to one another and to
the broader community.

Establish efficient operating procedures and implement cost-saving strategies.

PHA intends to continue its focus on strengthening families and revitalizing Philadelphia
neighborhoods where MTW and MTW-eligible families reside. This will be achieved by
providing comprehensive economic empowerment assistance and supportive services to

families, continuing to improve the quality and availability of affordable housing, and by
expanding public safety activities.

Year Five of PHA’s Moving To Work program saw several enhancements.

MTW Priority 1 Year 5 Objectives

Dislocated Worker Program. Dislocated Worker Housing Allowance
Program provides a short-term housing subsidy, job training and placement

services to eligible workers. This program works with key local employment
and training partners.

Community Liaison Program. The Community Liaison Program has
drastically increased the resolution of landlord and tenant complaints.
Currently, the Housing Choice Voucher Program has one Community Liaison.

The Community Liaison addresses constituent inquiries from public officials,
internal fraud audits from PHA’s Office of Inspector General (OIG) and
external inquiries from the Department of Housing and Urban

Development(HUD).

The Community Liaison is also responsible for customer satisfaction,
primarily as measured by the resolution of the concerns and issues of
landlords and tenants. These can come in the form of letters, phone calls,

emails or walk-ins. Customer Satisfaction and promoting positive landlord

and tenant interactions with PHA is also done through building tenant and
landlord knowledge. In this regard, the Community Liaison proactively
addresses tenants or landlords in special briefings.
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Through the Community Liaison Program, PHA has:

Increased the quality of service to public officials, landlords and tenants.
Handled over 2000 satellite, walk-in and executive complaints/issues per year.
Answered approximately 250 complaint letters from public officials, HUD, OIG,
landlords and tenants per year.

Accepted input and constructive critique through the landlord tenant advisory
council, chaired by the Community Liaison.

Conducted tenant and landlord briefings.

Trained landlords in property management through the Institute for Real Estate
Management.

Connected landlords and tenants through the housing list and the housing fair.
Streamlined the investigations department and cleared up the backlog of cases.
Upgraded the hearing process to be aligned with the Administrative Plan.
Conducted Community Information sessions about the Housing Choice Voucher
Program.

Coordinated an effort to provide 1000 turkey baskets to community residents at
Thanksgiving, garnering positive media attention.

Upgraded standard PHA letters to landlords and tenants.

Met public officials to liaise with and offer assistance with constituent matters
within the Housing Choice Voucher Program.

Created new processes to raise the Quality of Service of the Housing Choice
Voucher Program.

Housing Choice Time Limits. PHA will continue its efforts to reform the Housing
Choice Voucher program and respond to the needs of the city and its residents. PHA
has established a seven-year time limit in the Housing Choice Voucher Program,

* subject to certain exemptions such as for elderly and disabled households.

Two-Year Re-Certifications. PHA has implemented a new recertification system
beginning in April 2003. Recertifications for both public housing and Housing
Choice Voucher participants will occur every two years under the new system, except
for public housing residents choosing market or flat rents (who will be recertified
every three years). Two-year recertifications may not apply to sites funded with Low-
Income Housing Tax Credits.

Good Neighbors Make Good Neighborhoods Program. In 2001 PHA made a
commitment to provide Housing Choice vouchers to support families moving from
homelessness and transitional housing programs to permanent housing. Through the
Good Neighbors Make Good Neighborhoods Program, 500 families were housed
through December 2003. PHA reached a new agreement in October 2003 with the
Blueprint to End Homelessness, a coalition of nonprofit transitional housing
providers and made 300 housing opportunities available. To date, 250 families from
the Blueprint have been placed in PHA units. PHA has increased its original
commitment for this program to 400 units.

Rent Simplification. To promote the goals of economic self-sufficiency and
administrative efficiency, PHA has developed and implemented a program to
streamline the rent calculation system for both public housing and Housing Choice



Voucher participants. PHA intends to make the new system simpler to administer and
understand, reducing paperwork and administrative burdens for residents and staff.

* Revitalization Initiatives. PHA will continue its large-scale revitalization efforts at
public housing and other sites around the city. PHA is currently overseeing $1 billion
in large-scale HOPE VI and non-HOPE VI development projects.

MTW Priority 2 Year 5 Objectives

* Project-Based Program. PHA has implemented changes to the Housing Choice
Voucher project-based program that will expand program options by providing either
voucher or operating subsidy to eligible partners and, projects that add to the stock of
quality housing and support neighborhood revitalization efforts. PHA has issued a
revised Unit-Based RFP that more closely conforms to the MTW agreement and
overhauls the approach to providing operating support and, where appropriate capital
dollars.

= Community Partners Program. To complement the unit-based development
program described above, PHA has developed a Community Partners Program
(CPP). The CPP focuses on funding a range of neighborhood-appropriate supportive
services including but not limited to: child-care, transportation, job training, activities
that foster lease compliance and mobility counseling. Vouchers have been set-aside
and temporarily converted into a funding source. (At the end of five years the
vouchers will convert back so the housing resource is not lost to the community.)

* Affordable Homeownership. PHA has expanded its homeownership activities to
create quality, affordable homeownership opportunities for public housing residents,
Housing Choice Voucher participants, and other low-income residents. PHA has
expanded its recently implemented Housing Choice Voucher Homeownership
program, opening it up to all Housing Choice Voucher ESS program participants.
PHA also implemented enhanced housing counseling services designed to help
residents with budget, credit repair and other activities designed to support successful
homeownership.

= Replacement Housing. PHA continued its efforts to increase housing opportunities
' through implementation of its Replacement Housing Policy. The policy focuses on
four strategies to acquire property: (1) acquisition through purchase of single family
scattered sites, foreclosure by institutional lenders of single family residential
buildings and purchase of multi-family residential buildings; (2) reuse of ACC
subsidy to affordable housing projects; (3) provision of capital funds to affordable
housing projects; and (4) neighborhood redevelopment projects.

MTW Priority 3 Year 5 Objectives.
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Implementation of MTW Family Agreement and Services. New and existing
Housing Choice Voucher program participants have begun entering into an MTW
Family Agreement to help ensure their successful participation in this time-limited
program. All participants were provided with enhanced Tenant Responsibility
Training. In addition, participants received briefings and information on available
training, job placement and supportive service opportunities. Program participants
who receive Temporary Aide for Needy Families (TANF) or report zero income will,
as part of the MTW Family Agreement, enroll in PHA’s Economic Self-Sufficiency
Program (ESS).

LIFE Program. PHA has established a pilot program for seniors, Living
Independently For Elders (LIFE) in conjunction with St. Agnes Hospital and
the Pennsylvania Secretary of Public Welfare. The program includes senior
enhanced supportive services, with the goal of enabling nursing-home eligible
residents to remain in their homes. It offers primary and specialty medical
care, nursing care, adult day health services, prescribed modifications, meals,
homemaker services and other services.

Pre-Apprenticeship, Certified Nursing Assistant, Medical Billing and Pharmacy
Technician Training Programs. Since the inception of these programs, almost
1,507 residents have graduated and found careers in the building trades, the health
care industry and other fields.

Computer Training. The Philadelphia Housing Authority’s continues to
increase residents’ access to technology to (1) increase academic performance
of youth and adults, to (2) increase the employability skills of adults and
working age youth, to (3) increase computer technology skills among all
demographic groups, and to (4) increase health and nutrition information for
groups of all ages.

PHA has 18 computer laboratories at various stages of the development cycle,
with formal standardization at both conventional and community-based sites
to provide technology programming, and computer assisted instruction. In
addition to the comprehensive laboratories, PHA provides web based basic
education software, accessible through the Internet, which participants can use
to improve skills in targeted occupations.

PHA facilitates handicapped accessibility at its laboratories, and installs
chairlifts, as necessary.

MTW Priority 4 Year 5 Objectives

Expansion of Quality of Life Program. PHA has expanded its Quality of Life
Program to several new sites during the past year. The objective of the program is to
improve the quality of life for all PHA residents and the surrounding communities by
creating an environment that fosters community values, encourages resident
participation and positive peer group pressure, and reinforces the responsibilities of
all. The program incorporates resident responsibility training, lease enforcement,
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local code enforcement, public safety and community policing activities. In addition,
PHA joined the Citizens Crime Commission anonymous tip line reward program and
entered into a contract with the City of Philadelphia to begin Town Watch programs
at several PHA developments.

Enhanced Tenant Responsibility Training. As part of its local leased housing
MTW program initiative, PHA now requires all Housing Choice Voucher program
participants to participate in Tenant Responsibility Training at both the initial lease-
up and at every recertification period. This effort will help improve residents’
understanding of their roles and responsibilities as good neighbors and PHA program
participants.

Security Enhancements to PHA Properties. As noted in the Capital Improvement
summary included in this Annual Plan, PHA has continued to implement security
related capital improvements at a wide range of PHA properties, and especially at
family high rises.

Required Landlord Training. PHA has developed a program for landlords of the
properties associated with the Housing Choice Voucher program, which includes
training by professionals from the Institute of Real Estate Management (IREM), as
well as training provided by PHA regarding local property management issues, city
code compliance, lease enforcement, and community responsibilities.

MTW Priority S Year 5 Objectives

Streamline Rent Calculation System. PHA has developed and started a program to
streamline the rent calculation system for both public housing and voucher
participants. PHA has made the new system simpler to administer and understand
while giving residents an incentive for work and education.

Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) and the Customer Response Management
Applications. PHA has identified additional areas for increased productivity and
cost effectiveness including the continued implementation of the Enterprise Resource
Planning and the Customer Response Management applications; automation of
processes in the Housing Assistance Payments program; payroll, requisition and
purchase order systems; and enhanced staff recruitment and training programs.

Feasibility of Contracting through Energy Services Contractors (ESCOs). PHA
contracted with two firms to perform energy audits on public housing units. In Phase
I, the audits examined PHA water, gas and electric consumption. In addition,
building systems were analyzed to identify improvements that can be made to reduce
energy use. In FY 2003, PHA through its energy management system reduced
operating costs by approximately $90,000 by switching to heating oil instead of gas
in certain situations. A new program of monitoring water usage has generated
$108,000 in savings by timely termination of Water Department services. PHA is
also developing a new business plan, reviewing each utility element with the goal of
reducing energy costs where possible.

Revise Procurement Policies. PHA has a revised procurement policy approved by
HUD. The new system simplifies the procurement process, while ensuring an
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appropriate level of intemal control and external competition. The plan includes
enhanced criteria for qualification and selection of developers for redevelopment
projects and the policy for subsidiaries. PHA has moved forward with
implementation of the revised policies and the supply chain management initiative.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

Laws, Regulations and Federal Examinations. PHA is subject to a number of laws and
regulations. Material portions of PHA’s grant revenue and other financial resources are
contingent on PHA’s compliance with such laws and regulations. PHA is subject to
examinations made by federal and state authorities who determine compliance with
terms, conditions, laws and regulations governing other grants awarded to PHA in the
current and prior years. The current status of such examinations are monitored by HUD,
PHA'’s cognizant agency. Management of PHA is not aware of any noncompliance with
such laws and regulations that could result in a material disallowance of costs or
withholding of future revenue.

PHA is a party to various legal actions arising in the normal course of business. It is the
opinion of management that the ultimate disposition of these matters will not have a
material adverse effect on PHA’s financial position or results of operations.

Cash Management Policies and Practices. HUD requires housing authorities to invest
excess funds in obligations of the United States, certificates of deposit or any other
federally insured investment. HUD also requires that deposits be fully collateralized at
all times. Acceptable collateralization includes FDIC/FSLIC insurance for the market
value of securities purchased and pledged to the political subdivision. Pursuant to HUD
restrictions, obligations of the United States are allowed as security deposits. Obligations
furnished as security must be held by PHA or with an unaffiliated bank or trust company
for the account of PHA.

It is PHA’s policy to maintain collateralization in accordance with the requirements of
both HUD and the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The three credit risk categories are
defined as follows:

1) Insured or collateralized with securities held by the authority or by its
agent (correspondent bank or Federal Reserve Bank) in the authority’s
name.

2) Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, -
trust department, or agent in the authority’s name.

3) Uncollateralized or collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution or by its trust department or agent, but not in the
authority’s name.

Risk Management. Prior to April 1, 1999 PHA was self-insured for personal injury
claims. Asserted and unasserted claims are accrued based on PHA’s experience and
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advice of an independent claims manager. Although management believes that adequate
accruals have been established, the ultimate liability that may result from asserted and
unasserted claims could differ materially from estimated amounts. Beginning April 1,
1999, PHA purchased commercial policies for personal injury coverage.

Pension and Other Post-employment Benefits. PHA contributes to the Philadelphia
Housing Authority Retirement Income Plan (the Plan). The Plan is a single-employer
plan, which issues separate financial statements. The following table provides
information concerning covered employees and benefit provisions for the Plan.!

Covered employees Permanent employees of PHA except those enrolled
in PHA Defined Contribution Pension Plan.

Current annual covered payroll $69,677,849
Normal retirement date 65th birthday

Normal retirement benefit 2.5% of Average Earnings, as defined in the Plan,
multiplied by the years of service not to exceed 25 years, plus 1.25% of Average
Eamnings multiplied by years of service in excess of 25 years.

Death benefit The Plan contains provisions for the payment of
benefits to surviving spouses of employees.

The financial statements of the Plan are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.
Contributions and benefit payments are recognized when earned and incurred,
respectively. Plan investments are listed at fair value as determined by quoted market
prices. Short-term investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value.

Actuarially determined contributions are required to provide sufficient assets to pay
benefits when due and are determined using the entry age normal method. Under this
method, the actuarial present value of projected benefits of each individual included in
the actuarial valuation is allocated on a level basis over the earnings of service of the
individual between entry age and assumed exit age. The portion of actuarial present
value allocated to each valuation is called the normal cost. The significant actuarial
assumptions used to compute the actuarial determined contributions are as follows:

a) A rate of return on the investments of 7.5% per year;

b) Projected salary increase of 5% per year;

This is a brief summary of Plan benefits and is not intended to replace or supplement the Plan in
any manner. The information contained herein is not a part of the Plan and, moreover, does not
constitute a summary plan description or a part of any contract of employment.
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c) No post-retirement benefit increase.

PHA'’s current funding practice is to contribute 5.5% of total payroll to the Plan.
Employees are currently required to contribute 5.5% of total salary to the Plan. The
funding policy is subject to change but is determined by collective bargaining agreements
for represented employees and by employment policies for non-represented employees.

Capital Assets. Purchased land, buildings and equipment are valued at cost when
historical records are available. When no historical records are available, estimated
historical cost is used. When property is sold or otherwise disposed of, the asset account
and related accumulated depreciation account are relieved and any gain or loss is
included in operations. Donated property is recorded at estimated fair value when
received. Ancillary charges necessary in preparing an asset for use are capitalized.

The cost of buildings and equipment is depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the
related assets on a composite basis using the straight-line method. Depreciation
commences on modernization and development additions in the initial year of utilization.

Contributions by Federal Agencies. HUD contributes an operating subsidy for the
Public Housing Program, reflected in the operating budget under the Annual
Contributions Contract W-55. Operating subsidy contributions, including capital
contributions, for the year ended March 31, 2006 were $336,633,698 and are included in
operating subsidies in the combined statement of revenues, expenses and changes in

equity.

HUD contributions for Section 8 Programs under Annual Contributions Contract p-4601
are included in intergovernmental revenues in the combined statement of revenues,
expenses and changes in equity as follows:

Housing Choice Vouchers  $143,310,505

Mainstream 233,364
Moderate Rehabilitation 2,315,770
New Construction 1,013,637
Single Room Occupancy 1,540,720

Total $148.413,996

Contributed capital represents the cumulative amount of annual contributions made
available by HUD with respect to all federally-aided projects under annual contributions
contracts. Annual contributions contracts provide that HUD shall have the right to audit
records of public housing authorities. Accordingly, final determination of PHA’s

. financing and contribution status for the annual contribution contracts is the
responsibility of HUD based upon financial reports submitted by PHA.
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PHA received approximately 93% of its fiscal 2006 revenues from HUD. If, in the
future, the amount of revenues received from HUD falls below critical levels, PHA’s
operating reserves could be adversely affected.

In closing, we would like to express our appreciation to the PHA Board of
Commissioners for their unfailing support for maintaining the highest standards of
professionalism in the management of the Philadelphia Housing Authority’s finances.
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PHILADELPHIA HOUSING AUTHORITY
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the Philadelphia Housing Authority (“PHA™), we offer readers of the
PHA'’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of
the PHA for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006. We encourage readers to consider the
information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished
in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages i through xvii of this report, as well
as the financial statements that follow this section. All amounts, unless otherwise indicated,
are expressed in thousands of dollars. ’

Financial Highlights

e The assets of the Philadelphia Housing Authority exceeded its liabilities at the close
of the most recent fiscal year by $927.4 million (net assets). Of this amount, $262.6
million (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet PHA’s ongoing obligations to
clients and creditors.

o PHA’s total FY2006 net assets increased by $42.7 million over FY2005, equivalent to
a 4.8% increase.

e PHA’s operating income in the proprietary funds for FY2006 was $348.0 million,
$22.2 million more than operating expenses.

o PHA’s Issuer Credit Rating from Standard & Poors remained at an A+. PHA’s debt
outstanding of $402.6 million as of March 31, 2006 decreased $66.0 million from that
amount outstanding as of March 31, 2005.

o Other long-term liabilities increased by $11.7 million to a total of $29.5 million as of
March 31, 2006.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analyses are intended to serve as an introduction to the Philadelphia
Housing Authority’s basic financial statements. The PHA’s basic financial statements
comprise three components: 1) agency-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

The agency-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview
of PHA'’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The statement of net
assets presents information on all of PHA'’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between
the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a
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useful indicator of whether the financial position of PHA is improving or deteriorating. The
statement of activities presents information showing how PHA’s net assets changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,

revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in
cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., authorized but uncollected grant revenue and earned
but unused vacation leave).

The agency-wide financial statements include not only PHA itself (known as the primary
government), but also legally separate non-profit agencies for which PHA is financially
accountable, as described in the accompanying notes to the financial statements.

Notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the financial statements. The agency-wide financial
statements and accompanying notes can be found on pages 3 through 30 of this report.

The remaining statements that support the agency-wide financial statements are the fund
financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The
Philadelphia Housing Authority, like other public housing authorities, uses fund accounting
to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

All of PHA'’s funds are considered to be Enterprise Funds. Normally, an enterprise fund is
used to report any activity for which a fee is charged to external users for goods or services.
In accordance with Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of
America (“GAAP”), enterprise funds may also be used by all governmental entities, such as
PHA, that were using traditional not-for-profit accounting as of the date of adoption of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) Statement No. 34 (June 1999), even if
their activities do not otherwise meet the criteria for using an enterprise fund. In practice,
enterprise funds frequently are used to account for activities whose costs are only partially
funded by fees and charges. Enterprise funds are considered useful in such instances because
they focus attention on the cost of providing services, and they serve to highlight the portion
of that cost being borne by taxpayers, which in the case of PHA take the form of federal
grant contributions.

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents
certain required supplementary information concerning PHA’s progress in funding its
obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Fund financial statements and
required supplementary information can be found beginning on page 32 of this report.
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Agency-wide Financial Analysis

Net Assets. As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of an
agency’s financial position. In the case of the Philadelphia Housing Authority, assets exceed
liabilities by $927.4 million at the close of the most recent fiscal year. The combined net
assets of PHA increased by $42.7 million, or 4.8%, from March 31, 2005 to March 31, 2006.
The following table shows a summary of changes from the prior year amounts.

Philadelphia Housing Authority
Net Assets as of March 31
(In millions of dollars)

Increase/(Decrease)

2006 2005 Amount Percent
Assets
Cash & Investments $ 1312 $ 1547 $ (23.5) (15.2%)
Accounts Receivable 15.6 6.3 93 147.6%
Due from Other Funds/Govts. 31.5 86.2 (54.7) (63.5%)
Other Current Assets 4.3 54 (1.1) _(20.4%)
Total Current Assets $ 1826 $ 252.6 $ (70.0) (27.7%)
Net Program Loans Receivable 166.9 144.8 22.1 15.3%
Capital Assets 969.0 942.1 26.9 2.9%
Other Assets 11.5 13.8 (2.3) _(16.7%)
Total Assets $1.330.0 $1.353.3 $ (23.3) __(1.7%)
Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 308 § 584 $ (27.6) (47.3%)
Other Current Liabilities 35.7 87.3 (51.6) _(59.1%)
Total Current Liabilities $ 66.5 $ 1457 $ (79.2) (54.4%)
Noncurrent Liabilities 336.1 322.9 13.2 4.1%
Total Liabilities $§ 402.6 $ 468.6 $ _66.0 14.1%
Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets $§ 662.4 $ 6373 $ 25.1 3.9%
Restricted 24 3.4 (1.0) (29.4%)
Unrestricted 262.6 244.0 18.6 7.6%

Total Net Assets $ 927.4 $ 884.7 $ 427 4.8%



Statement of Activities. The Statement of Activities shows the sources of PHA’s changes in
net assets as they arise through its various programs and functions. A condensed Statement
of Activities comparing fiscal year 2006 with fiscal year 2005 is shown in the table below.

Philadelphia Housing Authority
Statement of Activities as of March 31

(In millions of dollars)
Increase/(Decrease)
2006 2005 Amount  Percent
Revenue
Program Revenue:
Charges for Services $ 231 § 2238 $ 03 1.3%
Federal & Other Revenues 350.9 367.9 (17.0) (4.6%)
General Revenue:
Disposal of Fixed Assets (12.3) (262.1) 249.8 95.3%
Investment Income & Other 6.6 7.1 (0.5) (7.0%)
Total Revenue $ 3683 § 1357 $232.6 171.4%
Expenses
Direct $§ 2653 § 2384 $§ 269 11.3%
Administrative 87.9 113.6 (25.7) (22.6%)
Total Expenses (Excl. Deprec.) $ 3532 $ 3520 $ 1.2 0.3%
Depreciation 58.5 54.1 4.4 8.1%
‘Total Expenses (Incl. Deprec.) $ 4117 § 406.1 $ 5.6 1.4%
Increase in Net Assets $ (434) $§ (2704) $ 2270 83.9%

Federal and Other Revenues include the annual operating subsidies and capital grants made
available by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”), along with
grants received from other Federal sources and the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. PHA
also generated $3.9 million in unrestricted investment income, which was primarily used to
partially offset its administrative expenses.

Direct expenses amounted to $265.3 million, representing a year-to-year increase of $26.9
million, or 11.3%.

Xxi



Long-term Debt and Other Long-term Liabilities. Long-term debt and other long-term
liabilities as of March 31, 2006, compared with March 31, 2005, are depicted in the
following schedule.

Philadelphia Housing Authority
Long-term Debt and Other Long-term Liabilities
(In millions of dollars)

Increase/(Decrease)

2006 2005 Amount  Percent

Long-term Debt $ 300.8 $ 295.1 $ 5.0 1.7%
Self-Insurance Liability 5.7 10.1 4.4 (43.6%)
Other 29.5 17.8 11.7 65.7%
Total $ 336.0 $§ 323.0 $ 13.0 4.0%

Total bonds and notes payable increased $5 million, due primarily closing of component unit
projects.

Prior to April 1, 1999, the Philadelphia Housing Authority was self-insured for personal
injury claims. Asserted and unasserted claims are accrued based on PHA’s experience and
advice of an independent claims manager. Although management believes that adequate
accruals have been established, the ultimate liability that may result from asserted and
unasserted claims could differ materially from estimated amounts. Beginning April 1, 1999,
PHA purchased commercial policies for personal injury coverage.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Philadelphia Housing
Authority’s finances for all those with an interest in the agency’s finances. Questions
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional
information should be addressed to the Office of the Executive Director,

12 South 23™ Street, Philadelphia, PA 19103.
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ISDANER &
COMPANY, Lic

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants

Board of Commissioners HUD, Pennsylvania State Office
Philadelphia Housing Authority Office of Public Housing
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania Wanamaker Building

100 Penn Square East

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19107

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Philadelphia Housing
Authority (“PHA”), a component unit of the City of Philadelphia, as of and for the year ended
March 31, 2006, which collectively comprise PHA’s basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of PHA’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of certain of the Blended Component
Units, whose statements reflect total assets of $443.1 million. These statements were audited
by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us and our opinion, insofar as it
relates to the amounts included for the Blended Component Units, is based solely on the
report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
and opinion on the effectiveness of PHA’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the
report of other anditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

THREE BALA PLAZA o SUITE 501 WEST & BALA CYNWYD e PENNSYLVANIA @ 19004-3484
(610) 668-4200 & Fax (215) ISDANER e Fax1610) 667-4329 @ Email: info@isdanerlic.com




In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
PHA as of March 31, 2006, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued in the Single
Audit Section of this report, our report dated November 1, 2006 on our consideration of
PHA'’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

The Management Discussion and Analysis as listed in the table of contents is not a
required part of the basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. This supplementary information is the
responsibility of PHA’s management. We have applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit such
information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
statements that collectively comprise PHA’s basic financial statements. The accompanying
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis
as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The accompanying supplementary information, including the combining balance
sheets, combining statements of revenue, expenses and changes in net assets, and the
financial data schedule as required by U.S. Office of Housing and Urban Development
(“HUD”), and the statement of net assets and the statement of activities in the format
requested by the City of Philadelphia, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is
not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole.

eda/4 Gympang, 220

November 1, 2006



Current Assets:

Cash

Investments

Receivables, net:
Tenants
Due from other governments
Other receivables

Other current assets

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Mortgages receivable
Restricted cash and investments
Capital assets, net of depreciation
Other assets

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other governments
Compensated absences
Trust and deposits
Deferred credits and other liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences
Long-term debt
Other long-term liabilities

Total noncurrent liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets

Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net assets

" TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

MARCH 31, 2006
ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

PHILADELPHIA HOUSING AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

M 87,924,787
17,545,373

279,679
31,450,734
15,271,106

4,303,226

156,774,905

$ 166,878,602
25,822,128
969,025,238
11,507,721

1,173,233,689

$ 1,330,008,595

$ 30,717,735

130,258

5,303,776

1,081,131

23,393,917

5,910,000

66,536,817
$ 3,519,193
300,762,516
31,770,366

336,052,075

402,588,892
662,411,627
2,394,240
262,613,837

927,419,703

$ 1,330,008,595

The accompénying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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PHILADELPHIA HOUSING AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

MARCH 31, 2006
Operating revenue: .
Tenant revenue $ 23,129,364
Operating subsidies 321,988,103
Other income 8,562,381
Total operating revenue 353,679,848
Operating expenses
Administrative $ 87,907,417
Tenant services 7,104,579
Utilities 30,628,744
Maintenance 85,051,332
Protective services 7,675,800
General ) 19,569,603
Housing assistance payments 110,588,304
Depreciation and amortization 58,543,007
Total operating expenses 407,068,785
Operating loss (53,388,937)

Nonoperating revenue (expenses):
Interest and investment earnings, net of

capitalized interest of $530,886 $ 6,629,792
(Loss) on the sale of capital assets (12,333,305)
Interest expense, net of capitalized interest
of $3,510,074 (4,660,775)
Net nonoperating revenue (10,364,288)
Loss before capital grants (63,753,225)
Capital subsidies 20,310,136
Change in net assets (43,443,089)
Net assets at beginning of year:
As previously reported 884,647,417
Prior period adjustments 191,714
As restated 884,839,131
Capital contributed to component units 86,023,661
Net assets at end of year 3 927,419,703 ;

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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PHILADELPHIA HOUSING AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2006

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from residents and others
Payments to landlords
Payments to suppliers
Payments to and on behalf of employees for compensation and benefits
Other receipts

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Operating subsidies received

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Purchase of capital assets
Proceeds from debt
Debt principal payments
Interest payments on bonds
Proceeds from capital contributions
Financing costs paid
Capital subsidies

Net cash provided by capital and related
financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from sale of investments

Deposits to replacement reserve

Construction on progress

Advances on mortgages receivable

Interest income
Net cash provided by investing activities
Net increase in cash

Cash - beginning of year

Cash - end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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$ 33,054,152
(110,588,305)
(140,857,876)
(109,164,487)

1,734,171

(325,822,345)

321,941,961

(83,262,744)
20,747,192
(31,670,248)
(4,660,775)
74,871,352
(117,499)
25,902,613

1,809,891

37,528,842

9,594,157
(8,836,501)
(19,215,972)

6,629,795

25,700,321

23,629,828

64,294,959

$ 87,924,787




PHILADELPHIA HOUSING AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2006

Reconciliation of excess of current expenditures over revenues
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Loss before capital subsidies ($ 58,981,416)

Adjustments to reconcile excess (deficiency) of total revenues over
(under) total expenses to net cash used in operating activities:

Depreciation 58,545,696
Bad debts 494,839
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Tenant accounts receivable 840,803
Accounts receivable - subsidy 5,772,755
Accounts receivable - general (5,556,550)
Increase in prepaid expenses (2,756,838)
Increase in due from affiliates 2,191,203
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (8,041,526)
Payable to special limited partner 66,275
Tenant security deposit payable 16,034
Partnership fee 803,373
Government revenues reported in noncapital financing activities (319,216,993)
Net cash used in operating activities _($325,822,345)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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PHILADELPHIA HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2006

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Organization

Philadelphia Housing Authority (“PHA”) was incorporated in Pennsylvania in 1937 as a municipal
authority. PHA develops, acquires, leases and operates affordable housing for city residents with
limited incomes. PHA operates under rules and regulations prescribed by the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and other federal agencies.

To meet the funding requirements of operating deficits that would otherwise result from the essential
services that PHA provides, PHA receives subsidies, primarily from HUD, in the form of annual grants
for operating assistance, contributions for capital and reimbursement of expenditures incurred for
certain federal housing programs, and/or debt service payments. Subsidies are established through
budgetary procedures, which establish amounts to be funded by the grantor agencies

Basis of Accounting

PHA’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board
(“GASB?”) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
Jor State and Local Government. GASB 34 requires the basic financial statements to be prepared using
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, and requires the
presentation of a Statement of Net Assets, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net
Assets, and a Statement of Cash Flows. GASB 34 also requires PHA to include management’s
discussion and analysis as part of the Required Supplementary Information.

PHA’s primary source of nonexchange revenue relates to grants and subsidies. Grants and subsidies
revenue is recognized at the time eligible program expenditures occur and/or PHA has complied with
the grant and subsidy requirements, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions.

PHA has elected to apply all Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) statements and
interpretations issued after November 30, 1989, except for those that conflict with GASB
pronouncements.

Reporting Entity

In determining how to define the reporting entity, management has considered all potential component
units. The decision to include a component unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the
criteria set forth by GASB. These criteria include manifestation of oversight responsibility including
financial accountability, appointment of a voting majority, imposition of will, financial benefit to or
burden on a primary organization, financial accountability as a result of fiscal dependency, potential
for dual inclusion, and organizations included in the reporting entity although the primary organization
is not financially accountable. Based upon the application of these criteria, the reporting entity
includes the component units described in Note 13.



PHILADELPHIA HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2006

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

The component units have been blended for financial statement presentation and are combined on a
three-month time lag.

In addition to the component units, the financial statements of the Philadelphia Housing Authority
include Low-Income Public Housing and Whitman Park and Brown Street Homeownership Turnkey I
Programs under Annual Contributions Contract W-55 » Section 8 Housing Assistance Programs under
Annual Contributions Contract P-4601, New Construction Programs under HUD Housing Assistance
Payments Contracts PA26-8023-025, Development and Modernization programs, various HUD grants
in support of the public housing objective and resident affairs programs.

Federal Programs

Grant programs are subject to financial and compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives.
As of March 31, 2006, management believes PHA’s potential future liability for disallowances
resulting from these audits will not have an adverse impact on the financial statements of PHA.

PHA received approximately 78% of its fiscal 2006 operating subsidies from HUD under the Low-Rent
Housing and Section 8 Programs. Descriptions of the primary PHA programs are as follows:

Low-Rent Housing Prosram

This program provides low-rent housing to qualified residents of the City of Philadelphia. All units
are owned and operated by PHA and were purchased with financing arranged or provided through
HUD. The operations of the program are subsidized by HUD through Annual Contribution Contract
W-55. Operating subsidy contributions for the year ended March 3 1, 2006 were $99,496,892 and are
included in operating subsidies in the combined statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net
assets.

Section 8 Programs

The Section 8 Programs - Housing Choice Voucher Programs - include Moving to Work, New
Construction, Moderate Rehabilitation, Rental Vouchers, and Single Room Occupancy programs.
These programs were authorized by Section 8 of the National Housing Act and provide housing
assistance payments to private, not-for-profit or public landlords to subsidize rentals for low-income
persons. HUD contributions for Section 8 programs under Annual Contributions Contract P-4601
are included in operating subsidies in the combined statement of revenues, expenses and changes in
net assets as follows: :

Moving to Work $135,810,813
Housing Choice Voucher 7,894,229
Moderate rehabilitation 2,295,632
New construction 1,023,793
Single room occupancy 1,531,599

$148,556,066




PHILADELPHIA HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2006

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Moving-to-Work Program

The Moving-to-Work (MTW) Demonstration Program is focused on helping families achieve self-
sufficiency and on improving and increasing the stock of quality affordable housing throughout the
City. It will furnish convenient and comprehensive services to families to assist them in reaching
their full potential, with an emphasis on education, job training and placement, self-sufficiency, and
preparation for homeownership. In addition, MTW will promote the revitalization of neighborhoods
where MTW and MTW-eligible families live.

New Construction and Substantial Rehabilitation Programs

The Section 8 New Construction and Substantial Rehabilitation programs allow for construction of

low-income housing units to be subsidized for a contracted period of time. Both for-profit and not-

for-profit developers may provide low-income housing under this program. Developers must obtain
their own financing and HUD subsidizes rents once the units are occupied.

Moderate Rehabilitation Program

This program provides for the rehabilitation of housing units, which then must be rented to low-
income individuals for a contracted period of time. Both for-profit and not-for-profit developers may
participate in this program. Under this program, developers must obtain their own rehabilitation
financing and then HUD subsidizes rents, once the units are occupied, in such amounts sufficient to
cover the developer’s debt service payments on the financing.

Housing Choice and Vouchers Program

This program allows for existing privately-owned housing units to be used for low-income housing.
This program assists low-income families and persons to find and lease a house or apartment. After
inspecting the unit, PHA assists the resident in negotiating a lease under HUD rules and regulations
for the program. After the lease is signed, the resident pays a share of the rent according to HUD
guidelines, and the remainder is subsidized by PHA through HUD funding.

PHA earns a fee for administering the annual contributions from HUD. This fund accounts for the
revenues and expenses associated with providing administrative services.



PHILADELPHIA HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2006

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued
In addition to the above primary programs, PHA administers the following:

Resident Affairs Programs

Day Care Program

Senior Program

Headstart Programs

Summer Food Program

Congregate Housing Services Program

Summer Youth Program — “Youth Works”

Drug Elimination Programs

Adult Literacy Program

Homeownership Opportunity for People Everywhere (HOPE VI)

Budgets

Budgets are prepared on an annual basis for each major operating program and are used as a
management tool throughout the accounting cycle. The capital fund budgets are adopted on a “project
length” basis. Budgets are not, however, legally adopted nor required for financial statement
presentation.

Investments

Investments are stated at fair value. Income from investments is recognized on the accrual basis.

Land, Buildings and Equipment

Purchased land, buildings and equipment are valued at cost when historical records are available.
When no historical records are available, estimated historical cost is used. When property is sold or
otherwise disposed of,, the asset account and related accumulated depreciation account are relieved and
any resulting gain or loss is included in operations. ‘

The cost of buildings and equipment is depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the related assets

on a composite basis using the straight-line method. Depreciation of building improvements
commences in the year following completion.

10
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2006

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

@

The useful lives of buildings and equipment for purposes of computing depreciation are as follows:

Buildings 40 years
Building improvements 15 years
Roofs 10 years
Heavy Equipment 7 years
Automobiles 5 years
Equipment S years
Computer Equipment 3 years
Compensated Absences

A liability is recorded for compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not
contingent on a specific event outside the control of PHA and its employees, as employees earn the
right to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future services or that are contingent on a
specific event outside the control of PHA and its employees are accounted for in the period in which
such services are rendered or in which such events take place. '

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. '

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

PHA’s investment policies comply with HUD and Pennsylvania guidelines. These policies restrict
PHA’s investments to obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. Government agencies, and their
instrumentalities. All investments are held in a secured custody account in the name of PHA. All
investments are publicly traded and the market value was based on published quoted values. Accrued
interest receivable on investments was $589,587 at March 31, 2006 and is included in accounts
receivable.

11
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PHILADELPHIA HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2006

CASH AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

It is PHA’s policy to maintain collateralization in accordance with the requirements of both HUD and
the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

HUD defines three credit risk categories as follows:

(1) Insured or collateralized with securities held by the entity or by its agent (correspondent bank or
Federal Reserve Bank) in the entity’s name.

(2) Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, trust department or agent in
the entity’s name.

(3) Uncollateralized or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution or by its
trust department or agent, but not in the entity’s name.

At March 31, 2006 cash and investments, all of which were in risk category #1, consisted of the
following:

Credit Risk Category Market Carrying
1 Value Amount
Demand deposits $ 44,905,808 $ 44,905,808 $ 44,905,808
Money market funds 65,602,291 65,602,291 65,602,291
U.S. government and
agency securities 20,756,230 20,756,230 20,756,230
Total $131,264,329 $131,264,329
Petty cash 27,960
Total cash and
investments $131,292,289

12



PHILADELPHIA HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2006

(2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

Reconciliation of detail to balance sheet

Cash - unrestricted $ 87,924,788
Investments - unrestricted 17,545,373
Cash and investments - restricted 25,822,128

$131,292,289

Restricted cash and investments at March 31, 2006 pertain to the following:

Cash:
Resident security deposits
Component unit debt service escrow

Investments:
Deposits under Low-Rent Housing Homeownership Program

Bond reserves
Affordability reserves for Tasker I & 10
Component unit debt service escrow

13

$ 1,759,331

667,247

2,426,578

50,525
12,427,088
3,937,913

6,980,024

$25,882,128
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PHILADELPHIA HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2006

RECEIVABLES

Tenant receivables are presented net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,517.000. The
allowance reflects management’s best estimate of probable losses inherent in the receivable balance,
and is determined based on known troubled accounts, historical experience and economic conditions.
Management performs ongoing evaluations of the tenants’ financial circumstances and has evaluated
the collectibility of the receivables. Actual results could differ from the estimates used.

The receivable from other funds is generated by PHA’s Low-Income Public Housing (“LIH”) Fund
acting as a common paymaster for all programs associated with PHA. The LIH Fund periodically
receives reimbursement from the other programs. At March 31, 2006 the receivables and offsetting
payables from these programs, which are included in current liabilities, netted to zero.

OTHER ASSETS

Current
Prepaid insurance $ 34225
Materials and supplies, net 4,268,994

_$4303219

Noncurrent
Turnkey homes held for resale $ 192232
Capitalized interest, net of interest income of $6,575,001 7,925,990
Other 3,389,500

_$11,507,722

The Authority capitalizes interest in connection with several long-term construction projects. These
projects are financed through several bond indentures as described in Note 7. Interest capitalization
will cease when construction is completed.

14
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PHILADELPHIA HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MARCH 31, 2006

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets are summarized as follows:

Balance Sales Balance
March 31, Capital or Other March 31,
2005 Acquisitions Dispositions 2006

Land $ 37,717,324 $ 39,000 $ - $ 37,756,324
Buildings and improvements  1,417,197,368 101,101,148 (27,314,467) 1,490,984,049
Equipment — dwelling 4,293,839 1,361,740 (171,201) 5,484,378
Equipment — administration 26,510,191 70,179 - 26,580,370
Construction in progress 106,922,204 34,074,901 (39,498,019) 101,499,086
1,592,640,926 136,646,968 (66,983,687) 1,662,304,207

Less accumulated
depreciation (650,536,916) (58,368,523) 15,626,470 (693,278,969)
$ 942,104,010 $ 78,278,445 ($51,357,217) $ 969,025,238

MORTGAGES RECEIVABLE

Mortgages receivable are summarized as follows:

Non-interest-bearing note due from The Philadelphia
Redevelopment Authority (“RDA”)

Amounts due from PHA component units, at interest

rates ranging from 1% to 5.46%

15

$ 34,059,453

132,819,149

$166,878,602




PHILADELPHIA HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2006

(6) MORTGAGES RECEIVABLE - Continued

The amount due from RDA is in connection with the rehabilitation of the rental housing project “The
Courtyard Apartments at Riverview”, which is owned by Southwark Plaza Limited Partnership, a
component unit of PHA. The loan resulted from a HUD grant to PHA, which PHA subsequently
provided to the project to repay tax-exempt mortgage notes issued by RDA. Repayment is due upon
final settlement with RDA.

The amounts due from the component units represent advances of various HUD grants under the
Moving to Work Program, Hope VI Program and other Capital Fund Programs. The offsetting liability
of the component units is included in long-term debt. All balances net to zero with the exception of
$8,514,578 in advances made to component units between December 31, 2005 and March 3 1, 2006.

The repayment schedule is as follows:

Year ending March 31,

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012 -2016

2017 —2021

2022 - 2026

2027 - 2031

2032 - 2036 $ 1,623,348
2037 - 2041 54,002,801
2042 — 2046 72,295,522
2047 — 2051 8,879,420
2052 - 2056 7,297,861
2057 - 2061 22,779,650

$166,878,602
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PHILADELPHIA HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2006

(7) LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt represents borrowings of PHA to fund various projects, and the blending of the
borrowings of component units as described in Note 15. Salient terms of the arrangements are as

follows:
Borrower/Description Outstanding Balance
Due Third Parties Due PHA
PHA

Tasker Capital Fund Revenue Bonds, Series A of 2002, (Tasker
Bonds”), insured by Financial Security Assurance, Inc. Interest
ga able each June 1 and December 1, at rates ranging from
.75% t0 5.5%. Annual principal payments are due each
December 1 through 2021 including unamortized premium
of $1,919,538. $ 76,222,959

Tasker II Capital Fund Revenue Bonds, Series D of 2003,

Tasker I Bonds, insured by Financial Security Assurance, Inc.

Interest payable each June'l and December 1 at 4.75%.

Annual principal payments are due in 2017 through 2022. 11,000,000

Component Units

RDA Bonds related to the Tasker I project, interest at 1%.
principal due in 2042. 29,240,000

‘Series C — RDA Bonds related to the Tasker II project, interest,
at .1%, principal due in 2043. 18,555,000

Mortgage notes for the Spring Garden Housing property. Notes
bear glaterest ranging from nifgto 6.55%, due in 2%1? a;lg 2045 2,096,434

Non-interest-bearing mortgase note to RDA, collateralized by a
mortgage on the Spring Garden property consisting of 97 low-
income units, due in 2045. ’ 1,772,617

- Non-interest bearing note to RDA to rehabilitate the housing
roject The Courtfyard Apartments at Riverview, due upon

inal settlement of the Project. 34,059,453
Non-interest-bearing mortgage note to RDA to develop
Southwark Plaza, due in 2030. 3,000,000

Non-interest bearing mortgage note to RDA, collateralized by a
mortgage on the St. Anthony’s Senior Residences property
consxstm‘iof 53 senior rental units, and monies on deposit

with RDA, due in annual installments from 2030 through 2039. 1,650,000
Affordable Housing Mortgage by the Federal Home Loan Bank.
Interest accrues at 6.09%, due in 2032. 188,400

17
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MARCH 31, 2006

(7) LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

Borrower/Description

Escheated unclaimed funds

$15.8 million first mortgage collateralized by Eight Diamonds
property consisting of 152 low-income housing rental units.
Interest accrues at %%, due in 2040.

$2 million first mortgage, collateralized by the

Spring Garden property consisting of 97 low-income

housing rental units. Interest accrues at the Applicable Federal
Rate, due in 2040.

26.5 million mortgage note related to the Richard Allen
project. Interest accrues at .1%, due in 2041.

Mortgage notes for the development of Suffolk Manor.
Interest ranges from 5.05% to 5.23%, due in
2041 and 2042.

Non-interest-bearing note to rehabilitate the housing
project The Courtyard at Riverview, due in 2037.

Mortgage notes for the development of Cambridge Plaza I.
Interest accrues at 5.46%, due in 2042.

Mortgage note for the development of Tasker I, L.P.
Interest accrues at .1%, due in 2042.

Mortgage note for the development of Mt. Olivet, L.P.
Interest accrues at 5.12% annually, due in 2055.

Mortgage note for the development of CambridgePlaza I.
Interest accrues at 2.54%, due in 2006.

Mortgage notes for the development of Suffolk Manor.
Interest accrues at 2.13%, due in 2006.

Mortgage note for the development of Uni-Penn
Housing Partnership I. Interest accrues at 6.09%,
due in 2041.

Mortgage note for the development of Cambridge
Plaza II, LP, interest accrues at 5.23%, due in 2058.

18

Outstanding Balance
Due Third Parties Due PHA
$ 58,903

$ 15,968,970

2,939,083

27,425,589

10,453,027

1,623,348

2,579,029

3,760,000

6,492,641

2,252,189

3,431,265
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(77 LONG-TERM DEBT — Continued

Borrower/Description

Mortgage note for Mill Creek I, interest accrues at 5.25%.
Non-interest-bearing note to PHFA, due in 2042.

Mortgage note for the development of Mt. Olivet, L.P.
Interest accrues at 0.01% annually, due in 2058.

Mortgage note for the development of Mill Creek I, interest
accrues at prime plus 2%, due in 2050.

Mortgage note for Ridge Avenue Housing, interest accrues
at 0.01%, due in 2041.

Mortgage note for Cambridge III, interest accrues at 5.23%
annually, due in 2059.

Mortgage note for Uni-Penn II, interest accrues at 5.23%
annually, due in 2042.

Mortgage note for the development of Tasker II, interest
accrues at 0.01% annually.

Non-interest-bearing note for the development of Angela
Court, due in 30 years.

Mortgage note for the development of Angela Court,
interest at 5.43%, due in 15 years.

RDA note, 5.43% interest, due in 30 years.

Non-interest-bearing note from a nonprofit developer, due
in 30 years.

Mortgage note for the development of Angela Court,
5.2% interest, due in 2044.

Mortgage note for the development of Lucien E. Blackwell
Homes Phase 11, interest accrues at 2.2% annually

Mortgage note for the development of Germantown House,
interest accrues at 4.52% annually

Mortgage note for the development of Neumann North,
interest accrues at 4.83% annually

Mortgage note for the development of Uni-Penn Housing a/k/a
Martin Luther King Plaza, interest accrues at 4.52% annually
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Outstanding Balance
Due Third Due PHA
Parties

1,396,749
$ 606,879

2,945,126

4,699,659

17,299,682

2,599,079

2,315,907

2,445,000
967,853
315,000
350,000
500,755

362,000

3,594,901

5,978,198

1,783,690 1,751,946

1,991,185

182,367,943 124,304,573
$306,672,516
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(7) LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

The Tasker Capital Fund Revenue Bonds - Series A and the Tasker I RDA Bonds (“Bonds™), are
limited obligations of PHA and were issued on a parity basis pursuant to Trust Indentures
(“indentures™), dated July 1, 2002 between PHA and Wachovia Bank, N.A., as Trustee (“Trustee”), to
provide funds for the indicated projects and other PHA projects. Repayment of the bonds is secured by
a security interest in a portion of PHA’s Capital Fund Allocations (“grants™) from HUD. Such grants
are subject to the availability of appropriations, and are to be paid directly by HUD to the Trustee.

Bonds maturing after 2012 are subject to optional redemption at prices stated in the indentures. In
addition, $15.9 million of Bonds maturing in 2020 and 2021 are subject to mandatory redemption at
face value plus accrued interest.

Under the indentures, PHA is required to maintain on deposit a Debt Service Fund equal to the annual
debt service requirements in any one fiscal year.

The amortization schedule for the long-term debt of PHA and its component units is set forth below:

Debt Service
Year ending March 31, Principal Interest Requirement
2007 $ 5,910,000 $ 6,156,788 $ 12,066,788
2008 6,065,000 5,993,816 12,058,816
2009 6,260,000 5,804,970 12,064,970
2010 6,525,000 5,539,534 12,064,534
2011 6,815,000 5,246,862 12,061,862
20122016 38,930,000 21,568,152 60,498,152
2017 -2021 49,490,000 11,141,044 60,631,044
2022 — 2026 13,790,000 790,726 14,580,726
2027 -2031 3,366,666 - 3,366,666
2032 - 2036 1,955,820 - 1,955,820
2037 - 2041 20,898,070 - 20,898,070
2042 — 2046 108,274,564 - 108,274,564
2047 - 2051 1,991,183 - 1,991,183
2052 - 2056 12,589,049 - 12,589,049
2057 - 2061 22,084,205 - 22,084,205
304,944,557 $62,241,892 $367,186,449
Less current portion 5,910,000
299,034,557
Plus premium on Series A bonds 1,727,959
$300,762,516
Long-term debt is summarized as follows:
Balance at Balance at
March 31, March 31,
2005 Repayments Additions - 2006
Bonds $139,113,903 $ 5,765,000 $ - $133,348,903
Notes due to PHA 112,874,819 9,745,236 21,174,988 124,304,571
Other notes 50,983,649 5,793,842 2,101,276 47,291,083
Plus premium on
Series A bonds 1,919,538 191,579 1,727,959
$304,891,909 $21,495,657 $23,276,264 $306,672,516
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(8) OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Other long-term liabilities at March 31, 2006 consisted of the following:

Self-insurance liability § 5,729,982
Health trust escrow 1,683,143
Workers compensation 4,291,698
Other 20,065,543

$31,770,366

(9) EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT PLAN

Plan Description

PHA contributes to the Philadelphia Housing Authority Retirement Income Plan (the Plan). The Plan
is a single-employer plan which issues separate financial statements. The following table provides
information concerning covered employees and benefit provisions for the Plan.

Covered employees All permanent employees of PHA

Current annual covered payroll $69,677,849

Normal retirement date 65" birthday

Normal retirement benefit 2.5% of Average Earnings, as defined in the Plan,

multiplied by the years of service not to exceed
25 years, plus 1.25% of Average Earnings
multiplied by years of service in excess of 25 years

Death benefit The Plan contains provisions for the payment of
benefits to surviving spouses of employees.

PHA contributes 5.5% of total salary to the Plan. Employees are required to contribute 5. 5% of total
salary to the Plan on a pre-tax basis.
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(99 EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT PLAN - Continued

Actuarially Determined Contribution Requirements and Contributions Made

Actuarially determined contributions are required to provide sufficient assets to pay benefits when due
and are determined using the entry age normal method. Under this method, the actuarial present value of
projected benefits of each individual included in an actuarial valuation is allocated on a level basis over
the earnings of service of the individual between entry age and assumed exit age. The portion of
actuarial present value allocated to each valuation is called the normal cost. The significant actuarial
assumptions used to compute the actuarial determined contributions are as follows:

a) a rate of return on the investments of 7.5% per year
b) projected salary increase of 5.5% per year
c) no post-retirement benefit increase

PHA’s funding policy is to contribute 5.5% of total payroll to the Plan. Employees are required by
collective bargaining agreements to contribute 5.5% of total salary to the Plan. The funding policy is
determined by collective bargaining agreements and employment policies.

Schedule of funding progress:

Actuarial Ratio of

Accrued Funding

Actuarial Liability Funding Excess to

Actuarial Value of (AAL) ~ Excess Funding Covered Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (Deficiency) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (@ ®) (a-b) (a/b) (© [(a-b)/c]

11/01/01 $185,898,576 $198,197,809 ($12,299,233) 94% $72,160,078 (17%)

11/01/02 182,056,877 205,197,363 (23,140,486) 89% 67,924,741 (34%)

11/01/03 191,375,788 213,342,359 (21,966,571) 90% 70,442,599 (31%)

11/01/04 195,151,751 227,044,436 (31,892,685) 86% 71,998,084 (44%)

11/01/05 200,176,636 238,402,516 (38,225,880) 84% 69,677,849 (55%)

At October 31, 2005, the Plan’s assets were comprised of investments in the following percentages: 62%
equity, 37% fixed income and 4% cash.

(10) SELF-INSURANCE

Prior to April 1, 1999 PHA was self-insured for personal injury claims. Asserted and unasserted claims
are accrued based on PHA'’s experience and the advice of an independent claims manager. Although
management believes that adequate accruals have been established, the ultimate liability which may
result from asserted and unasserted claims could differ materially from estimated amounts.

Beginning April 1, 1999 PHA purchased commercial policies for personal injury coverage.

PHA'’s self-insurance liability is estimated based on historical experience, actuarial factors and reserves
requested by the insurance carrier to settle open claims. At March 31, 2006 the worker’s compensation
loss fund reserve was $4,291,698.
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PHILADELPHIA HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2006

LEASE COMMITMENTS

PHA has entered into various noncancellable operating leases, primarily for office space and
equipment. Future minimum payments under these leases are as follows:

Year ending March 31

2007 $ 1,990,840
2008 1,990,840
2009 1,391,979
2010 1,288,102
2011 1,234,827
Thereafter 2,521,957

$10,418,545

Total rent expense for the year ended March 31, 2006 was $2,743,422.

CONTINGENCIES

Laws, Regulations and Federal Examinations

PHA is required to comply with various laws and regulations. Instances of noncompliance could
impact PHA’s receipt of revenue and/or other financial resources. Management of PHA is not aware
of any noncompliance with such laws and regulations that could result in a material disallowance of
costs or withholding of revenue.

PHA is subject to examinations by federal and state authorities who determine compliance with terms,
conditions, laws and regulations governing othet grants given to PHA in the current and prior years.
The current status of such examinations is monitored by HUD.

Legal Actions

PHA is a party to various legal actions arising in the normal course of business. Accruals for
anticipated losses are recorded at the time judgments are rendered or liability appears likely. It is the
opinion of management that the amounts accrued represent a reasonable provision for any anticipated
losses, and the ultimate disposition of these matters will not have a materially adverse effect on PHA’s
financial position or changes in net assets.

COMPONENT UNITS
In accordance with GASB, Statement 14, PHA includes in its financial statements as component units,

legally separate organizations whose affiliation with PHA, among other criteria, is by the nature and
significance of such affiliation sufficient to make the component unit financially accountable to PHA.
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(13) COMPONENT UNITS - Continued

The following separate entities were originally formed, subsequently acquired and/or partially funded
by PHA as part of PHA’s effort to revitalize its inventory of public housing units by taking advantage

-of available tax credits, and combining private investment and public funding to finance the
acquisition, rehabilitation, replacement and operation of public and low-income housing units. In some
cases PHA is the general partner of the owner entity partnership. The following entities have been
included as component units:

Number of

Entity Housing Units
PHA Tenant Support Services, Inc. N/A
Cambridge Plazal, LP : 44
Raymond Rosen Associates, LP 152
Richard Allen Phase III, LP 178
St. Anthony’s Senior Residences Associates, LP 53
Southwark Plaza, LP 470
Spring Garden Housing, LP 97
Suffolk Manor Apartments, LP 137
Tasker I, LP 245
Cambridge Plaza II, LP 40
Tasker II, LP 184
Mt. Olivet, LP 161
Uni-Penn Housing Partnership I 49
Uni-Penn Housing partnership II 46
Mill Creek Phase I, LP 80
Ridge Avenue Housing, LP 135
Cambridge III, LP 40
Angela Court 67
Philadelphia Asset and Property Management Corp. N/A
Philadelphia Housing Development Corporation N/A
Lucien E. Blackwell Homes Phase II, L.P. 80
Germantown House, L.P. 133
Uni-Penn Housing Partnership IV, L.P. 42
Neumann North, L.P. 67

Philadelphia Housing Authority Homeownership, Corp.

In most instances, the entities have entered into agreements with PHA to provide various services for
the projects. In addition, management and/or development fees are paid to PHADC for services
rendered over the life of the project.

The individual entities have issued bonds or other debt to fund projects, including amounts owed to
RDA, and PHA as mortgagees, as disclosed in Note 7.

PHA Tenant Support Services, Inc. (“TSSI”)

TSSI, a not-for-profit corporation, is a program of, and was established by, PHA to promote the welfare
of public housing residents and recipients of housing assistance under Section 8 of the National
Housing Act.
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Cambridge Plaza Limited Partnership (“Cambridge”)

Cambridge was formed as a limited partnership in 2001 to acquire and develop 44 public housing units.
PHA, through a corporate not-for-profit affiliate, is the general partner. The project has qualified for
federal low-income housing tax credits.

The project is being funded by $4.5 million of investor capital, and $4.6 million of loans from PHA.
PHADC is entitled to a development fee of $413,000, of which $248,000 will be recontributed to the
project. Additionally, PHA has agreed to pay approximately $2.8 million of project costs to be funded
by Hope VI and Moving to Work Grants. PHA will provide Operating Subsidies for medium income
families, and will manage the property and receive no fee for its services.

PHA, as owner of the land, has entered into a ninety-nine year ground lease with the partnership at an
annual rental of $1, and has the option to purchase the property from Cambridge at a value and under
circumstances as stipulated in a Purchase Option Agreement.

Raymond Rosen Associates, LP (“Raymond Rosen™)

Raymond Rosen was formed as a limited partnership in 2000 to acquire, construct and operate a 152-
unit apartment complex. The project has qualified for federal tax credits, and accordingly is required
to comply with various requirements including unit eligibility and rent computations. The project will
be financed by $8.3 million of investor capital, a $15.8 million first mortgage from PHA, a $12.5
million second mortgage from the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (“PHFA”), and a
construction loan of $5.9 million with a third-party lender.

The partnership has entered into a 99-year ground lease with PHA at a rental of $1 per year. A
development fee of $1 million and management fees at 6% of rental income are to be paid to an entity
affiliated to the general partner.

Richard Allen Phase II1, Limited Partnership (“Richard Allen)

Richard Allen was formed as a limited partnership in 2001 to develop and operate a 178-unit rental
project. The project is being financed by $16.4 million of RDA bonds and a mortgage from PHA for
up to $23.8 million. '

The partnership has entered into a ninety-nine year ground lease with the RDA at a base rent of $10 per
year.

St. Anthony’s Senior Residences Associates, LP (“St. Anthony”)

St. Anthony’s was formed as a limited partnership in 1998 to construct and operate a 53-unit rental
housing project. As a result of tax credits received, the property is restricted as to rental charges and is
required to lease all units to low or moderate-income individuals or families. The project was financed
by $1.65 million of mortgages from the RDA, and $5.1 million of investor capital.

A development fee of $430,000 and a management fee of 8% of monthly rental collections were paid to
the general partner or entities affiliated to the general partner. St. Anthony’s has entered into a contract
with PHA for operating subsidy payments through 2041.
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Southwark Plaza, LP (“Southwark™)

Southwark was formed as a limited partnership to acquire the Courtyard Apartments at Riverview
rental property from PHA in 1997 through the RDA. The project was financed by $18.9 million of
investor capital, first and second mortgage loans of $35.7 from PHA and a $3 million third mortgage
from RDA.

The partnership has entered into a development agreement with the general and certain limited partners
(collectively, the Developer) for rehabilitation of the property. A development fee of $5.1 million is to
be paid to the Developer. The partnership has also agreed to pay the managing general partner a
management fee of $50,000 per year adjusted annually for inflation.

Spring Garden Housing, Limited Partnership (“Spring Garden”)

Spring Garden was formed as a limited partnership in 1998 to develop and operate a 97-unit rental
housing project. Additionally, the buildings have been designated as “certified historic structures” by
the National Park Service, and, as such, will qualify for federal tax credits. The partnership has entered
into an operating agreement with PHA to provide monthly subsidies, as well as a ninety-nine year
ground lease, under which the partnership will pay rent of $1 per year plus taxes, utilities and other
operating expenses.

The partnership has entered into development and management agreements with entities affiliated with
the general partner. The agreements provide for the payment of a development fee of $1.2 million and
an ongoing management fee of 6% of gross rentals for operating and administrative services.
Additionally, an annual, non-cumulative incentive management fee of 10% of gross rentals is to be
paid for day-to-day administrative services.

Suffolk Manor Apartments, Limited Partnership (“Suffolk”)

Suffolk was formed as a limited partnership in 2001 to acquire and rehabilitate 138 rental units. PHA,
through a corporate not-for-profit affiliate, is the general partner. The partnership has qualified for
federal housing credits. The project is being financed by a $5.3 million mortgage from PHA.

The Partnership has entered into a ninety-nine year ground lease with PHA at a base rent of $1 per
year. .

Tasker I, Limited Partnership (“Tasker I”)

Tasker I was formed as a limited partnership in 2002 to acquire and rehabilitate the 245 public housing
rental units — Tasker Homes Phase I. PHA, through a corporate not-for-profit affiliate, is the general
partner. The project was acquired from RDA pursuant to an Installment Sale Agreement dated
December 30, 2002 and has qualified for federal low-income housing tax credits.

The Project is being funded by $15.4 million of investor capital, $33 million of tax-exempt bonds
issued by RDA, and a $9.9 million mortgage loan from PHA. PHA will provide operating subsidies for
the project.

PHA, as owner of the land, has entered into a ninety-nine year ground lease with the RDA at an annual
rental of $10. RDA has agreed to transfer its leasehold interest in the property to Tasker I in
accordance with the terms of the Installment Sale Agreement.
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Tasker II Limited Partnership (“Tasker”)

Tasker was formed as a limited partnership in 2003 to develop 184 public housing units. PHA, through a
corporate not-for-profit affiliate, is the general partner. The project has qualified for federal low-income
housing credits.

The project is being financed by $21 million of RDA bonds, a mortgage from PHA for $21 million and
investor capital of $12.6 million. PHA will provide operating subsidies to the project.

Cambridge Plaza II Limited Partnership (“Cambridge II”)

Cambridge II was formed as a limited partnership in 2003 to develop 40 public housing units. PHA,
through a corporate not-for-profit affiliate, is the general partner. The project has qualified for federal low-
income housing credits.

The project is being financed by $6 million of investor capital and a loan from PHA for up to $3.6 million.
PHADC is entitled to a Development Fee of $743,708, which will be deemed earned upon completion of
construction. PHA will provide operating subsidies to the project.

Mt. Olivet Limited Partnership (“Mt. Olivet”)

Mt. Olivet was formed as a limited partnership in 2003 to cievelop 161 public housing units. PHA, through
a corporate not-for-profit affiliate, is the general partner. The project has qualified for federal low-income
housing credits.

The project is being financed by $7.165 million of investor capital and two loans from PHA, the (Southside
Mortgage Note) and the (Northside Mortgage Note) for up to $6,492,641 and $3,250,000, respectively.
PHA will provide operating subsidies to the project.

Uni-Penn Housing Partnership I (“Uni-Penn”)

Uni-Penn was formed as a limited partnership in 2000 to construct and operate a 49-unit rental housing
project. As aresult of tax credits received, the property is restricted as to rental charges and is required to
lease all units to low or morderate-inome individuals or families. The project was financed by $2.3 million
of mortgages from PHA and $5.3 million of inventor capital. From the date of initial occupancy, a
management fee payable on a monthly basis.

Uni Penn Housing Partnership II (“Uni-Penn”)

Uni-Penn I was formed as a limited partnership in 2002 to construct and operate a 46-unit rental housing
project. As a result of tax credits received, the property is restricted as to rental charges and is required to
lease all units to low or very low-income persons. The project was financed by a first mortgage
commitment of $2,495,384 from PHA, a second mortgage commitment of $718,000 from the Pennsylvania
Housing Finance Agency (PHFA) and $5,343,000 of investor capital. A management fee, equal to six
percent (6%) of gross collected rental revenue, may be earned annually by the property manager.

27



PHILADELPHIA HOUSING AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2006

(13) COMPONENT UNITS - Continued
Mill Creek Phase I, Limited Partnership (Mill Creek)

Mill Creek was formed as a limited partnership in 2003 to construct and operate an 80-unit rental housing
project, part of the Lucien E. Blackwell Homes development. PHA, through a corporate not-for-profit
affiliate, is the general partner. As a result of tax credits received, the property is restricted as to rental
charges and is required to lease all units to low-income persons. The project was financed by a mortgage
commitment of $6,103,653 from PHA and $12,766,360 of investor capital. PHA will provide operating
subsidies to the project.

Ridge Avenue Housing, Limited Partnership (Schuylkill Falls)

Schuylkill Falls was formed as a limited partnership in 1999 to construct and operate a 135-unit rental
housing project. As a result of tax credits received, the property is restricted as to rental charges and is
required to lease all units to low or very low-income persons. The project was financed by a mortgage
commitment of $18,230,759 from PHA and $5,610,000 of investor capital. A management fee, equal to six
percent (6%) of gross collected rental revenue, may be earned annually by the property manager.

Philadelphia Asset and Property Management Corp. (PAPMC)

PAPMC is a nonprofit corporation formed by PHA in 2004 to provide asset and property management
services to PHA component units.

Cambridge III, Limited Partnership (Cambridge 1IT)

Cambridge IIl was formed as a limited partnership in 2003 to construct and operate a 40-unit rental housing
project, part of the Cambridge Plaza development. PHA, through a corporate not-for-profit affiliate, is the
general partner. As a result of tax credits received, the property is restricted as to rental charges and is
required to lease all units to low-income persons. The project is being financed by a mortgage commitment
of $3,041,325 from PHA and $6,314,248 of investor capital. PHA will provide operating subsidies to the
project.

St. Ignatius Senior Housing, Limited Partnership (Angela Court)

Angela Court was formed as a limited partnership in 2001 to construct and operate a 67-unit rental housing
project. As a result of tax credits received, the property is restricted as to rental charges and is required to
lease all units to low-income persons. The project was financed by a mortgage loan commitment of
$362,000 from PHA, a loan commitment of $1,000,000 from the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency
(PHFA), a loan commitment of $500,000 from the Pennsylvania Department of Health, a loan commitment
of $350,000 from the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority and $5,700,000 of investor capital. A
management fee, equal to six percent (6.6%) of gross collected rental revenue, may be earned annually by
the property manager.
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Lucien E. Blackwell Homes Phase II, L.P. (LEBII)

Lucien E. Blackwell Homes Phase II, L.P. was formed as a limited partnership in July 14, 2004, to develop
80 residential units. PHA, through a corporate not-for-profit affiliate, is the general partner. This project
will be rented to low-income tenants and will be operated in a manner necessary to qualify for federal low
income housing tax credits as provided for in Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code. The partnership
expects to generate an aggregate of $15,639,880 of federal low-income housing tax credits based on PHFA
awards, which will be available in 2006 for use by its partners pro-rated over a ten-year period.

Germantown House, L.P. (Germantown)

Germantown House, L.P. was formed as a limited partnership in November 12, 2004, to develop a 133-unit
apartment project. PHA, through a corporate not-for-profit affiliate, is the general partner. This project
will be rented to low-income tenants and will be operated in a manner necessary to qualify for federal low
income housing tax credits as provided for in Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code. Subject to certain
compliance requirements, the partnership expects to generate an aggregate of $11,925,470 of federal low-
income housing tax credits, which will be available in 2006 for use by its partners pro-rated over a ten-year
period.

The project is being financed by equity contributions by the Limited Partner amounting to $11,772,000 to
be provided in eight installments pending satisfaction of certain benchmarks as well as two (2) construction
period notes from PHA, which will be converted into two (2) permanent mortgage notes totaling
$8,187,912.

Uni-Penn Housing Partnerhsip 1V, L.P. (Uni-Penn IV)

Uni-Penn Housing Partnerhsip IV was formed as a limited partnership in June 28, 2002, to develop 42
units. In July 2004, PHA became the General Partner of the Limited Partnership. This project will be
rented to low-income tenants and will be operated in a manner necessary to qualify for federal low income
housing tax credits as provided for in Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code. Subject to certain
compliance requirements, the partnership expects to generate an aggregate of $5,994,120 of federal low-
income housing tax credits, expected to be available in 2006 for use by its partners pro-rated over a ten-
year period.

The project is being financed by equity contributions by the Limited Partner amounting to $5,334,000 to be
provided in eight installments pending satisfaction of certain benchmarks as well as a mortgage note from
PHA amounting to $3,320,420, a Bridge Note not exceeding $479,700 and a grant in the amount of
$330,000.
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Neumann North, L.P. (Neumann North)

Neumann North, L.P. was formed as a limited partnership in October 7, 2002 to develop 67 senior housing
residential units, including space to be leased for use as an Adult Day Care Center. This project was
completed in December 2005.

This project will be rented to low-income tenants and will be operated in a manner necessary to qualify for
federal low-income housing tax credits as provided for in Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code.
Subject to certain compliance requirements, the partnership expects to generate an aggregate of $6,433,250
of federal low-income housing tax credits, expected to be available in 2006 for use by its partners pro-rated
over a ten-year period. :

The project is being financed by equity contributions as well as three mortgage notes. The equity
contribution by the General Partner amounts to $250,000 and the Limited Partner’s contribution amounts to
$5,475,000. The combined mortgage notes as of December 31, 2005 from the Philadelphia Housing
Authority, the Mellon Bank Community Development Corporation and the Redevelopment Authority of
the City of Philadelphia amounted to $3,533,052 of which the PHA note is $2 million.

Philadelphia Housing Authority Homeownership Corp. (PHA HC)

The Philadelphia Housing Authority Homeownership Corp., a nonprofit corporation, was formed {
January 14, 2004, with the purpose of developing and selling affordable housing units to low-income
families. Additionally, the PHAHC was created to provide financial counseling and other counseling
services to purchasers and to facilitate and coordinate the sale and conveyance of the housing units.

Philadelphia Housing Authority Development Corporation

The Philadelphia Housing Authority Development Corporation (“PHADC”) was created in May of 1997 as
a Pennsylvania non-profit corporation to undertake development activities on behalf of the Philadelphia
Housing Authority (the “Housing Authority”). PHADC is an affiliate of the Housing Authority. The
Board of Directors and the Officers of PHADC are comprised of employees of the Housing Authority.
PHADC has the power and authority to undertake development activities pursuant to agreement with PHA.
In exchange for providing development services to PHA and certain Limited Partnerships, which own
several of Housing Authority tax credit sites, PHADC is paid a development fee in accordance with certain
State and Federal guidelines. To date, PHADC has developed in excess of fifteen public housing rental
and homeownership sites on behalf of the Housing Authority.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

Net assets at March 3 1, 2006 have been restated to correct certain errors in prior financial statements. The
adjustments include the following:

Correction of accounts payable and accrued expenses $191,714

30



HUD SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

31



[43

PLLTTT $ 15788 $ 99718 $ T9v'ze $ 61l $ 9s°ce § ¥89°Z9€ $ TisoLe $ €00°e8 $ LISSHS8S
YLL'TTT 017’88 967 18 T9v'CE 7611 1€h €€ 169°29¢ 96€ 0LE L66C8 TLITTT VS
YLLTTL 01Z'88 96C°18 9%°TE 611 1EP'€E 169°79¢ 96£'0LE L66'C8 $66 €€ ST
. - - . - . - - - 8L1°L98'8C
- 1y 06T - - 1€1 €€ 91 9 SYEVIE'Y
- - - - - - - - - SSLVEY
. . . - - : - - - 8LT0E
- - - - - - - - - 9Ly Y0P
- 1t 0.6 - - 1€l £ 91 9 065 638°€
- Iy 0L6C - - €1 £€ 91¢ 9 780'999°C
- - - - - - - - - ¥12°909
- - - - - - - - - S16°LET
- - - - - - - - - 6L8°3LY
PLL'TTT 157'88 99Z'p8 9'TE TE6 11 795'€€ ¥89°C9¢ T16'0LE £00°€8 915 S¥S'8S
- - - - - - - - - SL1'L98'8T
- - - - - - - - - 8L1°498°8C
pLLTTC 15788 997v8 9% T €611 T95°€E ¥89°79¢ TI6°0LE £00'€8 8EE€'8L9 6T
- - - - - - - - (¢o1) -
695027 €L1'9 LLLLY 160°0¢€ T€6°11 789'¢1 152°0¢T p91'6€T 969 0L8v60'SY
$2TT 8L0'Z8 681°9€ 1L€£°T - 08861 EEPTEL 8pL1€] 9L 655°€8
- - - - - - - - - SIE011
- $ - $ - s - s - $ - § - $ - $ - $ 165'68€p1
6 'oN g 'oN L'ON 9'oN S "oN ¥ oN £ 'oN TN I°'oN oM
214 qeyay 814 quyay 844 qeyay 814 qeyay 31 qeyy 314 qeyey 31 qeyay 314 qeyoy 81q quyey 0
UJIPOA! UIBPOYA WI3POTA URPOTA UJAPOJA UJAPON WIRPO ULIPOIN WIPOA Burropy
g uondag 8 uondeg 8 uondeg 8 uondAg g uondag g uonIAg § uonag 8 uondeg 8 wondag
9007 ‘1€ HOUVIN

SLIASSY LAN JO SINFWALV.LS ONINIFINOD
ALMOHLAY ONISOH VIHdTAAVIIH

SIESSY LAN NV STLLITEVIT TVIOL

SLHSSV LAN TVIOL
pajomsan
palomsey
s1unosoe reydes ur paysoauy
‘SLISSV LAN

SHLLITIEVIT TVIOL
SaTM|IqEY] JUSLIMOUOU [B}0],
sanniqern BmHoO

o[qefed sueo pue sajou ‘spuog
saouasqe pajesuadwoy)

SHLLITIEVIT LNEINONON

Sanijqer] yuaumo [ejo],

SIMIJIGEI] JOYI0 PUB §3IPAIS PalIgya(]
a[quAed sueo| pue sajou ‘spuog
sytsodop pus jsnry,

s35uasqu pajesuadior)

spunj 1sy30 0} angg

sjusUnLBA0d Jagio 03 an(y

s[quied sjumosay

‘sanNIqel] usmy

SLASSV LAN ANV SHILITIEVI']

SL1ESSVY TVIOL
§19558 JULINOUOU [B)0],

s1assR Jay0

uoneroasdap 3o 39U ‘sjasse [ade)
a]qeAreoas a8epopN

SLASSV LNTHENONON

SJ9S8€ JUILND |90 ],

19558 1910
Spuny Joy1o wouy an(y
SjuauLILA0F Jayio woxy sncy
12U ‘59[qRAIa0Yy
SJUIUISIAUL PUR [SBO PAjOInsay
SjuLuURSIAUY

ysed

'SJASSY JuaLINy)
SLASSY



£€

SLIASSV LAN 40 ST "AALV.LS ONINITINOD
1 VIBATIAVTIHd

ALNOHINY D!

e

TT1'9L8'95E § ¥$9'€E6 $ - $ 0SENL $ TS0°'STT $ 6£S°LTI $ 108°cs $ 901C $ T6S'Ll
S61°19¥'81¢€ TES'EES - - 60b'87 £9£°L8 E - 7€6
h8001'9 TES'EE6 - - 199°1 £9€°L8 - - -
ObT'v6E'T - - - - - - - -
£11°999°60€ - - - 8pL°9T - - - €6
LT6'D1Y'3¢E (44 - 0SE'TL 5908 9L1"0Y 108°sS 901°C 099°91
YRE 1V b1 - - - - - - - [5%4
808'80L 11 - - - - - - - 324
£06'8S - - - - - - - -
£L9CLOE - - - - - - - -
£YS ELSET 44} - 0SE'TL ¥v9°98 9L10Y 108°sS 9017 SI4'91
YTP'866'11 441 s - : OEL'LE - - -
9SP'E0L - - - - - - - -
805°019'y - - - - - - - -
80L'65Z'1 - - 0SE'1L pp9°98 - 108°ss 9017 LTI
897°0¢1 - - - - - - -
6LI1LR'Y - - - - 9b'T - - (098°%)
1271°9L8°96¢ ¥$9°€E6 - 0SE'1L £50°ST1 6€S°LT1 108°SS 901 68°L1
SHE35860E - - - 8pL'9C - - - 7£6
e L6l - - - - - - - -
€11°999°60€ - - - 8YL9T - - - €6
9LLLIO'LY $$9'€E6 - 0SE'1L S0£'88 6€S°LTI 108°SS 901 09991
$96'661°¢ - - - 6551 - - - -
625°L16'81 €L0°858 - - - 6£S'LT1 - - -
8¥8°0£9°1 185°5L - 0S€'1L 9bL'98 - 9ZE'es - 018°s1
065°9¢€ - - - - - - 9017 -
£68°169° - - - - - - - -
88846271 - - - - - - - -
p90'Ev6’s  § - s - s - $ - s - $ SLr'e s - 0s8

tueiSorg weilorg weaSorg wexdory Kuaryng sweidoag wsaory wmeadorg ELATY

Suisnog Asusdnang ansuardayjuy Buisnoy Jps 8 uonIg NIAIG ARG pPESH

aqng uooy 33mg ynox aansoddng pue {yjunyreddp uwonodnaysuoy Bursnoy poog

Judy Moy g uonoag JUIPISAY MON aedaudua) urumg

9007 ‘1€ HOUVIN

$ SIASSV IAN ANV SALLITEVIT TV.LOL

SIHSSV IAN TVIOL
patornsaiuf)
parolnssy
siunoooe feyides u pajsoAu]
‘SLESSY LAN

SHILITIEVIT TV1OL
SONIIQEI] JUSLMOUOH [210],
sauIiqey 1PmO

a[qefed suso] pue ssj0u ‘spuog
saoudsqe pajesuaduio)

SHLLIMEVIT INTIANONON

SanIqel Juamo o],

SaRIIIqer] 1310 puE S)palo paueja]
s[qeded suwo| pue ssjou ‘spuog
sysodap pue jsmuy

seouasqe pajusuadmor)

Spuny Joyio 03 an(y

SjusuILISA0g 19130 03 an¢y

d[qeAed syumooay

‘SauIqer] suaimy

SLASSV 1IN ANV SAILITIEVIT

SLASSV TV.LOL

SJ9S5% JUSLINOUOU [§j0],

s1a85€ 1210

uonersaidap Jo jau ‘syasse eyde))
3[qeA1091 98uBuoN

SLASSY INIINONON

SI955® JUILND €30,
5)955% 1910
Spuny Jayjo woly an(y
SIUSWIUISA0S 1310 WOLJ an(f
19U ‘s3]qeAlaoey
SJUSUIISIAUT PUR YSBO PIIINSDY
SjuaUNSIAUT

used

'§1988Y uaLmy)
SLASSY



TETOPO'LOL § ¥SS'E $ 80z'107 $ €ohe6E6E §  TS8'9IS $ V60'T8L'EGT $ O910E67C $ LIOTOVE § 60LLrlT § 190°SC §$ SIASSV .LAN ANV SALLITEVIT TVIOL
CET'OV0°LYT - 6L ELEOLE9E 268°91¢ 100'40€187 1€5°987°C 0EL'EIET 96€11 S81°91 SLASSV LAN TVIOL
TETOP0'LYT - (0) (T1LeLe) - Ak LOTLLTT 0ELEIET 96€'11 $81°91 pajomsanny
- - - - - - - - - - pajornsoy
- - 6L $80°05€"LE T68°91¢ LS8'6¥T'181 $92'6 - - - SJUN0d9e [eydes ur paysaAuy
‘SLASSY 13N
- y6s'e 0£1'102 080°€Zv T - £60'8LY T1 Y£9'€h9'07 988'841°C E1E9E1°T 9/8°8 SHLLITIAVIT TV.IOL
- - 8 0sP°1Z - ¥HT'07 b6 €6 - - - SSIIQEI] JUILINOUOU [£)0],
- - 3 0sy1C - ¥rT'0T 668°TS - - - SONIIQeI] 10
- - - - b - - . - - o[qeded suro| pue ssjou ‘spuog
- - - - - - [STIN47 - - - $a0ussqe pajesuadurcy)
SELLITIEVIT INTYNONON
- bSS'E 990107 0£9'10¥'C - 6V8°LSY'TI 069'6v5°0C 988°8Y1'C E1E9E1'T 9/8°8 SanI[Iqe] JuaLmD [ej0],
- SLE'S LSL'P) T€9°€50°1 - 0bS'¥30°¢ 96L'SL L69'E - - SOINIqEI] 19410 PUB SHIPAI0 pausjac]
- - - - - - - - - - 31quded sueo| pue sajou ‘spuogy
- - - - - - - - - - ssodap pue jsruy,
- - - - - - L9819 - - - s93uasqe pajesuaduro))
- (444 687°981 11016 - £PL'381'6 608°26€°0C 681°SH1T E1E°9€1°7 9.8°8 spuny 1a110 0] anQg
- - - - - - - - sjuaunuIsA0g 1ayjo o0} sngg
- (z¢) - 986'90% - 99581 815°61 - - - s[quAed spmosoy
‘saninqey uaum)
SLASSY LAN ANV SHILITIEVIT
TET0PO°LYL ¥$S°E 602107 £5P'66€ 6€ 758°91¢ ¥60°78L'€61 991°0£6'¢C L19°Tob'E 60L°LY1T 190°ST SLASSV TVIOL
209'8L8°991 - 6L $80'0SE'LE 76891¢ LS8'6vT 181 $9T'6 - - - 51558 JUSLMAUOY [B10]
- - - - - - - - - - 10858 1010
- - 6L $80°05€'LE T68'91¢ LS86VT 181 <976 - - - uoneaa1dap jo 13u ‘syasse [endey)
709'8L8°991 - - - - - - - - - a1quAa0al aFeSpoN
SLASSY INDINONON
0£9'191 [5%3 0e1°10C 89€'6v0'T - LETTES' T 10602622 LI9TOV'E 60L°LY1T 190'sC S19S55E JUSLINO [B10],
- - - - - 0£8°C - (es1) - - 519858 JaqI0
0£9°191 - LSL'YT €€1°91 - 81697 - 95908 - - SpUNJ J9YI0 wWoly any
- - €LE981 SET'EEOT - 684'205°CI 10811 L0530 - 190°5T SIUUILI3A0Z 13110 WOY an(]
- 861 - - - - STY'L96 89T 897 - 19U ‘S3[qeAIR0SY
- - - - - - - - - - SJUDUNSIAUT PUR YSBD PIJOLISIY
- - - - - - 000°000's - - - g sjuSwnsoAU]
- $ 9sg'c $ - - $ - s - $ $86'Ip6'91 § IPHLKI'T  $ Iwivit § - $ use)
151988 JuaLND
SLASSY
J[qBAIRIIY UEBLY) 3uidy Buisnoy anqng sweidorg sueIdoag wmeidorg 31gq qeyey $323 umpy 01 "ON
$ION Juamdopaaq ay) 10§ passansiq FLETTSN puny J13qdN0A UIIPOTAT 313 qeyey 313 qeyay
wLa ) -3uoy pus a1e) sweidoag Kpa34Asg Jo dwo) &de) [dr0y) duisnoy 8 uonRIg DISPOA WIIPOIA]
Uil [813adg UONEZI[E)IASY 8 nondag 1810}, g uondeg g uofoag

9007 ‘T€ HOUVIN
SLASSV LAN 40 SINTWALVIS HNINITINOD
ALINMOHLAV ONISNOH VIHdTAGVIIH



Se

€I9'Pr0'99E 1§ 8E6'61L°T $§ ITLTI60EYy § LSU'STTLT § 8E8TER'T § €SOP6O'LY
£0L 61¥'LT6 1687951 106'L81°LLT L6S'SY1'LT (S86'1LY'6) (T01°LL1'ZE)
LER'E19'T9T 6bS Y6y T8T6E9TY I 9IZ'v0E'1 LEL'980'01
OVT'Y6E'T - - - - -
LT911H'T99 TYE0LO'T 619°8¥S"¢ET 965°Sh1°LT (roz'oLL'o1)  (8€8°c9z'sh)
606 ¥79'8EY LYO'SST'Y 0Z8°€06'59Z 095 6L €78 0E 11 YSUILT6L
9L0'CS0'9€EE - T16 10L'9€ET - 000700011 09036 CL
69€0LL'1E - 85T9€6'61 - - 101
915°79L'00€ - $59°59L'91T - 000°000°11 656°LE6'TL
161°616°c - - - - -
€€8°CLS 01 LY0'sS1'L 806 10Z°6C 095°6L £28v0€ P60'EEE'D
LI6'€6E'ET 9/9'819 8LY'86CE 095°6L £78°50E €TTHS1
000°016°S - 000°529°C - - 000°68Z°¢
1€1°180°] - SLY'LLE - - -
9LL'E0E'S - L36'YT - - -
810°9€0°9¢ 819'6Z¢ - - - 6VELIO'T
897°0€1 - - -
€TLLILOE £5L°9 89L°C18°TT - - TT5°9L8°1
E19PH0'99E T 8€661LT 1ZLI60'Ery  LSISTTLT 3£8°7€8'1 TS0'V60°LY
€S TIVLYI'T  THEOLO'L 1LL°8TE'8SE 965 SPI'LT 860°0£0°1 £18°8L0°SE
120811 - 869 68€ € - 662908 T69°61T°L
0¥Z'520'696 THe'0LOl £LT'6E6'YSE 965°SH1°LT 66L°€TT 121°656°LT
709'8L8°991 - - - - -
050'€€981¢ 965 699°1 056 29Lt8 195°6L 0bL'T08 6£7°S10°CH
LTTEOE Y - 9£0660°T - - -
9109€0°9¢ 900°C1 - - - -
PEL'OSYIE - Y TI1'p1 195°6L - -
68L°05SS1 65S'EP0°1 1€£°060°€1 - - -
8T1°TL8'ST - 9P1°E0LS - 0yLT08 6VEVTILL
ELE'SHS LY 98Y'LYT - - - -
LSL'YT6'L  §  SPSObE $ 68seSL'Ly § - $ - $ 068°06€
smeadosy sjugsny sHun weadory spaddory pung
YHd [ed0y juanodwo)) lich ] puog NIAG
1810%, pug papuatg ~doparaq asodang 193
98 {eIoudn
9007 ‘1€ HOUVIN
SLASSY LAN 40 SINTWIALV.LS ONINIFINOD
ALROHILAY £ 2H VIHITAAVTIHA

§ SLHSSV LAN ANV SHILITEVIT TV.IOL

SLESSY LAN TV.LOL
pajomsaun
palomsay
S1un0298 [eldes uy paysaAu]
‘SLESSV LAN

SHLLITIEVITTV.LOL
SONI[IqE]] JUSLINOUOY {210,
saniiqer] 1mo

o1qefed sueoj pue sajou ‘spuog
Saguasqe paresuaduro)

SHILITIEVIT INSTINONON

SanIqel] suaimd [ejo ],

SIULIGRI] IS0 pue SHIP3I> PILIY3(T
s]qeded sueo] pue sajou ‘spuog
syisodap pue 1snry,

590uasqe payesuadwo)

spuny 1a430 0} an(y

SJUSIWIAA0F J2Y30 0} an(q

sjqeded sjunosoy

SapIqel] Jusimy

SIHSSV LAN ANV SHILITIEVIT

SLASSV TVIOL
$]255€ JUALINOUOU [BI0,

513558 19110
uoneoadap Jo Jau ‘spasse Tede)
31qeAra0a1 a8eBUoN

SLASSY LNTHINONON

§]9§5% JUALIND [B10],
$19858 10410
spuny 13tpo woxy ang
sjusunIaAof 1910 woly ang
1911 ‘S9[qQuAIRIY
SJUDUNSIAUT PUE YSED PaIosay
SJUAUNSIAU]

gseD

5988y JuaLnD)
SLASSY



"
TLITTTYS § 9617 19p'8IE § Tes’eee §0 - 1 §  LOV'8T $ €9¢°L8 0§ - $ - $ €6 $
¥$5960'19 9pE091°ELE 61t'168 000°00T - 061°LT L8L°S9 - - (SET'ED)

- SLLLS - - : - - - - -
7596019 1LST0T°ELE 614168 000002 - 061°LT L8BL'S9 - - (sezcl)

(€LETSL8’0) (1S1°669'S) ey (000°002) I 9171 9LS'1T - - 991'p1
(89¥°LyS 1) SPE'679°TT - - - - - - - -
960°TLY'L (96¥"8zE°LL) AR W44 (000°002) 1 9171 9.5 1T - - 991°p1
T£9'695 (66£°69L°8) - - - - . - - -

- (3¢€6°cvL’6) - - - - - . - -
T£9°69S 8ESVL6 - - - - - - - -
£oOv'T01’L (L60°655°89) £y (000°002) I 9171 9.S'1Z - - 991°p1
0S€'80L°8T1 T9E°To'S81 9846851 000°00Z SEV'9EE TSS'S8T LITT00'1 SLO'68 $95790¢€ 6€07T0L
S08°bE] 8P8‘REY'SE - - - €11 - . . 88¢
114'968°66 - o1H°L8T1 - - - L¥1°896 - - -
6€1°181 LOOLS9LL LZ8 000°00Z 961 £6 orl o€ - 9TL'l
P6v¥°782'C PL180T'S - - - - - - - -
6LEOPS T £VE°90L'9S - - - 687°01 - - - P18y

- ELB'EES ST - - - - - - - -
66791 £0LLLY Y - - 6£0°65 6T€°€T - 95.'88 000°S0€ 9¥1'95S
£T9'PLETT SIv'ovy oy £9T10T - 661°LLT 015°3€7 1€6°€E 682 $95°1 S9t'8E]
£18°018°SET S9ZE06 911 66571€S°1 - 9EY'9EE 89L°98C £6L°€T0°1 SLO68 ¥95°90€ 907°91L

- TS1°69¢ - - - - - €691 Ly8'6LL SILTHY
£18°018°S¢1 TT8°964°66 665°1€S°1 - 9EY 9EE 89987 €6L°€T0°1 Evy°p8 LIL9Z1 06Y°€L

- $ 16Z°198°91 § - $ - - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $

HIOMA wexdorg weadorg wadodg werdory fouapyyng surgiSorg weidosg wieiBoiy ueg
0} Suisnoyy Aduednng snwaadanuyg  Suisnoy s g uondRg NAG NIANG peoy
Suropy anqng wooy y3uig y3nox sagroddng  puw Qranysoddg uononysuoy  Suisnopy pooyg
Y Mo g uonIRg JUIPISIY MIN 983218u0) BEDTH TN
9007 ‘T€ HOYVIA

ALTYJOHLNY DNISIOH VIHdTAAVTIHA

SLASSV LAN NI STONVHD ANV SASNAIXT ‘SHNANIATYH 40 SINTWALVLS DNINTENOD

Teak JO pus e s)asse Jou [e30],

Juaunsnipe Joysuen Knba pue pouad Joig

panodal Ajsnotaard sy
:1eak Jo Buruurdaq e sjesse 10U [810],

s1088® 10U U1 23trey)

SIaJsuel],

sapisqns [eyide)
sapisqns [eydes a103aq (ss0f) dwosuy

(sasuadxa) pue snuasar Sunersdouou JoN
asuadxa 3sa10ju]

$)985E PIXY JO S[es 9} Uo (§S07) pue uren
SBUTLLIRY JUSUNSOAUT PUB JSAIAU]
i(sasuadxa) pus enuaass Suneradouon

(ssop) swosut Suneredo

sasuadxa Sunesedo eioy
$35N/590IN0S pUN}IAjUY
uoneziowe pue uoneoadacy
suresSoid souepsisse Suisnoy
[e1euan

$301AIOS 9A1}0901J
20UBUAUIBIA]

sapImN

S91AISS JURUST,
dAljensupy

:sasuadxo SuneladQ

anusAax Sunerado g0,
auwoou JOy0

satpisqns Suneradp

9NUGAQI JUBUS) [BI0L
:anuead) Sunelsdp



96€11 $ <8191 § vLLTZTC $ 01788 $ 96718 $ wor'Te $ 61l § 1evEE $ 15979  § 96£°0LE § L6678 $ Teak JO pua Je 510852 39U [RI0],

- LOL'S] 0L6 70T 115°78 £S8°LL 9LETE 909°86 781°1€ €LT°S9T £01°5¢ T5T€8

sunsnipe 1aysuesy Annbs pue pourad roug

- LoL'st 0L6°T0T 11528 €68°LL 9LETE 90986 8I°1€ €LT7°69T €01°55€ TST'E paviodar Asnoyaaid sy
:JeaAk yo SurumBaq v s1esse 10U [e10],

96€°11 Ly $08°61 669°S B 98 (vL9'98) 6¥T'T 6LE°L6 £67S1 (552 §y9s5E JoU U oFURYD
- - - - - - - - - - - sIoysue1],

= - - - < - - - - - - sapisqns jepde)
96€°11 LYy $08°61 669°S £hp'e 98 (bL9'98) 6¥TT 6LE'L6 £67°51 (ss2) saplsqns [eyden a105aq (ssof) awoou]

96€11 - - - - - - - - - - (sesuadxa) pue anuaaar Suyesadouou joN

= T " - " " = - < - - asuradx9 150193U]

- - - - - - - - - - - §JasSB paxIj JO S[es 2y} Uo (SS0) pue uien
9611 - . - - - - - - - - s8urures JuaUSIAU] puR 1SIIUY
‘(sasuadxa) pue snuasar SuryessdouoN

- LIy v08'61 669°S e 98 (¥L9°98) 6¥7T 6LE'L6 £67°61 (552) (sso]) swoour Suneiadp

- 121’98 S6TTTE PLTEET STYeel P81°TH 9L 196°8L 865°88¢ 889°975 £50°97Y sasuadxe Bunerado o],

535N/5301N0S pumyIAu]
. - - - - - - - - - - uoyezipows pue uonernaidacy

- €SP 18 THL'TLT 8$9°07 ELL'YTL 0vL'3€ 97L 665°EL PLLIOE 6L0°T6Y 180°96€ surergod aoueysisse Buisnoy
- 0z €07 49 SE 12 - 0z o1l wl 131 Jessuan
- - - - - - - - - - - SI0IAIAS IA1DI0IJ
- - - - - 0§ - - - - (zeo1) 2ouURUAUIBIN
- - - - - - - - - - - samnn
- - N = - - - N - = - §901A10S JURUD ]
- LY6'y 0S€°6Y SLSTI L19°8 18€°¢ - L¥6'y SL99T LOV'PE wy'ie AANEnSIUIWpY
:sasuadxa Superady
- 8€8°98 660°THE £L6'8ET 898°9¢1 0LT'TY (896°8) 918°08 LEG'S8Y 186 1¥S 86L°STY anuasay Surjerado reo]
- - < < - - - - - - - wodu! Y0
- 8£8°08 6607 £L6°8€T 898°9€1 0LT'TY Q&,me 918°08 LEG'S8Y 186145 86L°STY sarprsqns Bunessdo
- $ N $ - $ - $ - $ - $ b $ - $ - $ - $ - $ SNUIAJI JUBUL] [RI0],
‘ :anuaaal uneredp
s394 unupy 01 "oN 6 ON 8 ‘ON LON 9 'oN § 'oN ¥ 'ON € 'ON T'ON 10N
Bgquyey igqeyey  Bigqepey  Bagqeqey  Sigqeney  Sugqumey  Bagqewey Brgquyey  Sagquqey Ragquyey Sag qeyey
WIIpOA WIIPON WIIPOIA WIIPOIA DEET T WIIPOA WIRPOA WIPOIN WIAPOTAI QPO UIPOIA
8 uondag 8 uonNg g uondg g uonIg g uoyIRg 8 uonR g uondRg 8 UonIIg 8 uondRg g uonNg [ R LIVREIN

9007 ‘I€ HOYVIN
SLASSY LAN NI STONVHO ANV SASNIIVT ‘SINNFATY 0 SINTWTLY.IS ONINIFINOD
ALNOHINY £ JH VIHdTEAVTIHd

e



96S'SYI'LT § (S86°1Lb°6) § (TO1LLITE)S ZET'OVOLIT § (0) $ 6L $ VLEYLEDE S TSBOIS  § L66'EOEI8I S 1€59877 OELEIET § Teak JO pua Je 5)asse 10U 210,
68V’ SL6LT  19vt81 (¥96°888°CE)  6£8°P09LYI - 397 OI¥'b6Y'0E  LLT0ES 8€0°L00%LT  (LT6€91) Y68V 1
- - - 08T'SEL - - - (18v'sep) 98Y°SET - - Jusunsnfpe Joysuen Ayinba pue potsad soug
68Y'SLELT  19V'p8I (196'888°CE)  655°698 91 - 897 OI+'v6¥'9E  L§L‘S96 €ssrLL'eLl  (Lze'esl) v68°vvT’l pauodai Ajsnoraaid sy
:1eaf yo Burumr3aq e sjass® JoU [R10],
(£68°678) (9v¥'959°6) — T98T1LT gee'ser'sl (0 (681) S96'18Y (Szr'en) 6569671 8Sv0SvT LERR9 s10558 Jour uf o8uey)
- 005°2ZS 788°006%9 24 YA - - (EELV6ET) - (899°660°S€) - - sIoysuer],
0 - - - - - LETPTY 1 - 6€6'58881 - - sapisqns [ejide))
(£68°68) (ov6'sL1'01)  (0ZO'681°S)  TSI‘P6ET ()] (681) 005°TSY (szv'en) 889°01S'€T  8S¥0SH'T LER'89 sapIsqns [e)ded a10§eq (ssof) swioouy
- - STE0T TSTY6ET (1ev'1) - - - (16¥755°F) TEETLET 96€°11 (sesuadxa) pue onuaaas Sunyesadouou JoN
- - - - - - - - (¥T1°€90°7) - - asuadxa 152193y
- - - - - - - - (29’6857 - - §1955% paxy 3o a[es aup uo (S50°7) pue ufen
- - §TE0T TSIv6ET (ev'n) - - - - TEETLE' 96€°T1 SBUIUIER JUSUNISIAU] PUR IS
‘(sesuadxa) pue anuaass SunesedouoN
(€68°678) (ov6'8L1°0T)  (SvE'60Z°) - 16071 (681) 00S7TSY (stv'eD) 6L1E91'8T 9Z1'6L0°1 LS (ssor) swoour Surerado
£68°678 9968L101  SPE60TS - £09°69 97T vl EIS68E°ET  STrEl 6L8°SYO'ST  LYELWOL 161°8€2°7 sasuadxa Sunesada [el0],
- - - - - - - - - - - $35N/5301N0S punyIsuy
£68°678 - 859°Z8L°1 - - 681 TETTH6 STYCl £19°666°8 ££9°51 - uoyezIows pue uokeioadaq
- - - - - - - - - SIL'EIY'9 $19790°T surerdoxd souejssse Suisnoy
- - - - €676 Y44 - - - T0e'Ll 67L [e1suaD
- - - - - - - - - - - SAIIAIIS 2A13301d
- SPE'ERI0T  9E6'PIL’ - - 06 68€°TTI'L - YETISLE (se1°D) (€85'1) soueUSUTR
- - - - - - - - - - - sanunn
- - LoL'11 - LEEYS 620°TTI Y6L1TY'T - 1LE€01 - - Sa0IALSS JUBUDY,
- (666%) #P000L°1 - EL6'T 9691 860°€06°C - 19916271 1€8°709 TEF9L1 AAnensIIpY
:sasuadxs Suneradp
- - - - ¥€0L9 LEOPTT YI0TH8El - 860°608°CS  TLYOTI'S T€9°S6T'C anusAal Funesado [ejo
- - - - 266'19 - - - - EYTTET - awosuy IO
- - - - wo's LEOYTI Y10Tr8 el - 850'608°€S  6TTV68L T€9'$67°T sa1prsqns Suneredo
- $ - $ - - $ - $ - $ - $ - § - - - $ 2NUADI JURUA] [E10 ],
‘anusaal Sunerado
weadol g spaanoag puny IqeARIY spuBIo) Smdy Buisnoyy olqng  sureaoag swwadory wexdolg 314 qeyay
FLELI] puogq NIAIRG s3joN yuawrdogaadq Y 10) passousiq jueas) panyg JYINOA UIIPOIA
-dopar(q asodang 192q w -guoy pue ) sweaSory  A[udAag o dwo) Ede) oY) Susnoy g uondag
|LAELETSY PRYD jeads UOYBZI[BIAIY g uonRg 18101,
9007 ‘1€ HOUVIN

SLASSY LAN NI STONVHD ANV SASNAIXT ‘SANNAATY 40 SINTWALVLS DNINITFINOD

ALINOHLNY DNISNOH VIHATAAVIIHd



bt

€0L'61¥°LT6 § 0681951

106°L81°LLL $

Ieak JO pua 8 §13SSE 13U [R10],

1€1°6£8 ¥88 S8E'6ZS'T 606768°€6
PILT61 - (LyeTiop) Juounsnfpe 1aysues; Aynbe pue porsad Joug
LIVLY9V88  S8E°6TS°T 9STY6T 46 pauodai £jsnoraaid sy
:1eaf Jo SuumiBaq e s)esse Jou [e10],
1L5°085° Ty S0S°SE T66 Y61°€8 sjasse 30U Uy a5uey)
()] 9€L610°1 y91°826°C Siajsuel,
9E1°01€°0Z - - saprsqns [eyndey
oev'oLz’ze  (1€2°86) 878°99£08 sap1sqns [eiden a102q (5507) awoouy
(88T°Y9€°01)  6SS°LI (€9€°STET) (sesuadxo) pue anuaaal Suneradouou JoN
(SLL'099) - (159°L657) asuadyxa 3sa1o3uf
(soe‘gee ) - - 519858 PaxIy JO S[es Ay} Uo (sS0) pue uren
T6L°679°9 6SS°LL 88Z°7LT1 sBurures JuounsaAul pue 3sa1au]
‘(sesuadxoe) pue anuaaax SuperadouoN
vIL'vE9ce  (06L7T007) 16176918 (ssor) swoout Surreredo
YeISp0'IZe  9€TIP8T  (SSS0TIH9) sasuadxo Surjessdo [ei0],
(199°€z0°08) - {Ss9°€2008) S3ST/S30.MOS PUNLISIY
800°€tS‘8S 165°0€ 007 1¥9°6 uonezZIOURE pus uonewadag
$0E'885°011 - - suresSoxd sourejsisse Suisnoy
£09°695°61 - 006°00S°T [eJausy
008°SLYL €E1°TT 86691 SIDIAJSS BANN0S101
TEE1S0°68 WTiee'l 681°€69°C soueUS RN
vPL'8T9°0E - 1L8460°T sennnn
8LSPO1L S6ELY £LT°10T SAOIAIDS JUBUS
LIY'LO6'LS vL8'61H 695°809°S oANENSIUNIPY
:sasuadxa Suneladp
8¥8°6L9°ESE  Lvb'6€8 9€9°1LS L] anuaads Sunessdo [e10],
18€°79S°8 091°0L 6£9°608°9 swoout 19O
€01°886°TCE  LBT'69L YT6'LLY Y satprsqns Sunesedpy
yog'eTi'ec § - €L0°887°9 ¢ SMUDASI JUBUS) [BIOL
:anuoAal SuneradQ

susagoay SJuBlS) sy
VHd 83071 yuduoduro))
™o, pus papualg
nug

9007 ‘T€ HOYVIA
SLASSY LAN NI STONVHD ANV SASNTIXT ‘STAANTATY 40 SINTWALVLS ONINIFINOD

ALINMOHLAV D

"OH VIHdTHAVTIIHd



SOY'TLR 0T 6£L 66T S68 - - - - - - - saulpjing 291
- 0Z8'81€SC - - - - - - " puey 191
81asse paxiy
‘SIHSSY INTHNONON
8EE8L96T HOLLLIOLY vS9'EE6 | OSETL S0£'88 6£5 LTI 108°SS 9017 09991 SIASSV LNS¥MND TVLOL! |osT
- - - - - - - - - papiAoid 9q 0] Sjunowry opl
0L8'P60°S] 4 625 L1681 €L0'8S3 - - 6€S°LTT - - . 03] onp wrerdosdiaig| | 1vpl
- #000°LZE) - - - - - - - SALI0JUSALY 2)2[0SO 10] AIUBMO[[Y I'epl
- 0bLT6V € - - 6551 - - - - SO[IOMISATY| | 1Ep1
- STT Y€ - - - - - - - 19858 1330 pue sasuadxs predary vl
- LEV'886'€E - - - - - - - paidtnsal - 3=o§mw>ma ZEl
- 888'L67C1 - - - - - - - PIJOIISAIUN - SIUSUNSIAUT 1¢e]
- SJUSUISIAUL JUSLIND)
| |
L1861 8EV'L96 ] 185°SL 0SE'IL 9bL'08 - 9ZE €5 901'C 018°S1 F3[qHII3[03UN 10] S30UBMO][E JO U 'S]qRAIadal [EJOL| | [0Z1
10t°201 09951 - - - - - - - 3[qQEAT09] 15011 Aoy 621
- - - - - - - - - phelJ - SJUN030Y [NJIQROP 20] S9UBMO[[Y 1'8Z1
- - - - - - - - - AISA03I pnelg 8Z1
- - - - - - - - - JUAIIMD -3{qeAI02I §98e3LIOW pUe SSION Pk4l
- - - - - - - - - 15110 - SJUN030E [NJIQNOP 10J 2OUBMO[]Y 7921
- (0£S91S'T) - - - - - - - {S1URY 3UI[[aMP - SJUNOSOE [NNIGNOP J0] SOUEMO][y 1921
- 0606601 - - - - - - - SIU0I JUIOMP - SJUEUS) -3]qEAIS0] STUN0IDY 9Z1
L16T 699°1 - - - - - 901C - SNOJUR[]ISIW - J[qRAIDAI SHUNOIFY SZ1
- - - - - - - - 018°S1 JUSWILIDA0E ISY30 - S[QBAISIST SJUNGITY $Z1
STE 8L - 185°SL 0SE1L 9v.'98 - 9Z¢ €5 - - s103loxd 1910 N H - S]qEAI9931 §1UN093Y 44
YET'S 8¥8°0£9'1 - - - - - - - $§193[01d YH{ - 3]qBAI03I SJUNOCIIY 121
S3[qeAIddaI 910U pue SHUN0IIY
|
165'68€¥1 11 0TS 9¥9°9 - - - - SLve - 0S8 yses jeioL | fool
- 95Y°£0L - - - - - - - S315003p AJLINISS JUBUS) - YSe) [l
- - - - - - - - - qet] Jusmnod Jo Jouwiked Joj pajoixsal - Ysed] ST1
- - N - - - - - - PajoLnsal 1ago - ysey £l
- - - - - - - - - A9p pue uopezimIpow - Pasal - yse) AR
165681 1 ¥90°€v6'S - - - - SLV'T - 058 PajoLnsan - yse) 111
‘yse)
‘SLISSV INHWEND
‘S.LASSY
[
# Way) aur}
HAOAN s[8I0L s[elo], SINAIIS Luapyngs Jps | UOINIISTO) | SuISnoy werdoly  [009°€6 # VAID uopdiIdsa(y JUNoIIY
0) A0 weidosg yudy Moy ureidoay Buisnoy pue Qumoddo | ma) g HONIIS 9)8da13u0) Suipaog 118)S pBayg
£yuednddg | aanreddng wapy Joung
wooy
ajduis gg

ATINAAHDS VIVA TVIONVNIL
9007 ‘1€ HOUVIN

ALNOHLAV ONISAOH VIHLTIAVIIHd



187

- £06'85 - - - - - - - sy00{01d Jendes -JuaLmd jo 13U 1qap ::oﬁ-msoi 15€

...... SHILITIEVIT INTENONON

111

065°638°¢ EVSELSET [44] 0SE°1L ¥99°98 9LT'OY 108°6S 901 SIv'91 SHILITIEVIT INSEND TVLOL] [0I€
SI6LEL 80L6ST | - 0SE 1L ¥¥9'98 - 108°SS 901C YLTIT (01 onp) wrerdo1d-1aquy LYE
8TVIOT . EETL8S - - - - - - - Jagto - SaNINQeI] panIddy| | 1ope
008°1¥ S9[°18€'L - - - - - - - SONIIqeI] JUSLING 1WO| | |SPE
- - - - - - - - - S3ULAOII0q BUEISdO - 3G3p -1 Jo Honiod sinyy [243
- - - - - - - - - sy09lo1d [eded -1qap -7 Jo uorpod juaim)) [X23
- LT0'0€0'¥ (44 - - OEL'LE - - - SonusAal paiisjad] | |Zbe
- 9SY'€0L - - - - - - - s)1sodap AJIINOAS JUBUA], 1¥€
- 89701 - - - - - - - ‘A03 30 - 9[qeAed SHUNOIDY X3
- - - - - - - - - §193l014 VHJ - 2[qeARq §1Un030Yy ZEE
- - - - - - - - - swreidord VHJ dNH - d1qeAed s1umosoy 1€€
- - - - - - - - - 9[qeAed 1sa101U1 PINIDIY [543
- - - - - - - - - KiTIqeI] AOUSHUIH0D paniooy yZE
$1£'909 805°019'v - - - - - - - §30U3sqe pajesuadiiod paniddy 443
- 696'L6E'Y - - - - - - - Sjqeked saxe) jjoiked/agem paniooy| | |1Z¢
- - - - - - - - - aup 35ed SAED (6 < 9]qeAed sjunodOY cle
6L8°3LY 60C ELY - - - 9v'T - - (098'%) sAep 06 > ojqeAed SJUNOXIY| | {Z1€
: - - N N - - - N YBIPIGAO dueg 1353

SHILITIAVIT INTHEND

‘SHLLITIAVIT
-ALINOH ANV SHILITIEVIT

L]

915°sks'86 | 1Z1°948'05¢E PS9'EE6 | OSEIL £50°611 6£5°LT1 108°6S 901°C Z66'L1 SIISSV TV.LOLI06]
- P
§L1'L98°8C § SHEBS860E - - 8¥L'9T - - - €6 SLASSY ININONON TVIOL! [081
- - - - - - - - - S2IMUSA Jutof ut Eo:bmmgr 9L1
N N - - N - - - - §1q3p painqLusipur) SL1
- TETT61 - - - - - - - §388¢ 1910 Vil
- - - - - - - - - Snp 158d-JUALIND-TOU-3[qEAISD] S9dBIOU pue SOION L1
- - - - - - - - - JBLINO-UOU - ]qBAT09] SOSES1I0W PUe SSJON| 11
| ]
8L1°L98'8  § £11°999'60€ - - 89L°9T - - - 7€6 UOIIeId21dap pale[RINIoE JO JoU ‘513558 paxy [eI0L] | 1091
9Zh £69°81 - - - - - - - - $5213019 UT 10/, 701
(S0T°18T°'1) " H(EL16L6'5E9) - - (605°62) - - - (€91°8€) UOTRI33103p PAEIAINo0Y 991
- - - - - - - - - syuswaAodir pioyasea | So1
Z0¥ L9S £68'610°6Z - - LST'9S - - - $60°6€ “ufpe - ‘yoeus 29 Juawidinba ‘aumiuing ¥91
1S0°ST 6.8°9 - - - - - - - SSUT{IOMP - OBUI 3§ JUSWIAINDS ‘BIMTUIN €91
# Lo} eury
ALYV s[Io], S[830), SINAIIS OHwpyngps | uondnnsuo) | Juisnoy werdely {009°€6 # VAID uondiIdsa( JunoddY
0} 9A0\] wer304y JUIY M0Y weiBoxg Susnoy pue GjumioddQ | ya\1 ¢ nopaas | 3y8Ba1Bu0) Burpaay 11€1S PBOH
K>uednaoQ | antoddng apiy Puung
wooy
a[3urs 8§
TIRATHDIS VIVA TYIONVNIA
9007 ‘1€ HOUVIN
' ALIYOHLAY D'

OH VIHdTIAVTIHd

R




9ISCpe'eS | 121°948°06¢ PSO'€E6 | 0SEIL £50°611 6£S°LT1 108°SS 901°C T65°LI ALINOH ANV SALLITIAVIT TV.LIOL] [009
- : [11
TLIIZTYS  § S61°19p'81€ ZES°CE6 - 60%'8C £9€'L8 - - €6 ALINOF TVIOL| [els
v66'€SE'ST  § TP800V'9 TeS'EE6 1991 £0£°18 - - 0) SBUILIEY puTelay pajorisaiiy] %45
- - SJUTIIES Pauieiay/aoie[eq punj payeusisepup) FATS
- 519558 10U PAIOINSIY Tis
- 0T v6€ T - - - - - - dduereq puny paAasdsar feiol) |11$
- VT v6£°C - - - - - - SONIANIOR [B11dED JO) paAlasay 01I¢
- - - - - - - - saNIANoR Funeiado 10] paAIssay 605
- - :30UR[eq punj ParTesey
8L1°098°8T § £11°999'60¢ - 1 8yL'or - - - [4%] 193p pajejal Jo 3ou ‘sjasse Teyideo ur pajseau| “ _ 1'80S
- - - - - < - - - Te)deo pAINQINU0d [e10L| 1306
- - SUONINGINUO0D I3 105
- - suonnqinuod gNH 40 S0S
- - SuonNqIRuod VHJ dNH 19N Y0S
- - pasyuerend N - 1G3p ULS-F007] £0S
- - (@nH) sa10u300fo1g [40}3
- - ‘[e3ide) panquiuo))
- - $19558 paXy [B15USd Ul JUSUNSAALT] 105
- -ALINOA
PYEVIE Y 9T6 v1v'8¢ [441 0SE°1L yv9°98 9L1‘0b 108°5S 901 09991 SHILITIAVIT TV.LOL] {00€
. P11
PSLYEY £8€ 18P - - - - - - 1344 SHILITIEVIT INTINIONON TV.LOL] {0s€
LLT0E 808°80L11 - - - - - N 1344 18130 -SalI[Iqer] JUSLINSUON £6¢€
SLY b0 TLO'ELO'E - - < < N - - §35U805qE dulod panse] | ¥sE
- - - - - - - - - 53UIMOTI0q Fuiielado -JUALIS JO 18U 3G3p uLg)-3uoy 75€
# Wway aury
WIOM ! s[ejoL s[e30], SNAIIS Lupyng JRs | uOPINASUC) | AuIsnof weidold |009°€6 # VAID uo3diLdsa(] JUN0IY
0] JAOIN urexdous g Y Moy wexdoag 3uisnoyg puz Ljunuioddo | map g uonasg a3839a3u0) 2uipaay MBS pedH
_ &HuednddQ | sansoddng epH Pwwung
wooy
a[3us 8S

AINAAHIS VLVA TVIONVYNII
9007 ‘1€ HOYVIN

ALTMOHLAYV DNISNOH VIHdTIAVYTIHd



£y

s3urpring 701
pureT 191
830558 PaxIy
‘SIFSSY INTTINONON
60L°Ly1'T 190°67 YLLTTT 1$7°88 99Z'¥8 9b°T€E TE6'11 T9S €€ ¥89°C9¢ | ZI6'0LE | €00€S SLASSY ININD TVIOL] 1051
PapIA0id 9q 03 SUNOWY op1
- 6vS0ZC | €L19 LLL'TY 160°0¢ T66'11 789°61 1S20¢C | ¥916EC | P60 W01y onp wreigoidisiay) | [bi
SALIOJUIAUI 9]3]0Sq0 1O 0URMO[[Y| 1'erl
- - - - - - - - - - (e91) souojuaAuy} | fepl
§3955® 151130 pue sasuadxa predarg faa
pajoInsal - Enugmw>r el
" P2I2LLSaIUN - SJUDUNSIAU] 1€1
W«:ogmu\—:« juaium)
: il
39T 190°ST STLT 8.0°C8 63P9¢ 1L£T - 0838°61 EEVZEL | 8PLTET | TCT9L  'jQROSIOUN J0F S30UBMO][E JO 10U ‘S3[qeATa0a] (30, | 10Z1
897 S[qRAIRIAI JSAIANUI PANIODY 6zl
preyj - SJUNO33E [NJIQNOP JOJ OUBMO[[Y 1'8Z1
A15A0321 pnely 871
JUSLIND -0[qBATa3] SO5EF1IOW Py SA30N] LZ1
13110 - S3UNOJDB [NIGNOP JOJ SDUBMO[[Y 7'9C1
SIUSY JUT[[MP - SIUNOIDE NJIGNOP 10§ SIULMO[]Y 1'9Z1
S3ual SUI[SMP - SIUBUI) ~3]QRATSIAT SHUNOIIY 9Z1
- - B SNOJUB[[SISIUT - S](BAISIAT S)UNOIIY [$41
- JUSUIUISA0E JOUI0 - S[QBAISIAI SIUNOIIY vzl
- 190°ST STTT 8L0°T8 687'9€ 1LET - 08861 EEPTEl | SPLIEl | 22Z9L 5199/01d 10010 GNH - S[qeAIS331 §HUN0DY 441
- s109[01d YH{ - 9]qBAIS08I SIUN033y 1Z1
:S3[qBAL0VT $2J0U puUL FJUNOIY
11
1Yy LP1'T - - - - - - - - - - sed [0, 001
mu_monu_u bﬁsuom Jueua) - yse) P11
qQel] Juunnd Jo JoutiAed 10J pajoLnsal - sman; S11
PajdInsar Y10 - yse) (201
AQp pue :oﬁaN_EquE - PajoLnsal - ysel) Zll
v’ Lvie paldLnsaIum - ysed 11
yse)
‘SIASSV INTND
‘SIASSY
r msﬂ_ auny
$39] uwIpy 010 600 800 L00 900 $00 $00 £00 700 100 uopdidsaq Junoddy
qEYIY PO [qBYaY POIA |qBYY POTAL {qBYY POJAl [4BYSY POTA{qBUSY POJAl [GBYSY POJAl |qBYSY POIAl |qBYY POJA | qBqaY PO
ATNAAHDS VIVA TVIONVNIA
9007 ‘I1€ HOUVIA
ALMOHLAY O} JH VIHdTAd V' TIHd



_sjasloxd jejided -Juaimd Jo 120 1g3p ::ua-mco.: 1S€
-SHILITIAVI'T INDYNONON
[ 1]
Ak 9.8'8 - 184 0L6'C - - 1€1 33 91¢ 9 SHILI'TEVIT LNTHIND TVILOL| {01¢€
€IE9E1'T 9.8'8 - - - - - - - - - (03 anp) werdoxd-1yurt | TLvE
- - - 44 0L6¢T - - IEl 113 91¢ 9 12430 - SANINIqRI] panIddy 143
SanI[Iqel] JuaLnd oo 1343
S3UIMOLI0q SuT1e3odo - 1Gap L1 JO Uoniod JaLinsy PPE
s192{01d peyided - 1qap -7 Jo uonuod juany) (3713
- - - - - - - - - N SoniioAs] paliaja] e
sysodap ALIndas Jueus], 1v€
'A03 1910 - 9[qeded sHUNodY X34
§193[01d VH{ - 9[qeAed $1unodsy €€
- - - - - - - - - - suresdold VHd dNH - 21qeied sjunoddy 1€€
9[quARd 152I3)UT PanIsdy %43
KIMQe] AoUesuNE0d parioay vZE
$35UasqB pAesuadiiod paniddy 443
ajqeAed saxe; [joIAed/aTEM Paniiooy 17t
anp ised sAep 04 < 9[qeied s;UN0DY €1¢
SABD 06 > d]qeAed sjUN0Y Z1€
YelpIaao Jueq 11€
SALLITIEVIT INTIIND
SSTALLITIEVIT
:ALINOH ANV SALLITIEVIT
RN
60L°LYI'T 190'6T bLL'TCT | 1ST'88 99Z'¥8 T9v'CE 7€6'11 295°€E ¥89'79¢ | ¢16°0LE | £00°€8 SLASSY TVLIOL 061
111
- - - - - - - - - - - SIASSY INHINONON TV.LOL| 081
S2IMUSA JUTO] Ul Eu:amwsr oL1
§31qap panquysipun) SL1
R O] Ll
1P 158d-JUBIM)-UOU-3[quAISI0] SIFESTIOUT PUe SAI0N L1
JUSLING-TOU - 9]qBATa93] SOTEBTIOW Puv §9j0N 1L1
- - - - - - - - - - - UOIJBI0AId3p PAJR[NIUMOE JO 19U S)3SS. Paxly _.E L 091
§83130.1d UI YIOM 191
uonerdoidap pajejntundoy 991
sjuswdA0IdWI ployasea] 691
‘urwpe - "yoew 29 Juawrdinbs ‘aImum,y $91
SSUIMP -~ oedl 7 JUsWIdInba ‘aInjiuin,y €91
# Wa)j auly
S umpy 010 600 800 L00 900 S00 00 €00 700 100 uofdudsa( JUnoNDY
Qe POJAl {qBYIY POIA |QBYY POIALIqBYIY POJAL |qBYIY POIA {qeqY POIAl |qBYSY POJAl {qBYSY POIA |GBYY POIA | qeydY POIAl
TTNAIHOS VLVA TVIDONVNIA
9007 ‘1€ HOUVIN

ALROHL(YV ONIS10H VIHdTHAVTIHd




oy

60L°LY1T 190°ST YLLTTT 152°88 9948 9v°T¢ 7€6'11 295°€E ¥89°79¢ | TI6'0LE | €00'E8 ALINOA ANV SALLITIAVIT TYLOL! 1009
[ 11
96€°11 $81°91 YLL'TIT | 01T'88 96Z'18 9v'TE 7€6'11 1Ep°€E 169°79¢ | 96£°0LE | L66C8 ALINOA TVIOL| €1
96¢'11 S81°91 PLLTZT | 01788 962’18 v TE6T1 169 169°79¢ | 96€°0LE | L6618 S3UTUIRY paule1sy paloinssIun) 1'Z16
- SSUNILIES PAUTEIS1/3oUE[eq puny payeusisapur) FATS
S]9SSE 10U pAdLISIY 116
- - - - - - - - - - - d0UR[Rq pUny POAIASAI 10T} (1S
- - - - - - - - - - SONTANOR [RIIdRD JOJ PIAIISTY 01¢
- - - - - - - - - - saniAnae duneiado 10 paAIasay 60S
.eduefeq punj paAIssay
- - - - - - - - - - 1G9p pate[al Jo 1au ‘s1asse [eydeo ur parssauyf | | | [1°80S
- - - - - - - - - - - 1e11ded payngrouod [e0L| 80§
suonnqLIuod 1Y L0S
suonnqIuod ANH 1O} | {s0s
suonnqunuod VU ANH 1¥N| | 1v0S
pasyeiens (i1 - 109p ULIS-8u0T €0S
(anH) saou1dalordy | {zos
‘fe3tde) painqinuod
5}955€ Paxij [eIoUas Ul JUAUNSIAUT} 108
JALINOH
£1E9E1'T 948°8 - 1y 0L6'T - - €1 X3 91¢ 9 SALLITIEVIT ,mﬁmoa 00€
|
- - - - - - - - - - - SHILITIAVIT INSRNONON TV.IOL| |0S€
Jayo -SaNIfIqe] JUALINOUON} | [€SE
$35ua0sqe durod pantade} | 3
T UMO1I0q SurjeIado -ualing Jo 19U 3qap ULS}-8U0] 7S¢
# Wey| eury
§934 uImIpy o1o 600 800 L00 900 S00 00 £00 700 100 uopdIdsaq yunoddy
qeqod POIA |qBYSY POTA GBS PO |qBYIY POTA [q6YSY POIA {qBUSY POIA |qBYRY POIA [qeU3Y POIA [qEYay POJA| 48Y3Y PO

ALNOHLAV O

ATAAIHDS VLVA TVIONVNIL
9007 ‘1€ HOUVIN

1OH VIHdTHIAVIIHd




- TLI8°6EL9T - - - YZP'Ov9'LE | 686 9ES | 860°€86'8S1 - - ‘ sSurpiing 291
: - - : y - - . - - pueg 191
1S19858 PAXI]
SIFSSY INTHNINONON

0vL 208 6€C510T1 | 0£9'191 $SS'E 061 10Z | 89€'6¥0°C - LET'TES'TT 106 026 CC 91979%'E SIASSY LNTAND TVIOL! [0S1
. . - = = - - - - - paptaoid aq 07 sunouryy | {oy1
- - 0£9°191 - LSL'Y] €c1'91 - 816'9C - 95908 WOy anp weagosdislat| | [ppl
. z - . - - - - - - SALIOJUAAUT 9)2]0SQO J0J AUBMO][Y levl
- : - : - - - 0£8°C - (¥91) SOLIOJUAAU| | jey]
= T z < - < - - - - §)9SSE JaI0 pue sasuadxa predal] wl

Ll

0bL'708 6YE DT 11 - - - - - - - - PAIIINSa] - SIUSUNSAAUT| | 1ZE]

: . p < E - - - 000°000°S - ! PaIdLNSalun ~ SJUSUISIAU] 1€l

v - SJUSWIISIAUL JUdLIND

B!

- - - 861 €LE'98] | SETEE0T - 6812051 916'8L6 SLL'80S  QNOSJjoOUn J0j S90UBMOYE JO 13U 'sAjqeAIRdI [EI0L] | [OZ1
- - - - - - - - 9SH'TCE 89 9[QRAISJA] J52181U1 PANINOY [14]
< N - - - - - - - - priel] - SIUNOJ0E [NJIqNOP JoJ dUeMO||Y 1821
z - < - - - - - - - A19A0231 pnelj 871
< .. z M < - - - - - - JUSLIND -3[qUAIRdaI SaFed1Iow pue $ON! Lzl
z - z - - - - - - - JaU30 - SHUNOIOR [NJIGNOP 0] IURMO[[Y 792}
- - - - - - - - - - SJUAI SUT[JaMP ~ SJUNOIDL [JIGNOP JOJ DUBMO[Y 1921
z - - - - - - - - - §]031 SUT[jSMP - SJUBUS] -3]qBAIS03] SIUN0IIY 9Z1
< z < 861 - - - - 656 VP9 - SNO3UR|[IDSIUI ~ J[GBAISIAS SJUNOIDY (41
s - - - €1€981 - - - - - JUSWIEIAA0T 1310 - S[BAIDIAT SIUNOIDY $T1
- - - - - SETEE0'T - 681°C0S°C1 10511 L0580 s100f01d IO ANH - 9[qBAIS33] SJUNCIIY 441
- < - - - - - - - - §198{01d WH{ - A[qRAI30L SUNOIDY 121
- 1SS]QBAIa93) S310U pUB SIUNOIDY
11
- 068°06€ - 95€'€ - - - - $86 17691 TPy Lp1'T ysed (oLl | 1001
- = - - - - - - - - sysodap AJLINOSS JURUS) - YSBD) 11
- - - - - - - - - - qul] JuaInnd Jo youuiAed 10] paloLnsas - ﬁuo* SI1
z : < . E - - - - - PoIdLYSAL JAN30 - Yse) £11
< < - - - - - - - - ASp pU® UONBZIWISPOU - PAIILNSAI - YSeD) fARi
- 068°06€ - 9S€'E - - - - $86'196 91 ' Lpl'T pajoLnsaun - ysed 111
‘ysed
‘SLASSY INTWNIND
‘S1ASSV
M* ~Em= aul
speasosgpuog  spascagpuog  JQBAIIY | weddoiy | siejoL STVIOL swoL, | STYLOL didD LS8V s[e)o), uondidssq JunodY
asoding UISUIY)  UOSAMMIMSLL, $)ON sy Aeq | Swmdy IA ZdOH | Yo dwod wesdory weaSoxry
_ uL ] -8uoy Y} 10) JOYINOA qsyay A0
| swexdosg 0D
* [8nads Sumisnoy
ATNAAHOS VIVA TVIONVNIA
9007 ‘1€ HOAVIA

ALDNOHLY ONISAOH VIHdTIAVIIHd



LY

000°000°11 6S6'LE6'TL - - - - - - - - §103f0id Tejides -JUSLING Jo 151 ‘1G3p uer-duoy| | [1SE
- SHILITIAVIT INTINONON
[
£28'V0¢ ¥60 €9 - ¥SS'E 950 10T 0£9'10¥'C - 6¥8°LSY TT 069'6¥S 0T 988'8b1°C SHLLITIAVIT LNTRIND TYLIOL] {0I€
- 6¥E°LIO0'T - (414 682981 | 110°T¥6 - £vL 8816 608°T6€ 0T 681S¥1T (01 9np) weidord-1quy] [T/
£28'70€ £2T¥S1 - - - TEIESO'| - $96'8L0°¢ 96L°SL L69°E Jay3o - santiqel] parddy| | {ope
- - - - - - - - - - SIIqEl] Jualind J3y3o She
= z z z = z - - - - S3UIMOLI0q JuTyIado - 1Gap 1~ Jo uorHod Juaiin.y hE
- 000'58Z°€ - - - - - - - - s10a[o1d erides - 1q3p 11 jo uoniod jusins| | 1epe
- - - SLE'E LSLPL - - 9L$°C - - sanusAsl paiajact] | 1Zhe.
- < - < - - - - - - syisodop A31ndas Jueua], 1€
- - < < p o - - - - ‘A03 191730 - 9[qeAed §5)unoddy €EE
z z z - . z < - - - 5100[01J VHJ - 9]qeAe Siunoddy| ZEE
< < = < - - - - - - surersoid YHJ ANH - s1qeded sjunoddy 1€€
< < - - - - - - - - 9[qeAsd 1S3191Ul PSNIOY (343
o z < < - < - - - - AN[Iqer] ASUSZUnU0d panioay [743
= : < z z z = - 196710 - $30Ussqe pajesuaditios panidsy F443
z v - - = - - - - - ajqeAed saxe) jjoiked/o8em porissy 1Z¢€
2 z = z < - - - - - onp ised sAep 04 < a|qeArd sjUNody €1€
- 7TS9LY] - &(ze) - 98690 - 995 81 81561 - $Ap 06 > olqeAed sjun0dYy| 1 1Z1¢
P = = z z = s < < < JEIpIoAO Yieg T1E
SHILITIEVIT INTYNEND
STLLIMEVIT
-XLINOH ANV SALLITIEVIT
L]
8€8°C€8'1 TSO'VE0'Ly | ZETOVO'LOT | pSS'E 607107 | esh'66E6€ | TS89IS | #60'Z8L'E61 9910662 1 919°Top'E SLASSV TVIOL{061
Rl
860°0£0'1 £18'8L0°CE | 209887991 - 6L S80°0SE°LE | TSROIS | LSB'6PTIRI $9Z°6 - SIASSY INTINONON TVLOL] {081
. < z z = - - - - - SaINJUaA Jurol ug Euﬁawgm: 9.1
- - - - - - - - - - SHqap pajnqinsipuy) SL1
662'908 7696111 - - - - - - - . Siesse Ismo| | (vLl
= - z - < - - - - - P 15ed-JUaIMS-N0U-3[qRAIS03T S9FUFIION puB SA)ON Ll
= z Z09°8287991 z = - - - - - JUSLIND-UOU - 3[qBAIS30] S05€31OW PUe SAON [P
[
66L'€TC 1Z21°6S6°LT - - 6L $80'0SE'LE 758'91¢ LS8'65T°181 $9Z'6 - UOHRIJAIASP PIjR[NILNIIL JO 13U ‘519888 Paxi) [£30], 091
66L°€CT 878 v6v b - - - SOL'ES6'| - LT8TEY 8 - - ssa1do1q U1 Iom L9Y
N (¥85°6LTC) - #(szs'e) (e01°e7)  {(€p0'0sTc)  [(LET0T)  J(I¥¥'C0E 91) (6£8°019) - UoleI0a1dap paje|niinady 991
= = z z - p < P - - syuatwaA0dul pjoyases] o1
- - - STs'e Z81'€C - - YLE 9ET £01'029 - “uTtpe - “Goel % jusuidinba “aImnung 91
< < - < = - - - - - sFurfamp - “yoeu 29 yuauidinba aimjiuIng €91
# wa) suy
spaadoig puog  speadosg puog  SJqBAIIISY | WEIHOIZ s{ej0], STVIOL sjel0Y, STVLOL 41D LS8'PY s[ejo, uondLIdsa( JUN0IdY
asoding jwuwdn  wospAaNSEY S3)ON aae) Aeq w3y IA AdOH | uwao duio) weldory weIdoxg
w3 ] -3uoy Ay a0 Jganos Qe AOW
surxdoly oY)
readsg Suisnoyy
ATNATHIS VLVA TVIDONVNIA
95007 ‘7€ HOYVIN

ALTYOHLAY D} JH YIHdTAAVTIHd



ALMOHLAY ONISIOH VIHdTIAVIIHd

8£8°7€8°1 TS0'v60°LY | TET'OVO'LIL | ¥SS°E 602107 | €Sv'66£°6€ | 268°91S | v60°T8LEG] 991°0£6'CT 919°79v'¢ ALINOH ANV SALLITIAVITTVIOL] {009
g § : [1]
(s86°'1Lv'6)  J(101°LL1°ZE) | ZETOVO'LI] - 6L ELE'9L6°9E | TS891S | 100°b0L 181 7€5'982°C 0€LE1E] XLINOA TVIOL} jeis
91TYOE'[ LEL'9R0'9T | TETOVO'LOT - (0) @ir'eLe) - Yy1 VS L9TLLTT 0ELEIET SSUNLIEH pouieioy pejolselt] 1'T1S
- - sSuTiiTes pauie)al/soue[eq punj payBuRisspur] Zis
§1OSSB 10U PIOINSOY 11§
- - - - - - - - - - aouejeq punj paAsssal e} f11¢
- - - - - - - - - sanranoe _.Sano 10J paAtassy 01s
- - - - - - - - - SanAnoe wn_uﬁono 10J paArasay 605
- - - -due[eq puny paAIIsyy
(10z'oLL°01)  |(8£8°coz'sp) | - - 6L S80°0SE'LE | TS8'O1S | LS'6KTIBL | S9T6 - 199p pajefal Jo ou ‘s1asse jenden up paseaur| | | | 1808
- - - - - - - - - - Telided painqiuod feloLf 1805
- suonnqLIuod 1_/YI0 L0S
- suonnqLIuod ANH PWO| | 1508
- suonnqLuuod YHd QNH 1*N| | [$0S
- padjuerens (JNH -~ 19ap ULA)-3uo €0S
- (any) saouafoig] 1 |zog
- - - ‘[elde) pajnqiuo)y
- - - §39550 PAX1) [BIOUSE 1Y Eo_.Emo>5_ 105
" - JALINOH
£28'V0E" 11 €S1°1L2'6L - ¥SS°€ 0£170C | 080°€TH'T - £60'8LY'TL YE9'€b9°0Z 988°841°C SHLLITIEVIT TVLIOL] |00€
- - - 11
000'000'11 650'8E6'CL - - ¥8 0S¥'IT - Yp0T Y96 €6 - SHLLITIAVIT LNFRIINONON TVIOL] 0S€
- 001 - - ¥8 0Sb'1Z - YHZ 0T 668°CS - 1330 -S3N[IqeI] JUSLINOUON| | €6
- - - - - - - - SHO'1p - $35u99sqe dwod quouM_ | $SE
- - - - - - - - - - urmonoq uneIado JUALING JO 39U 1qap ULIS)-8U0T 8¢
# Way| auy
[“spancigpucy  spossesgpuog  S|qBATIGY | WEiB01g | S{EIOL SIVIOL smor [ STVIOL &dD LSSPT S0 uopdyRsH JUn0IY
sodang |I3uas)  UOSPIAN/INSH], $3JON are) Keq Sm3dy 1A AdOH e dwo) weidox d weidory
] -3uoy Y J0) JIIN0A qery AON
sweidolrg atoy)
[B133dg Suisnoyy
dTINAIHDS VLVA TVIONVNIA
9007 ‘1€ HOMVIN



6%

L8T86EP8YT § 000001'T & 810 ¥200ZE 6ELS61EE s3uIpfing 291
Y20 1hb EE - y0T TT1'8 - pueT 191
1819858 paxig
'SIASSV INTIYNIONON

TSO'EE9BIT | 965°6V9'1 | 0S6'C9L V8 19S6L SIHSSY INTNINO TV.LIOL] 0ST

- - - - papiaold aq 03 syunowy 9yl
810'9£0°9¢€ 900'Z1 - - o1y onp wessordisr| | [vpl

§000°2Z5) - - - SSLICIUSAT 839080 J0J OUBMOIY] | 11 €91

100965 ¥ - 9£0°660'T - SaLI0jURAU] [X31
STTYE - - - s)as5e 19110 pue sasuadxa predag Tl

- 8!
0S5°S6€EET - ¥20°086 9 - PoIoINSaT - BYUSUNSOAU]| | 1ZET
ELESPS L1 98Y LT - - PojaLTSaIun - sjusunsaaty] | 111
SJUSUISIAUT JUALIN)

L

615'100'LY 6SSEVO T | 6LIZOTLT 15661 QIJ3]]03UN JOJ SIOUBAOITE JO JoU 'SO[qeAIS08] TE10L] | |0C1
L85 686 101°¢ - - 3[qEAIa3a] 15218V} Pariady r7al
- - - - phely - §JUN033% [NJIqNOP J0Y SIUEMO[TY 1'8Z1
- - - - K13A0391 pnery 8Z1
- - - - JUBIIND -3]qBATS0S] §94E5 10U PUE SSION 171
- - - - TOTI0 - SJUNGJ98 [NJ3qROP 10] SOUEMO[[Y 79Z1
Hoeso1sT) - - - 7S] SUI[aMP - SIUN0JOE [MJIGNOP 10] S3UBAMOTY T'oz1
607°96L'1 - 611°101 - §jul SUT[[aMp - SJUBUSY -9]qBAIS3] SJUN0IIY 9Z1
81518911 8SP0P0°T  § ZIZ'686C1 - SNOUR[[IISIU - S]GBAISI3] §IUN03IY 1541
€81°20C - - - JUSUILISAOCT I3YI0 - S]qBAISISI SUN0OODY P74
729'006 ST - - 19561 §190{01d 13430 Q1H - S[QEAISI] SJUN0IIY 771
0£6 LYLSI - 8y TIT b1 - 190101 VHJ - 3]qBATa0a1 §1un6ady iZi
1S3]qBAI33] SA]OU pUE SHUNOIIY
[
S9E 1SE06 SYSovE 11L18¥ 6V - ysed [eloL] | {00l
TEE'6SL'T - SL8SSO'T - _ s150dSp ANINOAS JURBUS) - UsB) vil
12L°LSE - 1TLLSE - qeI[ Juamnd Jo Jsuwied 10] pAydLsal - :muo_ SI11
601°SS - 601°5S - paloLnsal OO - Yse) €1
L1Y'PST - LIY'¥ST - ASp PUE UONEZIWISPOUI - PaIOLsal - ysed Zil
L3L'YT6'L8 ShSove 685'8SL°LY - pordInsaum - 4sey| 1 {111
jse))
‘SIHSSV LNTND
‘SIdSSV
w _52_ aur}
TYLOL S[B}0], JUBIS) S[E)0 L, S{)0] weidolg uondisa(y JUNoIdY

[B30T/mS up suswodwo) jusmdoppas

ATAAIHDS VLVA TVIONVNIA
9007 ‘I1€ HOYVIN
ALIIOHLAV D OH VIHdTIAVTIHd



0f¢

915°79L°00€ - ¥59°69L'91Z - S103foid Teyidea -jua.Lind J6 33U jqap uir-8uo] [ TTcE

‘SALLITIIVIT INTHININON

L1

£€8°CLS 201 LPO'SST'T | 806'10Z°6C 095°6L SHLLITIEVIT INDYNND TYIOL| JoI€
810'9€0'9¢ 819625 - - (0) anp) wesgord-1quy LyE
€L10V6'6 LOB'E19 SSIPOE’T 09S°6L 19430 - sanIfiqel] pariooy 9p¢
S99°0LI'6 - 00L°LYL'T - SINTIQE]] JUALIND 1RO She
LTL'T9 - LTL'T9 - S3UIMO01I0q HTyesado - 1qap 11 jo toniod JUBLNI| | |vve
000°016°S - 000'S79°C - sy03foxd ferdes - 1qap [T Jo oniod Juaiin;) £vE
16€°0ZZ 698 968°€Z1 - SNUSAST paLiajo] e
1€17180'1 - SLY'LLE - sysodap Ajimdas jueual| | |1ve
89Z0¢1 - - - ‘A0d 1310 - a[qeded §)UNoddy €EE
SLE'L6O'T - SLE'L69T - s193f01d YVHJ - o[qeAed sumosdy| | |zee
- - - - surerdord VHJ ANH - s[qeAed sjunodoy 1€€
86€ 8199 - 86€ 8199 - a|qeAed 3sa19)Ul patdOY| | {SZE
- - - - Aijqel] ASusgunuod pstiooy | (pie
9LL E0E'S - 186 vT - $aouasqe pajesuaduios panidoy [443
TE9'TEY'Y - £99'pE - a|qeAed $5xe) [jo1Aed/a5eM patLiosy 1Z¢
SOLYIE - SOLPIE - onp 1sed sAep 06 < d[quAed S;UNO29Y €1E
1$S8€9'91 €sL'9 SSSPET'EL - SA®D (6 > S[qeded s)unoddy| | [Z1¢
71091 - 71091 - YRIPIGAO Yueg 413

SAILIMAVIT INTTIND

SHLIITIEYIT
-:ALINOA ANV STILTTIAVIT

RN

€19'7p0'99¢ 1 B 8€6'61L°T | 1ZL°160°EhY LSUsITLT SIASSY TV.LOL|061
- RN
195 TIvLp LY HTPE'0L0T | 120782€86E 965 SHI'LL SIASSY INTRRINONON TVIOL| [081
- - - - saImuaA jurof ut EoE:w\,r 9L1
- - - - SHqap panquusipun} | {6/1
1ZL°L0S 1T - 86Y 68E°C - §1asse 1010 YLl
- - - - P umwuénoh:o-:o:no_ns\'_uoo._ monwﬁoE pue §3J0N! Ll
709°8.8°991 - - - JUSLINO-UOU - D]QBA[900] SOFES1IOW PUR SOTON 1L1
- [ 1
8€7'ST0 696 TPEO0LO'T | ELT'6E6 SE 96S°SPI°LZ  uoneidaIdap pajejnumode Jo 33U ‘533558 paxy [@0L] | |091
$80°667 101 - 10S°00L°LE - 5213014 UT YIOM, L91
i396'327°569)  K92eZ9) (s.87zseLr)  H(Ep1'050'9) UOIIRISaIdap paje[numody 991
011°90%C1 - 011°90v°Z1 - sjuauaA0IdLL PIoYaseaT $91
00098592 299°'2¢ ThS'L8 - “urpe - yoew 7 yusdmba BInjiin j 91
669°CL6'E - €LL'IS6'E - SBUI[AMP - ORIl %9 JUSUIAINGS ‘SIMmy €91
# Wway| aupg
1V10OL S[BJO ], JUBID) s[B)oY, Isjeyo], werdody uondudsaq Junodoy
: (B0 ey iun Jusuoduwro)| jusmrdojdarq
ATAAIAHDS VIVA TVIDNVNIA
9007 ‘1€ HOYVIN

ALNOHLAYV ONISNOH VIHdTAAVIIHd



1S

€19'0°99€" 1 § 8E6'61L°T | 1ZL160'ErY LSI'STTLT ALINOH ANV SALLITIEVIT TV.LOL] 1009
; Pl
YOL'61b'LZ6 4 168°v9S'L | 106°L81°LL] L6S'SYI'LT ALINOA TV.IOL] {EIS
LES'EIOTOT  § 6VS v6Y Z87°6£9 1Y 1 sSunireq pauleioy PSIOINSAIUN 1216
- - - sHuruTes paurelai/odus[eq punj pajeusisapu] IS
- §135SE 19U pAOLHSIY 116
0PZY6E T B - - odUB[eq pUnJ paAlesal [BIOL] {116
oPZY6E T - - - SONTARIE [e31ded JOJ paAIasay 01s
- - | - - saniAnde Junesado 10J paAIassy 60S
- - - ‘950eeq pUNy PaAIasay
LT9TIY'T99 | THEOLOT f§ 619°8HS SEI 965°SY1°LT 199p pajEja1 Jo jou ‘sjosse [endeo ut paysaauy| | | | {1808
- - - - ended panqrnuod fe10L] i80S
- - - suonnqLAuod 1310 L0S
- - - suolNquILoo aNH B_PO| | {09
- - - SUGHINQINN03 VHJ ANH 19N| | {$0¢
- - - paayrerend QNH - 1Gop ULIN-300] €0S
- - - (@ny) sarouyafoid] | 1zos
- - - ‘[ende) pamnqLauo)
- - - §195SE Pax1] [BISUIS U1 EuEumuZ& 108
ALInod
606'v79'8ct  § LVO'SST'Y | 0Z8°€06°'S9C | 09S°6L SHILITIEVIT TVIOL} |00
Rl
SLOTSO'9EE - T16 10L°9€T - SHLLITIEVIT INTYINONON TV.IOL| {0SE
99€'0LL 1€ - 86T'9€6'61 - 1910 -SaNIIqRY] JUSLINOUONY | 1€5E
£61°615'E - - §30uadsqe duwiod parusoe} | ¥SE
- - - 3uImMoLoq supeiado -JuUaLng Jo 19U 1qap UL)-3Uo] 7S¢
# way| sui
IVIOL S[8)0 ] JuBID) S[BI0], Isjeyo ], wreadoxg uondiadsd(] JUN0IY
8307/93€1S aq) judueduro) i juswdopaadq
ATANATAHDS VIVA TVIONVNIA
9007 ‘1€ HOUVIN
AILINMOHINY DY  DH VIHdTAAVIIHd




(4]

- ‘
- - - - - $66°S9 £S6°SET SET'891 19130 - Sa0IAIDS JUBUL g, 26
- - 991°91 SLE'T - 096 - $¥S'06 pS JUBLS) -SUOHNGLIUOD J1JoUsq 93A0]dwy €76
i N - = - - - - §]S00 UOIBIO[OY 726
- - vLYTY $S6°1T - (444 Lv069 L9L'L6T SILIR[ES ~ SAOIAIQS JURLI ], 126
I S9OTAISS umaaoh
: L
- - 661°LLT 699°C21 - 68C ¥96°1 S9P'REL SAREnSIUIWIpE -3uReIado Joyi0 916
6L8°9S - - $8°9 765°6 - - - NEIISTUTWIPE -SUONNGIIUOD JJataq 39A0]dwWs] 516
" = z - - - - - $30U3sqe pajesuadwo)) y16
- - z z . - - - 937 JuawdFEUewW 2pISIiQ) €16
- : " . : - - - $59] BUIIpNY pUe SURUN0ISY 716
Nl - - S10°601 9EEYT - - - SaLIB[BS JANBLSIUIWPY 116
- o%w.zm_h_ﬁ_ﬁé
- | |
z ‘SHSNAdIXH
- L]
66S°T1€S°1 - 9EY9EE 89L°98C €6L°€T0°1 SL0'68 ¥95°90€ 90T°91L HANAATT TV.LOL{00L
= - - - - - - - P31OLIISAI - QWIOoU] EnoE*HmowE 0ZL
z z - - - - - - S19SS€ PIXIJ JO 9[es ) UO SSO] 10 UIeD)! |91/
: - - - - €€9'p LY8'6L] SIL'THY SMUIAII YO} [STL
- - . = - - - - AdA0AI PRI} [$1L
" " Z z - - - - SWOJU[ JSIISIUT SGCSHOIN| 1Z1L
z < - < . - - - PAOLISIIUN ~ SWOOUT JUSUSIAUL| |11/
- - - - - - LIL9T1 06V'€L syue1s Juswui0A03 SYIO| |80L
- - - - - - - - SINVYD TV.LIdVO VHd dNH]| 1'90L
665 1€S'T - 9E9LE 89L°98C £6L°€T0'1 £vY'v8 - - sield VH ANH| [90L
. " - - - - - - SNUIASI JURUI] |10, .H_ SOL
N - - - - - - I0UJO0 - ONUIAAI JURUST | 10/
z - - < - - - - JNUSASI [ejual JUeUS} JON| | £0L
HANIATE
P
# Wa}| sul
s|ejoy, weadoaq 1 SIINAIIS fwpgng  uondnysuo)  Juisnoy weidosy 009°€6 uondi1asa( JUN0IIY
wesdord nowdrdonuyg Suisnoy JI°S pue MaN g uonddg 9edaiduo)  Suppasy #Vaid
£ouednang ynox aanuoddng  Ayumyroddg Jaunung  3Je)s pesy
wooy JUIPISIY
" AINATHOS VLVA TVIONVNIA
9007 ‘1€ HOUVIA

ALTYOH.LAY ONISNOH VIHdTAAVTIHd




€S

- |
= " - Z - - - - 3SUSAXD IOUBIIAIG 896
- < - - - - - - 9sUAdXa JSAINU L96
- 00000T - - - - - - 12410 - 1q2p peg 996
- - " - - - - - sageduou -1q3p peg $96
s - - - - - - - SUS1 JURUS) ~ 199p peg $96
z z z - - - - - $9XE) JO NdY| U SYUSWARJ €96
- - - - - - - - Sasuadxd [eIaUdn) 110 796
LT8 - 961 £6 0b1 0¢ - 9ZL1 sumpusxd soue.nsuy 196

- “

R SasuadXa [eIdUD)
- _
z - - - - - - - A1195}0.d -SUOTINQLIUOD JJOUIG S2A0[dWH GS6
z z z - - - - - JAYI0 - SIDTAIS DAI103101] €66
. z < - - - - - §1S00 J0BQUOD JSYI0 -SADIAISS JA[IO3}01J 756
< - N - - - - - Joqe[ - S3OIAIIS JA[199101d 156
- _
z S9DIAIIS DAT}031014
- |
z z z - - - - - req P10 ~SUOTINGLIIUOD Jousq 9Ao[dwry [§73
- - - - - - - - D J0BIIUOD - dO PUB S0UBUSJUIBW ATRUIPIO £v6
z < - - - - - P18V S[eLIajew < do pue 3OUBULIUIRW ATRUIPIO weé
z - z - - - - - 1oqe[ - do pue jurew ATRUIPIO 16
. ~
- uoneIado 2y SOUBUIIUIBW ATRUIPI()
- _
z z - - - - - - asuadxa sanIun QIO 8€6
- < z ~ - - - - SINI[IN -SUONINQIIIUOI JJauaq dakojduy LE6
- - - - - - - - 10qe] S€6
- - - - - - - - feng 147
< - - - - - - - seD ££6
" . - - p - - - AroLn9rg €6
< . - - - - - - 1B 1€6
- |
- sannn

# W9y eury
sfero L weidolg 1 SINAIRS Aowapyyng  uondnysuo)  Suisnoy weadolg 009°€6 uondrIasa( Junony
weafory nawdadanuy  Suisnoy JIBS PuUB  Map § uondag ANedaaduo)  Suipaayg #VAID
KLouednadQ ynox aantoddng  LyunjreddQ Jowwng  JIE)S pedIH
wooy Ju3pISAY
a HINAIHDS VLVA TVIONVYNIA
9007 ‘1€ HOUVIN
ALINMOHLAV ON  OH VIHdTIAVIIHd




4

€117y (000°002) ! 9121 9L5°127 - - 991°y1 SHSNHIXH YTAO HNINFATY 40 SSAIXHF {0001
- N
- - - - - - - - SASN) SADANOS ONIONVYNIA YTHLO TVIOL|0T01
LT
- - - SSO[/ured 30U ‘Swoy [e10adg 8001
$S0}/ured 10U ‘suIa)l ATeuIpIoBIXS L001
sa[es Apadoid woly speasolg 9001
< - - SpUOQ pue SUeO[ ‘S3}0U WOIY SPISI0IJ S001
- - - jun yusuoduiods o3/0Iy s13ysuel) sunelsd() 001
z - : JUSUTIISA03 Arewiid WOy sIajsuen sunesadQ €001
: : N0 SIgfsue]) SUNEIRd0 7001
: " : ul s1oysueN) suneisdp 1001
- (S9SN) SFOYNOS DNIONVNIL JHHIO
98b°68%°1 000°00Z SEV'9EE 755°68T L1T°T00°1 $L0'68 ¥9$°90¢ 6£0°T0L SHSNHJIXH TVIOL{006
- - - - - - - asuadxa Juas sjun ME__P,MQ 8.6
- - - - - - - M [2JUSUINLISACS -JustiAed [edioutid 1ga( LL6
- - - - - - - SpUNJ [eJUSWIUISA0S -SAE[IN0 [elide) 9L6
- - - - - - - $3SSO[ pnely SL6
- - - 1€1°€1 - - 886 asuadxa voneradrdo(q VL6
91¥'L8T'] - - - LY1°896 - - sjuawiAed Soue}sISse SUISNOH £L6
- - - - - - - pazi[eides uou - s3sso] AJense) L6
- - - 68701 - - - 30UBUSJUTEW ATRUIPIORIIXH 1L6
625621 {(000°007) I 9€8vT £20'686 - - SSLYL SHSNAJIXH DNLLVIHdO JIAO
ANNIATE ONILVIEJO SSHOXA 0L6
0L0°70T 000°00T SEP'9EE T66°'19C 0L0'VE SLO68 $95°90¢ 1SH10L SASNIJXT ONLLVYAdO TV.IOL 696
# Way} sun
s[B30Y, _ weadolg 1 SADIALRG fHuarong uononyysuo)  Susnoy weadorg 009°€6 uondrsa( Junoddy
wesdory ndwduadonyuy  Suisnoy JI9S pue MaN g uondsss yedailuoy  Suipasy # VA
Asuednaag pnox aantoddng  Apumaoddg ounung  JE)S pBay
wooy JUIPISIY
° TINATHDS VLVA TVIONVNIA
9007 ‘I€ HOUVIA

ALIMOH.LAY ONISNOH VIHdTIAVIIHd




'H)

LT1°891 E0LLLY'T 1010 - SOTALSS Eémﬁ 26
8Y1°6C - S JUBUD) -SUOINQLIIUO0D J1JaUdq s2A0[dwry €26
- - 1509 UONBIO[OY 76
ST6EY'] - SSLIE[ES ~ SOOIAIOS JUBLA] 126
........ S30TAI5S umano 1
|
0 0 0 0 (LoL) €5T'081°CI 8TIV6EPI sAExnsIuIpE -uneiodo s_wo 916
0 66€°1 £VS'L L6 $S0°6 £88°69C 981°7€C°8 [EN)STUTLIPE -SUOHNQLIU0D 11J5Uaq d9A0[dwy 16
061°0¥ (296°LSY) $20U2sqE pajesuadio)) v16
- - $29] Juswadeuewr apIsinQ €16
0 0 0 0 0 00809 S 61 $99] JunIpny pue SUHUNOOSY 716
0 8bs°c TEL’61 12L9T 1748 X4 S6v°'128'6 869°LL0'81 SSLIE[es aAlRSIUIUIPY 116
oiﬁbm_cwﬁwé
| |
‘SASNAJXA
Ll
(876°S8) | 918°08 LEG6'S8Y 186°'1+S 86L°STY ShP08E9¢€1 $98°CE1'801 ANNFATI TYIOL|00L
- - PaIdINSaL ~ SWOdUL LoEwmuW'E 0ZL
- (8€6°€HL'6) S195S® Pax1y JO 9[es 2y} Uo ss0f Jo ureH| (97,
- T61°69¢ SNUAASI Y| [STL
- - AIOACO2I prvlg] [y1/
- - SUIOdU] JSOISTUT OFBSVIOIN| | Z1L
T€9°69S 8ESVLE PIOLISIIUN - SWOIUT JUAUNSAAUT| [1]/
- - SJUeId JUSUIUISA03 J9GI0T  |R0L
- - SINVYD TVLIdVO VHd ANH| 1'90L
89668~ 91808 LE6'S8Y 186115 86L°ST €18°018°CEl 778'96%°66 siresd VHd ANH| [90L
- - - - - - 16Z°118°91 90U JUeUS) [B10 | SOL
- ov0 €8] JOYI0 - onudAdI JURUd ], |p0L
- 05Z7°85991 SNUIASI [BIUdI JUBUA) 19N 1€0L
HOANIATY
RERRN
# Way aur
S00 qeYay $00 qeyay €00 700 100 SMOM OLAAOW  si®jo), weadosg uondrsa( Junoddy
PO PO qQeUaY PO qEBYIY POl qeYdY POIAl Yy Mo
ATNATHDS VIVA TVIONVNIA
9007 ‘I1€ HOUVIA

ALIMOHIAY ON  OH VIHdTIAVTIIHd

—4



~G

AL”MOHLAY ONIS10OH YIHdTHAVIIHd

~ m | M
0 0 0 0 0 - 1ST011 35UAAX? IUBIDASS 896
- - 3SuUadXa 151U 196
- - 19110 - 1q9p peg 996
- - sogeSpou -1q3p pey $96
- SS6'P6Y Sjual JuRUR] - 1q9p peq 96
- - $9Xe] JO NIY| U} SJUAWARJ €96
B 0 0 8€5°50T 6967919 sasuadxq [eIudp) 19430 96
0 0T 011 [A Al €El (00¥'v2) 7€6'888°01 suyuwaxd souernsuy 196
|
sasuadxa JeIouss
|
LYY TLLOEL A1102]010 -SHONINGINUOD 1JaU3q a34ofdurg $S6
- Y1E16 I9UIO0 - SADIAISS QAIID9]0IJ €66
0 €HT01Z 88P°RLLT §]S00 J0BIJUOD JAYIO -SIOTAIIS SAIIO9]01] 756
085°0£0°C 059°%09°1 10qe[ - S3OIAIIS JAT}09]01J 166
|
S9JTAIAS 9A109]01J
w
L6€°01 10€pL9°¢] Tel "pIO -SUOINQLIU0 JIJUaq a340[dwy Sv6
0 01068 S89°LLI'9 D 10810 - do pUE dUBUSIUTRW ATEUIPIO £v6
(Teo'n) Po1°cE Z8L'LSS'9 s[elrojeul - do pue dUBUSIIBW ATRUIPIO (44
$65°90 791'870°0€ Joqey - do pue jurew AreuipiQ 1v6
*
uone1ado 7 sdurUIUTEW ATRUTPI))
~
- 1L5°69T asuadxa santun LYo 8€6
- vLE'6TY Sanlun -suoKNQLIU0S JJaUaq 9dAojdury LE6
- L68°TY6 Joqe] $€6
- LTTILT ong V€6
- 66€°LYTT] SeD £€6
- 192°L89°9 Aromos[y €6
....... N vh1°989°L PN 156
|
sannn
“ # Wey| aurt
S00 qeYdy $00 qByay €00 700 100 MYOM OL TIAON sfejo ], weadoag uondrrasa( Junoddy
PoAl PO qeyay poN qeyay POJAl  qey3y poIA juayg Mo
A TAAIHOS VILVA TVIDNVNIA
9007 ‘I€ HOUVIN




LS

(rL9'98) | 6vTT 6LEL6 €621 (¢52) (ELE'SL8'9) (151°669°%S) SASNIdXH YIAO ANANTATY 40 mmmovmm 0001
[ 1]
- - - - - (89%'LbS'p1) SHE6T9°TT SAS0) SAOUNOS ONIONVNIA YHHIO TYIOL[0101
- SSO[/UTe3 19U SuIs)l _m_ouwm L 8001
ssoj/ured jou ‘sway Areurproenxy L001T
sates Auadosd wog spassolg 9001
- SpUOQ pue SUeo] ‘s3j0U EE.« §pasd0lg S001
- N JUSU0dwod 03/ wIoyy SI19Jsuen} superad( 001
- HsA08 Arewid Wioy siajsuen sunelsdg €001
(89 LYSVT) - N0 SI3Jsten Juneiadg) 7001
- CPE6T9TL U1 sJsten; uneladp 1001
(SFSN) SHOANOS ONIONVNIA YTHLO
9ZL L9S'8L | 865°88€ 889°9Z¢ £5092¥ 0S£'80L°8T1 T9£°T9Y ¢81 SHSNAJXH TV.LOL|006
- - asuadxa jua1 syun mizo%ﬂ 8L6
- - ny [e1USUILISA03 -JusmiAed [edound 1G5 LLG
- - SpUNJ [2JUSWUISA0S ~sAepno [eyde)) 9.6
- - $3SSO0] pnely GL6
S08'v€8 8¥8'8EY'SE 3suadxa uoneraldaq vL6
9TL 66S°EL YLL'T9E 6L0°T6Y 180°96€ 115°958°66 - sjuawAed 9dURISISSE SUISNOH £L6
- - PazZifeydes UOU - SasSO] Ajjense)) L6
yIT'116 €11°89C SOURLIJUTBLI ATEUIDIORIIXH 1L6
(8v6°s8) | 8v8‘SL £ST6SY TLE'LOS 978°C6€ STSPLT 601 (9€5°129°11) SASNIIXH ONILVYEJO YTAO
HAANTATY ONILVITdO SSHOXH 0L6
- 896'F ¥8L°9T 609 7L6'6T 1T6°S01°LT 10¥°SSL 6Y1 SHSNAdXH ONLLVIddO TVIOL 696
# Way m:jm
S00 9843y $00 qeY>" €00 700 100 UOM OL TAOW  siejo], werdoaq uondrse( Junoddy
PO PoN qeydy POl qEYSY POJA qBYY PO jusy Mo
HTNAAHDS VLVA TVIONVNIA
9007 ‘T€ HOYVIN
ALDMOHINV DV "OH VIHATAAVIIHd




86§

|
- - B TOYI0 - SIDIAISS JUBUS ], ¥26
- - - S JURUD]} -SUONINQLIIU0D J1Jauaq a9A0[dwy €76
[LE€01 - - §1500 UOHB00[oY (443
- - - SOLIE[ES - §901AJ0S JURUS], 126
|
SOOTATDS JUBUSY,
| |
$T6'SSS 9LL'9T (oL) 0 0 0 0 0 oanensyuTpe -Funessdo o0 916
8058V LTS TSl Pv0°0¢ 66€°1 PS6°El 965‘e LEVT 956 1ENSIUTUIpE -SUONNGLIT0D J1Jouaq 994o]dwry S16
- €E9°[Y - $30USSqe pajesuaduio’) ¥16
- - - §39] JUSATRUR SpISING £16
- - - 0 0 0 0 0 500 BUNIpNY pife SUFUNCI0Y zi6
6CC°€S6'L S68°SLE £60°LT1 8Vs°E 96£°CE 610% 081°9 STH'T SaLIe[es SAnenSIuIupY 116
| |
JANELSTUITIPY
|
‘SHSNHIXH
N
0£9°S01°0L Y08°L6V'6 | TE9'S6TT 96€°T1 8£8°98 660°TVE EL6'8ET | 898°9¢1 | OLTTH HOANAATY TVIOL{00L
- L1 ]
- - - - POIOLIISAI - SWODUI JUSUSIAU] | 10ZL
(L9€°685°C) - - S13SSE PaXIJ JO o[es oy} UG 550] 40 UIBD)] 19]L
- 600°L61 - aNUBARI BYIO! 1S1L
- YET'SE - K15a0031 ptiel]| [p1L
- - - QUIODUT 1S3IAUY OSBSHON| |Z1L
- TEETLET | 96ET1 96€°11 PoJOLISIIUN - SWOSUT JUSUSOAT]| |[11
- - - SJUEI3 JUSWWISA0T 190 | 1S0L
6£6°588°81 - - SINVED TVLIdVD VHd QDE_ 1°90L
850°608°cS 6TTv68'L | TE9'S6TT 86898  660°TPE  EL6'BET  8989ET  OLZ'TH sield VHd dNH| |90L
- - - - - - - - - aNUSASI JUBUS} [e10] ] SOL
- - - 19030 - ONUSADI JURUST| |40L
- - - aNUdASI [EIUSI JURUSY WON | 1£0L
HANIATI
L
# Wiey| eur]
STVIOL d1D  wesdolg S[ejo], SRg  0I0 qeydy 600 800 9EYY L00 qBU3Y 900 qByoy uondrasa N0y
REYTRL LYY weIdoag wwpy POIN  qEY9y POIN PO POIA PO
anoyYd  qeydy Ao
Suisnoy
HTAAAHDS VIVA TVIONVNIA
9007 ‘IT€ HOYVIN

ALRIOHLAY DONISNOH VIHd'TIAVIIHd




6S

- - - 0 * 0 * 0 m 0 | 0 N 0 osuadxa uocﬁgwom 896
$Z1°€90°'C - - asuadxa 1s3193u] L96
- LT - 1ayj0 -1qap peg 996
- - - sogedyiour -1qep ped 596
- - - SJUaI JURu9) - 193p pegq ¥96
- - - SOXB} JO NdI[ Ul SjuswAe £96
-7 SSLTI - . 0 sasuadx{ [e1oUan) 12410 796
- SLT'T 6L 0t £0T [49 s¢ 14! sumiwaid soueInsuy 196
sasuadxd Euﬁwo
- - - \1193]01d -SUOINQLIIU0D J1JaUd] uu»o_mn“um $S6
- - - 9]0 - SIOTATAS 9A1}99101 ] €6
- - - $1S00 10BIJUOD IS0 -SIDIAISS 9A1IA10L] 766
I - - I0qE] - SIOTAIIS 9A1}09101] 156
"S301AI0S oZﬁEor
. - - TeW "pIO -SUONNJINUOD JIJauaq oo%o—mc_um S¥6
- - - b 19IIU0J - 4O pUe 20URUSUIRUl ATRUIPIO ch6
vEE'] (676'7) (851 0s s[eLajeu - do pue 3oUBSUIE ATRUIDIO e
- - - Joqe[ - do pue jureur ATUIPIQ 176
uoyeIado 2 SdUBUIIUTEW bg:uwo
T - - asuadxa sapInn ko:_uo 8€6
- - - SOHI[IIN -SUOHNQLIUO0D JIJouaq Sakofdwry LE6
. . - Joqe] §€6
- - - [onyg be6
- - - seD £€6
- - - Aomosfy €6
- - - RN 1€6
- moEme
o # Wayf aur
STVIOLdID weidolg s[ejoL $394 010 qeYdy 600 800 qBYaY LOO AEYN 900 98Uy uondiasa( Junoddy
1YINOA weadoag nupy PO qBYY POJAl PO POIN PO
Yy qeydy AON
Suisnoyy
ATNAAHDS VLVA TVIONVNIA
9007 ‘T€ HOUVIA

ALINOHIAV £ "NOH VIHdTHAVTIHd

e




~9

656'96Z°L 8SH°0SHT | L8R 96€°11 LIy ¥08°61 669°S £vb'e 98 SASNIIXH YHAQ FANIATY 40 SSHIXH{0001
- L1 [ ]
(899°660°5€) - - - - - - : - SASN) SEOUNOS HNIONVNIA YTHIO TV.LOL[0T0T
- | L]
- SSO[/WEs 19U ‘Susy [e1oedg 8001
- ssof/ured 19U ‘surayl AreurpIoenxy L001
- sa[es Auadold wox spasood 9001
- SpPUOQ pUB SUBO[ ‘S9)0U WIOJ] SP3320IJ S001
- - gn Jusuoduod o)/uIoy S19jstrel) JuneladQ $001
N HIOACS ATewiiId Wolj siajsuelj sunesad() €001
(899°660°C€) - - 1no sioJsuey} Junessdp 2001
- ul s1gfsuen) suneradQ 1001
(SFSN) SEIYNOS DNIONVNIL YHTHLO
£00°60L°LT LYELYO'L | 161°8€2°C - 17v'98 | S6TTTE | vLT'EET | STHEEl | v81°TH SAISNHJXH TVLOL|006
- - - >Suadxs Juai syun wE:P,MD 8L6
- - - nJ [ejuswuIaA0d ~justided [edound 1gag LL6
- - - SpUNJ [EJUSUIWISACS ~SAE[INO [elidE,) 9.6
- - - 35S0 pnery SL6
£19°666'8 £€9°C1 - asuadxa uoyerda1dog L6
- SIL'EIP'9 | S19'790°C £CV18 TL'TLT 8¥9°0ZC  €LLYTI  OVL'8E syuswAed ddue)sisse Fursnoy £L6
- - - pazifendes uou - s3ssof A1jense)) L6
006'6¥L'E £6L : SOUBUIIUIBLI ATRUIPIORNIXT 1L6
oPI9P1°ss 0090888 | TSY'IEIT | 96€'11 | OL8I8 | 9vST6C | LvE'9TT | 91Z°8TI | 978°8€E SASNAIXHT ONILVYAdO YIA0
AANTATI ONILVIIJO SSIDOXH 0L6
06Y°656 V1 S0T'L19 9LS'SL] - 896y €556 979C1 7698 yhb'c SHSNAdXH DNILVIAJO TYLIOL 696
# Wey aun
STVIOL dID weldoig s[ejor, S34 010 qBYY 600 800 qBY3Y L00 qBYT 900 qeysy uondiLdsa Junoddy
JIYINOA Ea.-wo.uam uupy POIA qeyay poN PO POIAL POIA
P0YD  qBYY AOIN
Suisnoy
HINAAHDS VLVA TVIONVNIA
9007 ‘I1€ HOYVIA

ALI-OHLAYV ONISNOH VIHdTIAVTIIHd




19

- - - - €281 001 YP1'€62'C - 13430 - S30TAISS Eéwa ¥26
- - - - 991°91 19Z°€T - - bS JUBUD) -SUONNQLIUOD 1JIUIq 23A01dwy €76
- - LOLTT - - - 059°821 - §1500 UONBIO[Y 776
- - - - 8YE'9E 88986 - - SaLIe[es - SA0IAISS JUBUD], 126
SIOIAIOS ﬁ_aaop.
L
- #(666'1) €SLYIL - €L6°1 9691 LT6%9€2°C - SANENSIUIWpE -3ureIado JOYI0 916
- - 758 ppE - - - 091°€€T - [RJSIUTIIPE -SUOINQLIIUOD 11Jauaq 99A0[dwy S16
- - - - - - - - Sa0Ussqe pajesuaduro) v16
- - - - - - - - $29] JuswaFeueu SPISINQ €16
- - - - - - - - $39] SUNIPNY pue SUNUN0sY 716
- - 6£V° 019 - - - 110°€EY - SaLIe[es SANjENSIUIUIPY 116
u&ﬁﬁL@W&
| |
‘SISNAIXH
L J |
0 - SZTE0T TSTV6ET £09°69 LEOPTT | T112°99Z°CT - INNHATT TV.LOL|00L
- - - - - - - - PIIOINSaI - AWOIUL Luawmowﬂ 0zL
- - - - - - - - §195SB PAXIJ JO ofes o1} UO SSOf JO uten)} |91/
- - - - 76619 - - - SNUBARI 10O 1STL
- - - - - - - - AIoA0oa1 pnely| iyIL
- - - TSI'P6ET - - - - SUI0aUT 3531a7UT 9FESUOIN | |Z1L
- - STE'0T - 4(1€v°1) - - - PaJOInSaIUN - SWOIUT JUSUNSIAUT! | [[L
- - - - To°'s LEOYTI - - SIUeI8 JUSWWISA0S BYI0| | 80L
0 - - - - - LOTYTY'l - SINVYED TVLIdYO VHd ANH| 1'90L
- - - - - - vI0‘TY8'El - swels VHd dNH| [90L
- - - - - - - - SNUSASI JUEUD) [EI0] ] [
- - - - - - - - 19710 - ONUAAI Jweus 1| {40L
T - - - - - - - SNUBAST [e]Ua] JUBUS) 19| | €0L
SHANIATT
1 [T 1]
m # Woy) mc:m
sjgjo L ! Spaddolg Spaddolg puog JIqBAIRIY  weadoly  S[BIOY STVLIOL s[e101, uondiasa( yJunodny
weidolrd ) puog UOS[IAA JOYSB], S3JON ae) Aeq  SuIdy 1A AdOH jueas) dwo)
uowdopaadq  osoduang urre Y -3uory ay} a0y
[edouan swea301g
TTAAIHDS VLVA TVIDNVNIA
9007 ‘1€ HOUVIA

ALMOHINAY T “NOH VIHdTAAVTIHd

e




ALROH.LNY DNISNOH VIHdTIAVTIHd

= " Z " 9206 - - - osuadxd uoqﬁg_um 896
- - . - - - - - 3sUAX 1S3133U] L96
T - - - - - - - 13130 - 3G3p peq 996
- : - : - - = - ssgedpoul -1q5p ped 596
- - - - - - - - SIURI JuRUD] - 1Gop peg ¥96
- z z - - - - - $9XE} JO N3I[ Ul Sjudtuied £96
T z - - - - - - sasuadxy [elauas) 19Y30 296
z - < - 192 122 - - sumiwaxd doueINSU] 196
sasuadxd E._ocww
T z - - - - - - A1199j01d -SUOTINQLIUOS J1JaUSQ ouxo_%__m $S6
p = - z < - - - J9Y10 - SIJTAIIS ALI03J01] €56
z z < - - - - - $1S00 JOBXUOD ISYJ0 -SIDIAIIS ANINOIJ 756
T Z . - - - - - JoQe[ - S39TAIIS 9A1I09I0I] 156
SIIJAIAS u>uooLE
z z z < - - - - TeW "PIO -SUOLINQLIU0D 1[Juaq uomoﬁnwum S¥6
= - - < < - - - D 10B1U0D ~ dO pUB S0UBUSUTEW ATRUIPID £¥6
< z - - - 06 - - S[eLIajeW - dO pue SJUBUUIRW ATRUIPIO 6
- - - - - - - - Joqe| - do pue JuTeW AreuIpIQ 176
uonerado 29 2dUBUUIBW bmn_wwo
- . - P - - - - asuadxa sanun uoawo €6
- - - - - - - - sanInn ~SUONNQLIUOD 3JaUdq deAo[dwrg LE6
- - - - - - - - Joge’] $€6
- - - - - - - - fong 14X
- - - - - - - - SeD £L6
- - - - - - - - AoImos[g CE6
- - - - - - - - I3reM 1£6
muE:wD
# wey sun
spejoy, spaddorg _%oouo.& puog 9|qBAIRIY  weiSolg  S[E)OL STVILOL s[e)ol, uondrIdsa( JUN0IIY
ureado1g ) puog UOS[IA 13YSBT, SAON ) Aeq Smsy 1A AdOH juein) dwo)
uowrdopraq  dsoding wd ] -8uory ay} 10§
[ed9uan) sweadoag
TTNAIHOS VLVA TVIONVNIA
9007 ‘1€ HOIVIN




vy

(£68°628)  |(9v+°959'6) | Z98°11LT E6ECEV6] - (681) $96°18% (szv'en) SHSNAIXHT YTAO HONTATH JO SSHOXH[0001
L1 1]
- 0052CS 7880069 1v2190°L1 - - (EELP6ET) - SHSN) SHOUNOS HONIONYNIA dHHIO TV.LOL]0101
sso/uTed 13u ‘suia)] Eouwm . 8001
B sso[y/ured jou ‘surayl Areurpiroenxy L001
so[es Ayadoid wrory spassold 9001
SpUOq puB SUBO| ‘SJ0U WO SPAad0Id S001
gn Jusuodurod oy/uroly s1eysuel} suneladp 00T
1015203 ATewnid WOy S13JSuer; Julelsdg €001
0 - - - - - (EELV6ET) 1no s1oysue; 3upeisdQ 001
0 005°TTS 788°0069 [CAEIA - - - Ul SI19Jsuex) Sunje1ddQ 1001
(SASN) STOYNOS ONIONVNIL JTHILO
£68°678 9P6°8LT°01 | SHE'60T'S - £09°69 | 9ZTVTI | €IS68EET STY'El SHSNHJIXH TVIOL|{006
- - - - - - - - asuadxa Juaz syrun mE:EMD 8.6
- - - - - - - - Ny JeIUSWIaA03 JuswAed jedround 3gaq LL6
- - - - - - - - Spuny [BJUSWUISA0S -SAB[INO [ende)) 9L6
- - - - - - - - §9550] pnely SL6
£68°673 - 869°T8L°1 - - 681 TET 6 STY'El asuadxa uoneroa1da(y yL6
- - - - - - - - sjuswAed 20UR)SISSE JUISNOL €L6
- o - - - - - - pazipeyded uou - sasso[ Ajfense)) L6
- SP6°E81°01 § 9€6'PILT - - - 68€°TTI°L - JouBUSUIEW ATRUIpIORIXY 1L6
0 666‘v (92°169°1) TSIP6ET - - 6IE' 1166 - SASNIIXH DNILVYddO YIAO
HONTIATI ONLLVIHJO SSHOXH 0L6
- (666 1) 1SLTIL'Y - £09°69 LEOYTL | T68VTE'S - SHSNIdXH ONILYYddO TV.IOL 696
# way| aury
spelo], SPaddolg SpIadesJ puog J[qEAIdIY  weviSorg  SeI0L STVLIOL s[ejol, uonpdiadsa(f JuUNoIIY
weadold 3 puog UOSIAA 9YSEY, S3)ON as) feq Swidy IA AdOH jueic) duro)
uowidodad@  asodang wry-3uoy a1} 103 '
ILACTEYSY sweadolg
HINAIHDS VILVA TVIDONVNIA
9007 ‘I€ HOUVIN
ALIMOHINV Y "1OH VIHATIAVTIH




79

”
09E°EES Y S6E'LY L8TSL I3]0 - S331AIDS JUBUI], ¥76
66L°LLY - DS JUBUD) -SUOTINGLIUOD J1Joudq 340jdwry €76
8TL'EYT - $1505 UOIEO0[oY 726
169°6V1°C - 988°CT1 SSLIE[eS - S90TAIAS JUBUI |, 126
SOOTATOS ﬁ_aco L
L
097°L0E'ZE yL8'61Y ELYYET'] sAnensiawipe -gureiado JBYiQ 916
81S°ZE6°C1 - 090°86Z 1JeNSTUTWPE -SUOHNGLIUO0I J1JouUsq saAodiuy S16
BlecT0LE) - saouasqe pajesuadwo)) ¥16
¥86°096 - ¥86°096 §99] JUSWABEURW PISINQ €16
861°1¢€8 - £€0°9LS $39] Sunipny pue SUNUNCI0Y zl6
965 SYT 0 - 610°6£5C SOLIE[ES SANBNSIUTIPY 116
o>_§me_E__u<
|
“mmWmeXm
L
1LY98T'89€ 900°LS8 ¥T6'E98°81 INNIATY TVLOLI00L
- - P3101HSAI - QWI0OUT Luﬁmumuwﬁ 0zZL
(coc'ceez) - S]osSe PaXIJ JO 9[es 1) U0 SSOf J0 uren)| 191L
LY1°LTS'8 091°0L 6£9°508°9 ANUAASI I3YIQ| [STL
YET'SE - KI9A0921 piesd|  |PIL
6£7'669'C - L8TS0€ SW0dUL JSAISIU 9FeBUON| (1L
£5E°0€6'€ 65S°L1 100°L96 pajornsaIun - SWOOU] JUSUSIAUTE ]/
€07°199°1 L8T'69L 0£9°79S syueld uswuIsA0s 19WO| |80L
9E1°01€°0T - SINVYD TV.LIdVO VHd ANH| 1'90L
006'97€°0Z¢ - Y6T°S16°¢ siwesd yHd ANH| (902
P9E'6T1 €T - £L0°887°9 ONUAASI JUeUs) [e}0] | 0L
LIT'162 - LLO'801 1910 ~ SNUIASI JUBUR L, 0L
9vZ'8€8°CT - 966'6L1°9 9NUIAQI [BIUSI UBUAL 13N| | €0L
HANIATI
RN
# wey| sun
TVLOL S[EI0L JUELD  S[BIOT 3un uopdriasa( Junoddy
eaorees  juouoduie))
ATAAHHDS VLVA TVIDONVNIA
9007 ‘T€ HOUVIN

ALTYOHLV DONISAOH VIHd TAAVTIHd




aYy

- |
LLT'611 - astadxd 90UBIIASS 396
SLL'099'y - 169°L6S°T 35UadXa 159193U] 196
€L770T - 19730 - 1G3p ped 996
- - sogedow -1q3p ped 596
6¥T 6€S - Y6z vy Sjual1 jueus) - 1qop peg ¥96
- - SOXe] JO N2 Ul sjusuiked €96
60ETHL'9 - LY0°19€ SasUadXq [eIaUan) PR 796
6599611 - 65$°60°T swniws1d soueImsu] 196
|
S9SUAAXI [RISUIN)
|
S6ETLL - Aj0s101d ~SUONINQLIIUOD J1Jauaq saAo[dury [4<
TIE'LST - 866291 13T]0 - S301A138 SANI3I0I <6
0€L°886'C - §1S00 10RIUOD JOYIO -SIVIAIIS SAIIDA0I] 756
T9€'LS9°E €€1°CT 10qe] - SIDIAIAS 2A}0]01J 1S6
_
SOIAISS 9A1I2101]
|
£L8Y00F1 - SLI0ZE frew *pIo -SUONQLIIUO J1Jauaq sdAo(dwry Y6
9LY'ETL'O - 18L°09% 5 19817105 - dO pUE 5oURUSIUTeW ATRUIpI0 £he
ST8EOV'L LSL 96€°0L8 S[enajew - do pire dIrRUAUIRU ATRUIDIO [44)
€689LS'1€ - LESTHO'] 10qe] - do pue Julew ATRuIpi 176
N
uoneIado 2y 2duBUUTEW ATRUIpIO
|
1ST01¥°1 - 089°0¥1°1 astadxa Saniun /Y10 356
YLE6TY - SOIIIN -SUOHINGLIU0D JIouaq a2Ao[dury L€6
L68°TY6 - 10qe] 6
LTTILT - g ¥€6
SISLLET] - 611°0€1 seD £€6
TSLS169 - 16¥°82C AyoLno9[y (473
STLI8T'S - 185°565 1M 1€6
]
SanIIIN
# Way| aul
TVLOL s[eyoL Juesn  sfejo Nuf) uondiIasa Juncady
[edogeyels Juauodwio)
ATINAIHDS VLVA TVIONVNIA
9007 ‘1€ HOUVIA
ALMOHLAV Y SNOH VIHdTIAVTIHd




99

§95°08S‘Ty S0S°SE T66'V6T'€8 SHSNAdXH YHAO ANNIATI JO SSHOXH{0001
L1 ]
$S9°€70°98 9€L610°T 618°16'88  [SASN) SADYNOS HONIONVYNII YTHLO TV.LOL[0101
- - - SSoj/ures 1au ‘Swa)l —m_ouwum L 8001
- - ssoj/ured jau ‘swayl Areurproenxy L001
- - sares Auadord wog spasdold 9001
- - - SpPUOq pUue SUBO] ‘Saj0U WY Spaavold S001
SS9°€Z0°98 - §69°€70'98  §n jusuodurod oj/woy s1aysuel) sunjersd ¥001
- - - III9A08 Arewnid Wolj s1ajsuen suneiad() €001
(698°110°1S) - - Ino siajsuen duneiadp 7001
698°140°1S 9€L'610°1 ¥91°876°C ul S1ojsuel) suneradQ 1001
(S4SN) SAIYNOS ONIONVNIL ¥THIO0
095°62L°T1P 9€T 1981 1SL°00S$T SISNHdXH TV.LOL{006
- - asuadxa Jual SPUn mE:uk_ﬁ 8.6
- - nJ [BIUSUIILISA03 -juswAed fedound 1927 LL6
- - Spunj [BJUSWIISA0F -SAB[INO [B)1de) 9L6
- - - 535507 pney,] SL6
LOOEYS'8S 16S°0€ 00+'1+9°6 asuadxa uoneraidag ¥L6
YOE'88S011 - SJUSWAERd SoUBISISSE JUISNOE] €L6
- - pazi[eyded UoU - S3SSO| AJ[ense’) L6
$9TT8TST L8Y'0TET SouBUSUIEUI ATRUIpIORIINY 1L6
L8Y'0L6°0ST L¥8'99¢ €LSV86'C SASNHIXH ONILVIEJO JTAO
HANTATI ONLLVIHJO SSHOXH 0L6
v86°S1E°LIT 8S1°06¥ 16€°658'¥1 SISNHIXH ONILYYHdO TVIOL 696
# Way sury
TVLIOL sfejo], juery  s[ejo] yuf) uondidsa( JUNoNY
|8207/9383s  juduodwo)
HINAITHDS VLVA TVIONVNIA
9007 ‘I1€ HOUVIA

ALTMOHLAY DNISNOH VIHdTAAV1IHd




SINGLE AUDIT SECTION
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PHILADELPHIA HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

This schedule is prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.
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YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2006
Pass
CFDA FEDERAL GRANTOR Thru Federal

Number PROGRAM TITLE Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Agriculture

10.558 Child Care Food Program $ 126,717

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

14.170 Congregate Housing Service Program N/A 84,443

14.182 New Construction Section 8 Program N/A 1,023,793

14.235 Supportive Housing Program N/A 336,436

14.249 Section 8 Single Room Occupancy Program N/A 1,531,599

14.850a Low Rent Public Housing N/A 99,496,822

14.855 Moving to Work Program N/A 135,810,813

14.856 Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation N/A 2,295,632

14.857 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers N/A 7,894,229
- 14.866 Revitalization of Severely Distressed Public Housing N/A 15,266,211

14.870 Resident Opportunity & Self-Sufficiency N/A 286,768

14.872 Capital Fund Program N/A 72,694,997

Health and Human Services

93.044 Special Programs for the Aging N/A 124,037

93.575 Child Care and Development Grant N/A 5,042

93.600 Head Start N/A 73,490

$337,051,029




PHILADELPHIA HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2006

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

Financial Statements
Type of auditors® report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:
e Material weakness(es) identified?
e Reportable condition(s) identified that are not considered

to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
e Material weakness(es) identified?
e Reportable condition(s) identified that are not considered
to be material weakness(es)?

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
Accordance with Section 510(a) of Circular A-133?

Identification of major programs:

Unqualified

No
None reported

No

No
No

Unqualified

No

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program

14.850a Low Rent Public Housing

14.856 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers
14.866 Revitalization of Severely Distressed

Public Housing

14.872 Capital Fund Program

14.855 Moving to Work Program

N/A Bond Proceeds
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PHILADELPHIA HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2006

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS - Continued

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $3,000,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? No

SECTION II — FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

There are no Financial Statement Findings for the current audit period.

SECTION HI — FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

There are no Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs for the current period.
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PHILADELPHIA HOUSING AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2006

SECTION IV - SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

There are no open prior audit findings.
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ISDANER
COMPANY, Lic

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants
on Compliance and on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed

in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Board of Commissioners HUD, Pennsylvania State Office
Philadelphia Housing Authority Office of Public Housing
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania Wanamaker Building

100 Penn Square East

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19107

We have audited the financial statements of Philadelphia Housing Authority (PHA) as of and for
the year ended March 31, 2006, and have issued our report thereon dated November 1, 2006. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the PHA’s financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered PHA’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in
the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation
to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving
the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

THREE BALA PLAZA & SUITE 501 WEST ¢ BALA CYNWYD e PENNSYLVANIA e 19004-3484
(610) 668-4200 @ Fax (215) ISDANER e Fdx (610) 667-4329 e Email: info@isdanerllc.com




This report is intended for the information and use of management and federal awarding agencies
and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Godonin) ¢ lonprnsy £4C

November 1, 2006
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ISDANER
COMPANY, Lic

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants
on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major

Program and Intemal Control over Compliance in Accordance
With OMB Circular A-133

Board of Commissioners HUD, Pennsylvania State Office
Philadelphia Housing Authority Office of Public Housing
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania Wanamaker Building

100 Penn Square East

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19107

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Philadelphia Housing Authority (PHA) with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-
133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended
March 31, 2006. PHA’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results
section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is
the responsibility of PHA’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on PHA’s
compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular
A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about PHA’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on PHA’s compliance with those
requirements.

In our opinion, PHA complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above
that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended March 31, 2006.

THREE BALA PLAZA s SUITE 501 WEST 0_7%ALA CYNWYD e PENNSYLVANIA @ 19004-3484
(610) 668-4200 e Fax (215) ISDANER = Fax (610) 667-4329 & Email: info@isdanerllc.com




Internal Control over Compliance

The management of PHA is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs.
In planning and performing our audit, we considered PHA’s internal control over compliance with the
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine
our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters
in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the
design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low
level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that
would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within
a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no
matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

This report is intended for the information and use of management and federal awarding agencies and

pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

Xodamn/ Y smpancg £L0

November 1, 2006
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CITY OF PHILADELPHIA

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

76



PHILADELPHIA HOUSING AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash
Unrestricted
Restricted
Investments
Unrestricted
Restricted
Rents receivable - net of allowance
for uncollectables
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Accrued interest receivable
Deferred charges and other assets

Total current assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Land, building and equipment - net of

- accumulated depreciation
Mortgage receivable
Other assets

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Trust for deposit liabilities
Deferred credits and other liabilities
Bonds, notes and other loans

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term debt
Other long-term liabilities
Total Long-term Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Net assets:
Net investment in fixed assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net assets

MARCH 31, 2006

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

77

$ 87,925,000
2,426,000

17,545,000
23,395,000

280,000
46,132,000
36,036,000

589,000

4,305,000

218,633,000

969,025,000
166,879,000
11,507,000

1,147,411,000

$1,366,044,000

$ 19,781,000
9,752,000
6,618,000
1,081,000

59,367,000
3,350,000

99,949,000

303,385,000
35,290,000

338,675,000

438,624,000

662,412,000
2,394,000
262,614,000

927,420,000

$1,366,044,000
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Certification for

U.S. Department of Housing

and Urban Development

a Drug-Free Workplace

Applicant Name
Philadelphia Housing Authority

Program/Activity Receiving Federal Grant Funding

Moving To Work Year Six Report

Acting on behalf of the above named Applicant as its Authorized Official, I make the following certifications and agreements to
the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) regarding the sites listed below:

I certify that the above named Applicant will or will continue
to provide a drug-free workplace by:

a. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the un-
lawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use
of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Applicant's work-
place and specifying the actions that will be taken against
employees for violation of such prohibition.

b. Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to
inform employees ---

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The Applicant's policy of maintaining a drug-free
workplace;

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and
employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees
for drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace.

c. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged
in the performance of the grant be given a copy of the statement
required by paragraph a.;

d. Notifying the employee in the statement required by para-
graph a. that, as a condition of employment under the grant, the
employee will -~-

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her convic-
tion for a violation of a criminal drug statute occurring in the
workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

e. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days
after receiving notice under subparagraph d.(2) from an em-
ployee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, includ-
ing position title, to every grant officer or other designee on
whose grant activity the convicted employee was working,
unless the Federalagency has designated a central point for the
receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the identification
number(s) of each affected grant;

f. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar
days of receiving notice under subparagraph d.(2), with respect
to any employee who is so convicted ---

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an
employee, up to and including termination, consistent with the
requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfacto-
rily in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program ap-
proved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

g. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-
free workplace through implementation of paragraphs a. thru f,

2. Sites for Work Performance. The Applicant shall list (on separate pages) the site(s) for the performance of work done in connection with the
HUD funding of the program/activity shown above: Place of Performance shall include the street address, city, county, State, and zip code.
Identify each sheet with the Applicant name and address and the program/activity receiving grant funding.)

Check here D if there are workplaces on file that are not identified on the attached sheets.

I hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate.
Warning: HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties.

(18 U.St.f\‘l&(ﬂ.\\ﬂﬂo, 1012; 31U.S.C. 3729, 3802)

Title
Executive Director

Name of Authorized O ial\
Carl R. Greene R
Signature -

X

Date
éﬁ% 7
/7 form HUD-50070 (3/98)

ref. Handbooks 7417.1,7475.13,7485.1 & .3



Certification of Payments
to Influence Federal Transactions

U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

Applicant Name
Philadelphia Housing Authority

Program/Activity Receiving Federal Grant Funding
Moving to Work Year Six Report

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be
paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connec-
tion with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any
Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into
of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation,
renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have
been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL,
Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in accordance with its
instructions.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this
certification be included in the award documents for all subawards
at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts
under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all
subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which
reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered
into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making
or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title
31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than
$10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

i

1

I hereby certify that all the information stated herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate.

Warning: HUD will prosecutsf\\zzse claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties.

(18 U.S-€,_1001, 10%Q, 1012; 31U.S.C. 3729, 3802)
[N N

Name of Authorized O |cial\ N
Carl R. Greene \

Title

Executive Director

Signature

Date (mm/dd/yyyy)

Previous edition is obsolete

é/Z/ 97
4
form HUD 50071 (3/98)

ref. Handboooks 7417.1, 7475.13,7485.1, & 7485.3



DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES
Complete this form to disclose lobbying activities pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352

Approved by OMB
0348-0046

(See reverse for public burden disclosure.)

[1. Type of Federal Action:
a. contract
b. grant
¢. cooperative agreement
d. loan
e. loan guarantee
f. loan insurance

2. Status of Federal Action:

a. bid/offer/application

b. initial award
¢. post-award

3. Report Type:
a. initial filing

b. material change
For Material Change Only:
year quarter
date of last report

4. Name and Address of Reporting Entity:
[Z] Prime D Subawardee

Tier , if known:

Congressional District, if known: 2nd

5. If Reporting Entity in No. 4 is a Subawardee, Enter Name
and Address of Prime:

Congressional District, if known:

6. Federal Department/Agency:
U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development

7. Federal Program Name/Description:
MTW Year Six Report

CFDA Number, if applicable: _14.870

8. Federal Action Number, if known:

9. Award Amount, if known:

$

10. a. Name and Address of Lobbying Registrant

(if individual, last name, first name, Ml):

Not Applicable

b. Individuals Performing Services (including address if
different from No. 10a)
(/ast name, first name, MI):

11 Information requested through this form is authorized by titte 31 U.S.C. section
" 1352. This disclosure of lobbying activities is a material representation of fact

upon which refiance was placed by the tier above when this transaction was made

Signature: / %&0’—“7

ar] k Greenew

required disclosure shall be subject to a civil penalty
not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

or entered into. This disclosure is required pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352. This
information  will be avaitabte for public inspection. Any persan who fails to file the

Print Name:

of not less than $10,000 and T|t|e EXCCIlthC Dll’eCtOI'

/

Telephone No.: 215-684-4174

Date: _é’)éé?

| Authorized for Local Reproduction
Standard Form LLL (Rev. 7-97)
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Philadelphia Housing Authority
Rent Impact Analysis — May 2007

Pursuant to the Moving To Work (MTW) Agreement, the Philadelphia Housing
Authority (PHA) conducted a rent impact analysis for the three-year period 2004 through
2006. The phase-in of rent simplification began in April 2003 for the Housing Choice
Voucher program and in September 2004 for the Public Housing program. Low Income
Housing Tax Credit sites managed by PAPMC, Moderate Rehab units and non-MTW
vouchers are not subject to rent simplification and are not included in this analysis.

PHA'’s rent simplification program currently includes the following components:

+ Implementation of a single working household deduction

o Modification of the definition of income to exclude the first $500 of asset income as
well as offsetting certain Medicare related insurance premium

+ Utilization of a sliding scale of percentages based on family size to calculate Total

Tenant Payment

Establishment of a $50 minimum rent after a ninety (90) day grace period

Increase in Ceiling rents (PH only)

Implementation of two year recertifications

Establishment of a seven year participation limit (HCV only) with exclusions for

seniors and persons with disabilities

+ Requirement for development of a Family Economic Development Action Plan for
applicable households (HCV only)

L 2 K 4

PHA prepared this rent impact analysis of public housing and HCV households using a
“snapshot” of resident household data from PHA’s computer system for the periods 2004,
2005 and 2006. The total public housing households included in the dataset numbered
12,301, compared to 16,523 in the HCV program. Note that the profile of PHA
households was constantly changing during this period as a result of move-ins and move-
outs. As discussed in PHA’s Annual Reports, new move-ins from the waiting list are
overwhelmingly “extremely low” income households. In contrast, households moving
out are more likely to be higher income households who “graduate” from HCV and/or
move on to homeownership and other housing opportunities.

The following is a summary of the results of the rent impact analysis.

Affordability

PHA’s rent policies resulted in affordable household rents in both the public housing and
HCV programs. The following chart shows average Total Tenant Payment (TTP) as a
percentage of Gross Income. The chart excludes households earning less than $2,000
annually, who are subject to a minimum rent payment after a 90-day grace period and,
therefore, tend to pay a higher percentage of income for TTP. See analysis of this group
below under “Minimum Rent Payers”. Table 1 highlights the fact that for all other
households, PHA residents pay 28% or less of gross income towards rent.

Appendix A Rent Impact Analysis Page A-1
MTW Year Six Report May 2007



Table 1:
Total Tenant Payment As Percentage of Gross Income by Quartiles

2004 2005 2006
Public Housing Households
Average 27% 26% 26%
Lowest Quartile 25% 26% 26%
Median 27% 27% 27%
Highest Quartile 28% 28% 28%
Housing Choice Voucher Households
Average 27% 27% 27%
Lowest Quartile 25% 26% 26%
Median 27% 27% 27%
Highest Quartile 28% 28% 28%

HCV Affordability

As described in Table 1, HCV households on average paid 27% of gross household
income towards rent. Under PHA’s rent simplification program, HCV households retain
the option to pay up to 40% of household income toward rent at initial occupancy (or
higher thereafter) if they choose to rent an apartment that exceeds PHA’s published HCV
Payment Standards. This is a program feature common to the HCV program nationwide.
While this is an allowable program element, a high percentage of HCV households
paying in excess of 30% of income would cause concern that payment standards are too
low. Based on this impact analysis, PHA’s Payment Standards appear to be adequate.
Table 2 provides a summary of HCV households who elect to pay more than 30% of
income for rent. Both the number of households in this category and the percentage of
income paid towards rent have trended down since 2004.

Table 2:
HCYV Households Electing to Exceed Payment Standards
2004 2005 2006
Number of Households 1440 1123 1078
TTP as Percent of Gross Income 33% 33% 32%
TTP as Percent of Adjusted Income 36% 35% 33%

Minimum Rent Payers

Under rent simplification, the number of households reporting either zero incomes or
incomes less than $2,000 has steadily declined from 2004 to 2006. The total number has
decreased from 1,364 in 2004 to 711 in 2006. This group is required to pay a $50
minimum rent after a 90-day grace period.

Appendix A Rent Impact Analysis Page A-2
MTW Year Six Report May 2007



Household Income

Under PHA’s rent simplification program, gross household incomes increased for both
public housing and HCV households; however, in looking at average household income,
the rate of increase for HCV households was more than twice that of public housing
households. As of 2006, median income for HCV households was 6.3% than that of
public housing households. Table 3 shows households income by quartile for HCV and
public housing. '

Table 3: Household Incomes

2004 2005 2006 Change
04-06

Public Housing Households

Average 11,504 12,727 12,392 7.7%

Lowest Quartile 6,500 7,068 7,068 8.7%

Median 7,868 8,713 8,736 11%

Highest Quartile 14,194 16,242 15,528 9.4%
Housing Choice Voucher Households

Average 10,292 10,891 11,981 16.4%

Lowest Quartile 5,964 6,387 7,068 18.5%

Median 7,873 8,268 9,288 17.9%

Highest Quartile 13,143 14,084 15,491 17.8%

Employment Income

Under rent simplification, employment income increased for households with at least one
wage earner. The total number of HCV households with at least one wage earner
increased from 4,628 to 4,867 (29% of program participants, while the number of public
housing households with a wage earner declined slightly from 3,405 to 3,369 (27% of
participants). As shown in Table 4, the rate of increase in income from employment for
wage earning households was significantly higher in the HCV program, i.e. median
employment income increased by 17.1% for HCV wage earning households compared to
an 8.4% increase in the public housing program. In absolute terms, however, median
income for wage eaming households was higher in the public housing program than in
HCV.
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Table 4: Employment Incomes for Households with Wa

e Earner(s)

2004 2005 2006 Change
04-06

Public Housing Households

Average 17,755 19,556 19,073 7.4%

Lowest Quartile 8,736 10,178 10,075 15.3%

Median 15,371 17,680 16,671 8.4%

Highest Quartile 23,296 25,393 25,135 7.9%
Housing Choice Voucher Households

Average 14,812 15,846 17,230 16.3%

Lowest Quartile 8,535 9,280 10,002 17.1%

Median 13,728 14,721 16,077 17.1%

Highest Quartile 20,240 21,302 22,966 13.4%

Non Wage Earning Households

Households without wage earners were the predominate group served by PHA. Based on
the current population demographics as well as the characteristics of PHA’s waiting list,
this situation is unlikely to change or be measurably impacted by rent simplification in
the foreseeable future. For example, the total number of HCV households with either SSI
or SS income increased from 8,617 to 9,506 from 2004 to 2006. Public housing
households in this group increased from 7,788 to 8,043.
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